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MINUTES OF THE TRUST BOARD  

HELD ON 25 MARCH 2015 

Present  
Mr D Dodd chairman 
Mr D Sloman  
Ms C Clarke 
Prof S Powis  
Ms D Sanders 

chief executive  
chief finance officer and deputy chief executive 
medical director  
director of nursing 

Ms K Slemeck  
Mr S Ainger 

chief operating officer  
non-executive director 

Mr D Finch 
Ms D Oakley 

non-executive director  
non-executive director 

Ms J Owen  
Prof A Schapira 
 

non-executive director  
non-executive director   

Invited to attend  
Ms K Donlevy  
Mr K Fleming  
Dr M Greenberg 
Prof G Hamilton  
Ms E Kearney  
Mr A Panniker 

director of service transformation 
director of planning  
divisional director for women’s and children’s services 
divisional director for surgery and associated services  
director of corporate affairs and communication  
director of capital and estates 

Dr S Shaw  
Mr W Smart  
Ms A Macdonald 
 

divisional director for urgent care  
chief information officer 
acting trust secretary (minutes) 
 

Others in attendance 
Dr Chris Laing  
Dr Hester Wain 
Prof Massimo Pinzani 
Derek French  
 

 
associate medical director, patient safety (for item 2015/48 only) 
deputy director of patient safety and risk (for item 2015/48) 
UCL institute for liver and digestive health (for item 2015/49 only) 
patient governor 

2015/41 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND WELCOME Action 

 Apologies for absence were received from: 
 
Robin Woolfson - divisional director for transplant and specialist services 
David Grantham – director of workforce  and organisational development 
 
The chairman welcomed those present to the meeting.  
 

 

2015/42 MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 26 FEBRUARY 2015  

 The minutes were accepted as an accurate record of the meeting. 
 

 

2015/43 MATTERS ARISING REPORT   

 It was agreed that the matters arising report should be amended to show 
anticipated completion dates. 
 
The report was noted. 
 
 

AM 
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2015/44 RECORD OF ITEMS DISCUSSED AT PART II BOARD MEETING ON 26 
FEBRUARY 2015 
 
The report was noted. 
 

 

2015/45 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 The board confirmed that there was no change to the register of interests. 
 

 

2015/46 PATIENT SAFETY – LEARNING FROM A PREVIOUS INCIDENT   

 The chairman reminded the board that this standing item had been introduced to 
demonstrate the board’s commitment to patient safety.  Patient safety incidents 
were overseen and reviewed by the patient safety committee and there was no 
intention to duplicate the discussion that took place there.  The medical director 
then introduced Dr Chris Laing, associate medical director, patient safety, who 
described a never event which had originally occurred in May 2013 but had come 
to light a year later.  A never event was a serious, largely preventable patient 
safety incident that should not occur if the available preventative measures had 
been implemented.  This concerned the insertion of the incorrect lens during 
cataract surgery.  Following the operation the patient complained that their vision 
had not improved and had several out-patient appointments.  The fact that the 
wrong lens had been inserted was identified when the patient had another 
operation on their eye.   
 
The investigation identified that the cause was human error as the surgeon had 
misread the documentation. However there should have been processes in place 
to prevent this single point of failure.  Processes had been changed within the 
ophthalmology department, including a new sticker to go on the consent form and 
changes to biometry reporting. Use of the WHO surgical checklist had also been 
reinforced.  The incident was classified as having caused moderate harm because 
the patient’s eyesight had been affected for more than a year. The fact that the 
incident had occurred and the outcome of the investigation had been shared with 
the patient.   

 

2015/47 PATIENTS’ VOICES  

 The director of corporate affairs and communications read out a complaint from a 
new mother about her maternity care at the Royal Free Hospital.  She had 
experienced problems in the blood test room; with a long wait to be seen and a 
very crowded waiting area.  Antenatal scans were hurried and questions were not 
answered.  It had been difficult to book an antenatal class.  It was also difficult to 
get through on the telephone.  She commented that she had an excellent midwife 
and doctor, but they were the exception. 
 
The director of corporate affairs and communications then read out a thank you 
letter about the Royal Free maternity services, expressing thanks to all involved 
for the fantastic care that she had, with the whole team showing care and 
compassion.  The midwifery team had been remarkable and her doctor had 
responded quickly, and had been professional, knowledgeable, caring and 
motivated. 
 
The clinical director for urgent care agreed to present this item next time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SS 

2015/48 UCLP RESEARCH IN LIVER MEDICINE  
 

 

 The medical director introduced Professor Massimo Pinzani, Sheila Sherlock 
Chair of Hepatology, UCL Institute for Liver and Digestive Health, explaining that 
hepatology was one of the trust’s major specialist services.  Prof Pinzani 
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presented the current research taking place on decellularisation of livers and liver 
regeneration which was important in the context of a shortage of suitable livers for 
transplant.  The wider research effort was intended to strengthen the Royal Free’s 
role as a national and international centre for liver cell therapy and regenerative 
medicine, the Royal Free being one of the very few (if not the only) institution 
worldwide where this ambition was possible because of the convergence of 
expertise, institutional support and ethical clearance.  This would require support 
in terms of money and space. 
 
The chairman thanked Professor Pinzani for his fascinating and inspiring 
presentation. 
 

2015/49 REFERRAL TO TREATMENT (RTT) WAITING TIMES PROGRESS REPORT    

 The chief operating officer reported that steady progress continued to be made.  
The former trust’s PTL had been transferred onto the SQL server and therefore 
now required a final stage of validation.   The progress meant that it should be 
possible to make a decision in the next 4-6 weeks about when it would be 
possible to resume national reporting across the whole trust. 
 
The clinical harm review continued, with 7,174 reviews having been undertaken, 
most of which had concluded that no or low harm had been suffered.  One patient 
who had suffered severe harm had been identified, and the trust was in 
communication with that patient about their situation.  Some patients who had 
suffered low harm and all patients who had suffered moderate or severe harm had 
been written to by the chief executive and their consultant, with a copy to their GP.  
All letters were personalised to the particular position of the patient. 
 
The trust was looking to increase clinical capacity to clear the backlog. 
 
Training also continued to ensure staff followed the national rules correctly; 750 
members of staff had been trained so far. 
 
Ms Owen asked about the definition of moderate harm.  The medical director 
responded that examples would be orthopaedic patients who had experienced a 
longer wait with continued pain or patients waiting for tonsillectomies who had had 
further bouts of illness while waiting.  
 
The board noted that assurance processes were in place to confirm that waiting 
lists were being correctly managed. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2015/50 NURSING / MIDWIFERY STAFFING – MONTHLY REVIEW    

 The board considered a report from the director of nursing.  This showed that in 
January 2015 overall actual nurse staffing had been 10% more than planned, with 
differences between the sites and their reasons being as previously reported. 
 
There had been staffing difficulties in January but these had been very actively 
managed.  Matrons were now rostered to work at the weekends to ensure ward 
staffing was better managed. 
 
Regarding nurse to patient ratios, she reminded the board that evidence 
suggested that there could be an additional risk of patient safety incidents where 
the ratio fell below 1:8.  There were 11 shifts out of 2,900, which equated to 0.4% 
of all shifts, where this had occurred but there had been no associated patient 
safety incidents.  In answer to a question she responded that when the ratio fell 
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below 1:8, care was proactively reviewed to see whether there had been any 
incidents for concern. 
 
There had been one occasion on one ward when there had only been one 
registered nurse on a night shift.  This had been managed by providing support 
from the adjacent ward with tasks that required more than one registered nurse. 
 
Ms Owen noted that there were fewer actual than planned staff consistently on 
the Royal Free Hospital site and asked whether this should be a cause for 
concern.  The director of nursing responded that there were more vacancies on 
the Royal Free site but this was managed in practice by matrons and ward 
leaders. 
 
Ms Oakley suggested that, if there was no immediate prospect of closing the 
escalation beds at Chase Farm, their planned staffing level should be included in 
the report.  The chief operating officer commented those beds were not funded 
and it had been established under the BEH strategy that they would be closed. 
 
The director of nursing advised that the report was formatted using criteria set by 
the Department of Health but she would investigate whether it would be possible 
to do as Ms Oakley had suggested. 
 
The board agreed that the report gave sufficient assurance that the staffing levels 
were meeting the needs of patients and providing safe levels of care. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DSa 

2015/51 QUARTERLY VALIDATION REPORT   

  
The medical director presented this report.  He noted that the trust mostly made 
positive recommendations for revalidation and most deferrals were around 
individuals failing to get patient and colleague feedback.  The first validation cycle 
would be completed at the end of the year; this had been completed over three 
years, future cycles would be over five years and hence slightly less intensive.  
Lead appraisers had been appointed in the divisions which should also help the 
process. 
 
The chairman asked about feedback on the quality of appraisal.  The medical 
director responded that feedback from individuals was generally very positive.  
Internal audit had provided assurance on the process and NHS England would be 
carrying out an external review.  The Royal Free and Basildon were carrying out 
peer review as part of the buddying arrangement. 
 
Ms Owen suggested adding to the report next time how many appraisals were 
due each year compared with how many had been completed. 
 
The director of nursing reminded the board that nursing revalidation would 
commence in October 2015. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SP 

2015/52 CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT  

 The board considered a report from the chairman and chief executive.  
 
The chairman reported on the patient governor election results.  Judy Dewinter 
had been re-elected to the council of governors alongside two former governors, 
Stephen Cameron and Linda Davies, who had been re-elected after a short break.  
He had conveyed congratulations to them. 
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The chief executive highlighted the following points from the report: 
 

 Outline planning approval for the Chase Farm redevelopment 
 

 The pathology joint venture ‘go live’ on 1 April 2015, with 400 staff to be 
TUPE’d across to the new organisation 

 

 Friends and family test (FFT) now had a good sample size, with more than 
4000 patients reporting.  Of these 87% were likely or extremely likely to 
recommend A&E. 

 
He then advised that questions had been raised for the trust board by a member 
of the public which it would be relevant to answer at this point. 
 

1) Does the Chief Executive agree that if a patient faces a long delay for an 
ambulance and as a consequence the patient arrives at hospital via a car 
driven by a friend, the driver should be exempt parking charges and/or 
penalties? 

 
He responded that the trust has no control over the waiting times for emergency 
ambulances. However, if someone felt that they needed to drive a patient to 
hospital due to a long wait for an emergency ambulance and received a parking 
penalty the trust would consider an appeal against the charge.   
 
One of the criteria for booked (non-emergency) patient transport was if a patient 
did not have a friend, neighbour or family member who could reasonably be 
available to transport them to their appointment.  Therefore the situation was 
unlikely to arise of them being brought to hospital by a friend if their hospital 
transport did not arrive. 
 
2) Does the Chief Executive agree that the service provided has got worse since 
the closure of Chase Farm A&E and if he does not can he provide some detailed 
statistics as evidence? 
 
In the 12 months prior to the implementation of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey 
clinical strategy, Barnet A&E saw 90.54% of patients within 4 hours. In the twelve 
months after the strategy’s implementation and the associated closure of the A&E 
at Chase Farm and improvements to Barnet A&E, 93.6% of patients were seen 
within 4 hours. Barnet Hospital therefore saw a 3.05% improvement in 
performance, and this was despite a 27.94% rise in attendances.  In respect of 
the Royal Free Hospital, over the same period performance dipped by 1.06%, 
against the backdrop of a 4.58% rise in attendance. Taking the trust as a whole, 
including the urgent care centre at Chase Farm, the trust had seen a performance 
improvement gain of 2.34% in the year since the implementation of the BEH 
strategy.   
 
The chief executive therefore did not agree that the situation has worsened as a 
result of the closure of Chase Farm A&E. 
 
The chief executive then referred to a question raised by about the trust’s care of 
elderly patients.  The questioner noted that the Royal Free was recognised 
internationally for both its clinical excellence and delivery in many varied fields of 
medicine and asked if the board would give its reassurance that it was equally 
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focused on delivering excellent care to the most vulnerable of its patient 
population, namely the elderly, by confirming that it recognised the importance of: 
a) consultant accountability for patient care 
b) meticulous attention to patient safety for the elderly 
c) an open, honest, non-bullying culture 
e) listening to and examining in detail the serious concerns of patients and their 
representatives 
f) acting with decisive leadership to address the causes of problems identified in 
order to achieve good clinical outcomes for its most vulnerable patients, the 
elderly? 
 
In response the chief executive made the following points: 
 

 The board had received dementia friend training at its board meeting in 
October 2014. 

 The trust had made significant investment in care of the elderly wards on 
across all three hospital sites, with health services for elderly people 
(HSEP) wards with designated consultant leadership and support.  The 
consultants were available to colleagues on other wards for expert advice 
and support. 

 The trust had a dementia lead and designated safeguarding vulnerable 
adults support for staff caring for patients within our hospital sites.  

 
Mr Russell, who was present at the meeting and who had raised the question, 
then asked whether the trust would undertake analysis of the elderly medicine and 
mortality data to ensure that there was nothing untoward.  The medical director 
responded that mortality data was reviewed in a number of different ways.  The 
hospital standardised mortality ratio (HSMR) consistently showed the Royal Free 
in the top five trusts as having a lower than expected level of mortality.  Analysis 
was also carried out by procedure and specially and at consultant level.  Incident 
and complaints data was also available. 
 
The chairman said that he hoped that Mr Russell was reassured by what he had 
heard. 
 

2015/53 TRUST PERFORMANCE REPORT  

  
The report was noted. 
 

 

2015/54 FINANCE PERFORMANCE REPORT   

  
The chief finance officer noted that the trust was expecting to achieve the financial 
recovery plan.   Expenditure on temporary staffing remained an issue.  The full 
year effect of the QIPP plan had not been achieved but it would be achieved 
recurrently as indicated by the exit run rate. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2015/55 PATIENT SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT   

 
 

 
The board noted the report.  Mr Ainger, chair of the committee, noted that the 
committee had staff health and safety within its remit.  The committee had 
received a report on MRSA and VRE in ITU at its last meeting. 
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2015/56 STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT   

  
The board noted the report.   
 

 
 
 

2015/57 FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE REPORT   

  
The board noted the report.   
 

 
 

2015/58 INTEGRATION COMMITTEE REPORT   

  
The board noted the report.   
 

 
 

2015/59 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC / ATTENDEES  

  
No further question was raised. 
 
 

 

2015/60 ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

  
There was no other business. 
 

 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The next trust board meeting would be on 29 April 2015 at 1500, Palm 
boardroom, Barnet Hospital.    

 

 
Agreed as a correct record 
 
Signature ………………………………………………..date         29 April 2015………………….. 
Dominic Dodd, chairman 
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Trust Board 
Matters Arising report as at 29 April 2015  

 
Actions completed since last meeting of the Trust Board 

 
Minute 
No 

Action  Lead Complete Board date/ 
agenda item 

Outstanding 

FROM TRUST BOARD HELD ON 25 MARCH 2015 

2015/50 Nursing/midwifery staffing     
 Include planned staffing levels for  CFH escalation 

wards 
D Sanders   Establishment figures currently being 

calculated. Will be added to May report. 

2015/51 Quarterly validation report     
 Add to the report how many appraisals due each 

year compared with how manycompleted. 
S Powis   This will be added to next report 

FROM TRUST BOARD HELD ON 29 JANUARY 2015 

2015/08 Nursing/midwifery staffing     
 Add workforce metrics to go see visits briefing  D Sanders Included –see sample 

briefing in part II report on 
increasing visibility 

  

2015/10 Annual equality information report     
 Review process for job descriptions and person 

specification. 
 
Under representation of BME staff in bands 8c-9 to 
be area of major focus in year ahead.  Board 
agreed to mentor BME staff who aspired to board 
level posts. The equality and diversity lead would 
be working on a programme to put this into effect. 
 
EDS report to be an item on April board agenda. 

D Grantham 
 
 
 
D Sanders/ 
D Grantham/ 
D Sloman 
 
 
A Macdonald 

This has been incorporated 
in recruitment improvement 
workstream 
 
 
Incorporated in EDS action 
plan; mentees identified, 
board mentors to be 
identified and briefing 
organised. 
 
This will come to board via 
patient and staff experience 
committee.  
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FROM TRUST BOARD HELD ON 18 DECEMBER 2014 

P135/14-15 Chair and chief executive’s report     
 Post implementation review of EDRM 

 
 
 

W Smart   This would be programmed for a future 
board meeting – May 2015. 

FROM TRUST BOARD HELD ON 25 OCTOBER 2014 

P93/14-15 Nursing / midwifery staffing – monthly report      
 Bring report on nursing and midwifery recruitment 

and retention to a future meeting.  At November 
2014 meeting extended to encompass future 
strategy and workforce. 
 

D Sanders This would be programmed 
for a future board meeting. 
 
February 2015 meeting – 
agreed to bring this report 
to April 2015 meeting – on 
agenda 

  

P95/14-15 Safeguarding children and young people 
biannual report 

    

 It was agreed that it would be helpful to bring 
safeguarding children and adults into one report as 
they had common themes.  It was also agreed that 
it would be helpful to include arrangements in other 
boroughs in future report. 

D Sanders    These comments would be taken into 
consideration when producing the future 
safeguarding reports. 
 
Combined safeguarding report 
programmed for May trust board meeting 
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ITEMS DISCUSSED AT THE CONFIDENTIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON 25 MARCH 2015 

 
 

Executive summary  
 
Decisions taken at a confidential trust board are reported where appropriate at the next trust 
board held in public.  Those issues of note and decisions taken at the trust board’s confidential 
meeting held on 25 March 2015 are outlined below.   
  

 The board discussed budget setting for 2015/16 which is included in the public part of the 
agenda this month. 
 
 

 

Action required 
 
For the board to note. 

 
Report From 

 
D Dodd, chairman  

 

Author(s) A Macdonald, acting trust secretary   
Date 29 April 2015 
 
 

 

Report to Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board 
 

29 April 2015 Paper 3 
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REFERRAL TO TREATMENT WAITING TIMES 
 

 

Executive summary   
 
This report informs the board about progress with the referral to treatment waiting times 
programme. 
  

 

Action required / recommendation 
 
The board is asked to note progress to date, and the continuing risks.  
 

 

Governing objectives supported by this 
paper  

Board assurance risk numbers 

Excellent outcomes  

Excellent experience  

Excellent value for money  

Full compliance  R4.1, 4.2 

A strong organisation  R5.2 
 

Risks attached to this project / initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 
See the report. 
 

Equality impact assessment  

 Patient treatment priority is determined clinically and by waiting time.  
 

Public Patient and Carer involvement Mainly via CCG involvement. 
 
 

Report from Kate Slemeck, Chief Operating Officer 
Date 24 April 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Report to 
 

Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board Part l 29 April 2015 4 
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Referral to treatment waiting times 
 
1. Introduction and purpose of this report 
 
This is the regular monthly report to the board on the programme to reachieve national waiting time 
standards for our patients across the enlarged trust.  This report summarises progress over the 
past month. 
 
2. Governance 
 
The programme board, chaired by the chief executive, has met every month since August 2014. 
Barnet CCG and Herts Valleys CCG are both represented, and the director of the NHS Intensive 
Support Team provides external expert advice to the board.  The steering group and all six of the 
workstream groups (clinical harm, data validation and data quality, capacity planning, waiting list 
action group, training, and communications) have been meeting regularly. 
  
Progress reports continue to be sent weekly to commissioners via Barnet CCG (through whom 
NHS England reviews progress).  Those reports are considered at the monthly contract 
management group meetings and elsewhere.  There is frequent informal contact 
and discussion with both Barnet and Herts Valleys CCGs. 
 
3. The validation task 
 
The SQL server, having been rigorously tested last month, was released across both the Royal 
Free Hospital site and the BCF hospital sites in March.  Operational staff have therefore, 
commenced validating the SQL PTLs (longest waiters first) whilst continuing to book procedures 
and appointments from the current Apex and Access PTLs.  This dual running will continue 
throughout April at least.  
 
A thorough, two-way reconciliation between the Apex and the SQL servers’ data is being 
completed to ensure that no patient pathway is missed from the transfer.  The SQL system will be 
fully implemented, and recommended as the basis of reporting, after the new programs have been 
externally confirmed as correct without qualification.  The reports will show us for the first time 18 
week pathways for follow up out-patients and their associated events, both at the former BCF and 
also the Royal Free sites.  
 
4. Clinical harm 
 
The clinical harm programme is nearing completion with 2689 clinical harm reviews left to 
complete.  Following the implementation of the new SQL server, new pathways that are identified 
with patients referred to the legacy organisation prior to 1 July 2014 and waiting in excess of 52 
weeks will be forwarded to the clinical harm programme. 

The current status of harm to patients, who have been treated, is as follows:  

Count of Harm Outcome 31 March 015  

Speciality No Harm Low Harm 
Low harm with letter of 
apology Moderate harm 

Severe 
harm Total 

Grand Total 4778 2950 196 59 1 7984 
NB - endoscopy patients have been excluded from the above figures as these are under the 6 week diagnostic pathway rather than the 
RTT 18 week pathways.  

 
As shown above, one patient has been classified as having sustained severe harm. This is being 
managed and investigated under the trust’s serious incident process. There have been 9 patients 
who have made contact following the receipt of their clinical harm letter. Of those, 5 patients have 
requested a meeting.    
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From the deceased reviews carried out relating to patients referred to the legacy organisation prior 
to 1 July 2014, no patient has died as a result of waiting for more than 18 weeks for a procedure.  
 
 
5. Capacity planning and treating long waiters 
 
Refreshed un-validated data from the SQL server have now been applied to the capacity planning 
model in order to identify scenarios of modelled resource requirements and timetables for returning 
to compliance at trust level for all the 18 week standards.  Additional theatre lists and out-patient 
clinics are continuing so as to maximise the number of long waiting patients being treated.   
 
The following table illustrates the number of patients treated via outsourcing since July 2014 (the 
total number of treatments for March 2015 will be corrected upwards): 
 

Specialty 
Jul-
14 

Aug-
14 

Sep-
14 

Oct-
14 

Nov-
14 

Dec-
14 

Jan-
15 

Feb-
15 

Mar-
15 TOTAL 

Endoscopy 58 44 42 50 48 39 76 140 138 635 

ENT 44 63 56 62 62 11 30 14 14 356 

General Surgery 31 35 44 33 33 10 2 1 3 192 

Gynaecology 9 5 6 5 4 3 4 1 0 37 

Oral Surgery 0 4 3 2 5 0 0 0 0 14 

Pain Management 1 62 52 53 53 22 52 16 4 315 
Trauma and 
Orthopaedics 78 72 94 51 77 8 17 35 63 495 

Urology 30 16 10 11 17 9 7 15 17 132 

Total 
 
251 301 307 267 299 102 188 222 239 2176 

 
 
6. Data Quality and Training 
 
The training work stream has continued to run additional training sessions, to ensure that all 
operational teams and support functions are familiarised with and trained on the new RTT 
dashboard incorporating the SQL data.  Further validation database sessions for Royal Free 
Hospital staff have also taken place, all to ensure that the foundations for the implementation of 
SQL are solid. 
 
The e-learning module has been applied across the trust as part of the mandatory training portfolio 
for all staff involved at any point within the patient pathway. 
 
Since July 2014, 447 members of staff have undergone some RTT training, with 191 staff having 
been trained in the new SQL PTL during March 2015. 
 
 
7. Communications 
 
Internal RTT communications within the trust have included weekly validation updates, the launch 
of the e-learning module and the RTT training sessions, as well as the internal management 
briefing and the monthly CEO briefing.  The communications department continues to work closely 
with the clinical harm group with regular workstream meetings taking place.   
 

 
 
 
 



 

4 
RTT programme board report – trust board PART l April 2015 

8. Next Steps 
 
At the RTT Programme Board, the IST commented that the trust were making good progress on 
the extrapolation of data from the SQL server, and that they were confident in the methods being 
undertaken to validate the PTLs on both sites. 
 
The comprehensive training structure now in place supports good practice within the enlarged 
organisation in ensuring high quality data is being inputted into our PAS, that the new PTL is 
understood and is robust, and that our operational teams are able to horizon scan and actively 
manage our waiting lists.  Further assurance this month is required to ensure that all operational 
functions are ready for the switch to booking from the SQL PTL, as well as a very focussed 
exercise on manually validating all SQL PTL pathways down to 17 weeks. 
 
Continuing with the additional activity within theatres and out-patients, both in-house and in the 
independent sector, is now of paramount importance to ensure that all patients are treated as soon 
as possible. 
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Monthly report of Nursing staffing levels 
 

Executive summary – including resource implications 

In January 2014 the Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust board considered the 
Government response to the Mid-Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry, Hard 
Truths – The Journey to Putting Patients First and the guidance published by the National 
Quality Board and the Chief Nursing Officer, How to ensure the right people with the right 
skills are in the right place at the right time  
 
Hard Truths set out the Government’s requirement that from April 2014 and by June 2014 at 
the latest, NHS trusts will publish ward level information on whether they are meeting their 
staffing requirements.   
 
The overall trust summary of planned versus actual hours for February was 10% more actual 
hours used than planned.  Site specific data is as follows: 
 

 Royal Free hospital  5% less actual hours than planned 

 Barnet hospital  15%  more actual hours than planned 

 Chase Farm hospital  20%  more actual hours than planned 
 

Out of a minimum of 2632 shifts in February there were 15 shifts where the threshold of a 1:8 
nurse patient ratio in the day or 1:11 at night potentially might not have been met or where 
there was one registered nurse on the shift.  This represents 0.56% of all shifts.  There were 
no patient safety incidents reported on any of the 15 shifts. 
 
 
 

Action required 

The board is requested to  

 consider if the report provides sufficient assurance that the nurse staffing levels are 
meeting the needs of patients and providing safe care 

 
 

 

Trust strategic priorities and business planning objectives 

supported by this paper  

Board assurance risk 

number(s) 

1. Excellent outcomes – to be in the top 10% of our peers on 

outcomes 

 

2. Excellent user experience – to be in the top 10% of relevant 

peers on patient, GP and staff experience 

 

Report to 
 

Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board 29 April 2015 Paper 5 
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3. Excellent financial performance – to be in the top 10% of 

relevant peers on financial performance 

 

4. Excellent compliance with our external duties – to meet our 

external obligations effectively and efficiently 

 

5. A strong organisation for the future – to strengthen the 

organisation for the future 

 

 

CQC outcomes supported by this paper  

1 Respecting and involving people who use services 

4 Care and welfare of people who use services 

5 Meeting nutritional needs 

7 Safeguarding people who use services from abuse 

8 Cleanliness and infection control 

9 Management of medicines 

13 Staffing 

14 Supporting staff 
 

 

Risks attached to this project/initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 

 
 

Equality analysis  

 No identified negative impact on equality and diversity 

 
 

Report from Deborah Sanders, director of nursing 

                     

 Email 

Author(s) Deborah Sanders, director of nursing 

                  

  

Date 23 April 2015  
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Introduction 
In January 2014 the Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust board considered the Government response to the Mid-Staffordshire NHS Foundation 
Trust Public Inquiry, Hard Truths – The Journey to Putting Patients First and the guidance published by the National Quality Board and the Chief 
Nursing Officer, How to ensure the right people with the right skills are in the right place at the right time.  Hard Truths sets out the Government’s 
requirement that from April 2014 and by June 2014 at the latest, NHS trusts will publish ward level information on whether they are meeting their 
staffing requirements and Board’s should receive a monthly report concerning the same.  Every six months Trust boards will be required to undertake a 
detailed review of staffing using evidence based tools.  The Royal Free Board considered the outcome of the last staffing review at its meeting in 
November 2014 and the next bi-annual report will be given at the May 2015 Board meeting.  This report provides information on planned versus actual 
nurse staffing for February 2015. 
 
Minimum Staffing levels 
There has been much debate about whether there should be defined nurse staffing ratios in the NHS or whether there should be mandated minimum 
staffing levels. The published guidance from The National Quality board recognises that there is no ‘one size fits all’ approach to establishing nurse 
staffing and does not prescribe an approach to doing so, neither does it recommend a minimum staff-to-patient ratio.    
 
The Berwick review made the following statement on staffing levels alongside the recommendation that NICE develop guidance as soon possible 
based on science and data 
 
‘.. we call managers’ and senior leaders’ attention to existing research on proper staffing, which includes, but is not limited, to conclusions about ratios. 

For example, recent work suggests that operating a general medical-surgical hospital ward with fewer than one registered nurse per eight patients, 
plus the nurse in charge, may increase safety risks substantially. This ratio is by no means to be interpreted as an ideal or sufficient standard; indeed, 
higher acuity doubtless requires more generous staffing. We cite this as only one example of scientifically grounded evidence on staffing that leaders 
have a duty to understand and consider when they take actions adapted to their local context.’ 
 
The Government tasked the National Institute of Health and Care Excellence (NICE) to produce independent and authoritative evidence based 
guidance on staff staffing which was published in July 2014.  The guidance states that ‘There is no single nursing staff-to-patient ratio that can be 
applied across the whole range of wards to safely meet patients' nursing needs. Each ward has to determine its nursing staff requirements to ensure 
safe patient care.’   
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Planned versus actual staffing 
 
The overall trust summary of planned versus actual hours for February was 10% more actual hours used than planned. This is the same as the 
January figure.  
 
 
Site specific data is as follows: 
 

 Royal Free hospital   5% less actual hours than planned 

 Barnet hospital   15% more actual hours than planned 

 Chase Farm hospital   20% more actual hours than planned 
 
The total number of actual hours at each site was: 
 

 Royal Free hospital   118,535 hours 

 Barnet hospital     96, 266 hours 

 Chase Farm hospital     22,532 hours  
 
 
The chart below shows the actual versus planned by trust and by site from July 2014 to February 2015: 
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At Chase Farm hospital the difference between the planned and actual hours is primarily caused by the escalation wards that are open on the site and 
which do not have an establishment coupled with the number of patients who require 1:1 attention.  At Barnet hospital the difference is caused by the 
dependency and acuity of the patients currently being nursed on the inpatient wards who are requiring 1:1 attention.  Generally the 1:1 support is 
provided by health care assistants where it is appropriate.  
 
The breakdown between registered and health care assistants for February by site was:  
 
Royal Free hospital 

 Registered nurses   6% less actual hours than planned 

 Health care assistants  4% less actual hours than planned 
 
Barnet hospital 

 Registered nurses   2% more actual hours than planned 

 Health care assistants  27% more actual hours than planned 
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Chase Farm hospital 

 Registered nurses   5% less actual hours than planned 

 Health care assistants  44% more actual hours than planned 
 
Safe staffing 
 
Out of a minimum of 2632 shifts in February there were 9 shifts reported where the threshold of a 1:8 registered nurse: patient ratio in the day or 1:11 
at night were not met and 6 shifts where there was only 1 registered nurse on duty.  This represents 0.56% of all shifts.  There were no reported patient 
safety incidents on these occasions.  On 10 north there were 3 day shifts where there was a ratio of 1:8.25.  Support was provided by the matron and 
practice educator.  On 8 west there was 1 day shift where there was a ratio of 1:9 and one night shift where there was a ratio of 1:12.  On 9 north there 
was 1 day shift with a ratio of 1:10.6.   
 
The orthopaedic wards at the Royal Free hospital, 7east A and 7 east B had a number of shifts where the thresholds were not met.  7 east A had 2 
night shifts where there was 1 registered nurse supported by health care assistants.  Support was provided by neighbouring wards.  For 2 day shifts 
there were 4 hours where there was a nurse: patient ratio of 1:10.  The ward was supported by the matron and the clinical nurse specialist.  7 east B 
had 4 night shifts where there was 1 registered nurse supported by health care assistants (between 9 – 11 patients on the ward).  Support was 
provided by neighbouring wards.  The vacancy rate and long term sickness contributed to the 7 east A incidences and long term sickness in a small 
establishment impacted 7 east B.  The division are currently considering recruitment strategies and have moved new staff to the ward.  There is also a 
new experienced orthopaedic matron due to start in the Trust next month who will focus on recruitment and retention. 
 
Publication of nursing safer staffing indicators 
 
The chief nurse for England has written to trusts outlining the arrangements for the publication of nursing safer staffing indicators, which will provide an 
overall RAG rating for Trusts. These indicators will support the patient safety information already published on NHS Choices and provide comparable 
information for Trusts to use and for patients and service users to enable them to make an informed choice of care provider. It will also be used by the 
regulatory bodies as part of their Trust assurance process.   
 
The indicators that make up the initial composite measure include:  

 Staff sickness rate, taken from the ESR (published by HSCIC);  

 The proportion of mandatory training completed, taken from the national staff survey measure;  

 Completion of a Performance Development Review (PDR) in the last 12 months, taken from the national staff survey measure;  
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 Staff views on staffing, taken from the National staff survey measure; and  

 Patient views on staffing, taken from the National patient survey measure.  
 

At a London nurse directors meeting it was stated that there may be external queries raised if overall the planned versus actual hours was 80% or 
below or if there were more than 4 wards that had rates of below 80%.  There were no wards where this occurred in February. 
 
Planned versus actual staffing 
 
Appendix 1 shows the planned versus actual for February and the agreed nurse: patient ratio for each ward 
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Appendix 1:  Ward level planned versus actual staffing 
 
 
 
 

Transplantation and Specialist Services February 2015 

Ward Beds 
Registered nurse 
to patient ratio           

Day Shift 

Planned nursing  
hours (RN+HCA) 

Actual  nursing 
hours (RN+HCA) 

Percent of 
actual vs total 
planned shifts  

 Falls  
Pressure 

ulcers  

Attributable 
MRSA 

Bacteraemia  

Attributable 
Cdiff  

FFT 
Score 

9 West 26 1:4 5192 4443 85% 3 0 0 0 85% 

10 North 33 1:4.7 4971 4460 90% 2 0 0 0 88% 

11 West 22 1:4.8 3453 3392 98% 1 0 0 0 86% 

11 South 19 1:3.8 3461 3334 96% 2 1 0 0 100% 

11 East 24 1:4.8 3654 3649 100% 2 1 0 0 93% 

10 East 4445 1:3.4 4837 4445 92% 1 1 0 0 88% 

10 South 25 1:6.25 4085 3848 94% 4 0 0 0 95% 

5 East B 10 1:5 3461 3289 95% 3 0 0 0 83% 

Mulberry 13 1:3 2614 2922 111% 3 0 0 0 100% 
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Urgent Care February 2015 

Ward Beds 
Registered nurse 
to patient ratio           

Day Shift 

Planned nursing  
hours (RN + 

HCA) 

Actual  nursing 
hours (RN + 

HCA) 

Percent of actual 
vs total planned 
shifts (RN + HCA) 

 Falls  
Pressure 

ulcers  

Attributable 
MRSA 

Bacteraemia  

Attributable 
Cdiff  

FFT 
Score 

9 North 32 1:5.3 6162 5657 92% 2 0 0 0 85% 

8 West 36 1:5.1 7514 6729 89% 5 1 0 1 74% 

8 North 32 1:4 6772 6695 99% 1 1 0 0 83% 

10 West 27 1:5 4880 5063 103% 2 0 0 0 90% 

8 East 26 1:4.3 4815 4537 94% 6 2 0 0 90% 

6 South 28 1:4 5622 5246 93% 3 0 0 1 83% 

ITU (RF) vary 1:1/1:2 25162 24608 98% 0 0 0 0 n/a 

Adelaide 25 1:6.25 3996 4315 108% 6 0 0 1 60% 

Capetown 36 1:5.1 6002 5670 94% 7 0 0 0 80% 

CCU 8 1:2 2058 2109 102% 1 0 0 0 100% 

CDU 24 1:4.8 4004 4248 106% 7 2 0 0 84% 

ITU (BH) vary 1:1/1:2 12502 15327 122% 0 3 0 0 n/a 

Juniper 24 1:4.8 3906 3956 101% 1 1 0 0 100% 

Larch 22 1:5.5 3230 3613 111% 0 1 0 0 91% 

Napier 38 1:6.3 3898 6517 167% 0 1 0 1 67% 

Olive 22 1:5.5 3080 3841 124% 8 0 0 1 86% 

Palm 22 1:5.5 3846 3887 101% 3 2 0 0 86% 

Quince 24 1:4.8 4154 5108 122% 4 0 0 0 80% 

Rowan 24 1:4.8 3748 3721 99% 1 0 0 0 95% 

Spruce 24 1:6 3758 4474 119% 1 0 0 0 100% 

Walnut 24 1:6 3886 4063 104% 2 1 0 0 86% 
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Surgery and Associated Services February 2015 

Ward Beds 
Registered nurse 
to patient ratio           

Day Shift 

Planned nursing  
hours (RN + 

HCA) 

Actual  nursing 
hours (RN + 

HCA) 

Percent of actual 
vs total planned 
shifts (RN + HCA) 

 Falls  
Pressure 

ulcers  

Attributable 
MRSA 

Bacteraemia  

Attributable 
Cdiff  

FFT 
Score 

7 East A 20 1:5 3160 2988 94% 1 1 0 0 74% 

7 East B 13 1:4.3 2107 1935 92% 2 0 0 0 96% 

7 West 32 1:4.7 5086 4539 89% 8 1 0 0 88% 

7 North 32 1:4.7 4091 4371 107% 1 3 0 0 93% 

Beech 24 1:8 3468 3632 105% 3 3 0 0 90% 

Canterb'y 25 1:6.25 3230 2721 84% 0 0 0 0 94% 

Cedar  24 1:6 3468 4016 115% 4 2 0 0 90% 

Damson 24 1:8 3502 3608 103% 2 3 0 0 92% 

Wel'gton 39 1:6.5 3598 3308 92% 0 0 0 0 90% 
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Womens and Childrens February 2015 

Ward Beds 
Registered nurse 
to patient ratio           

Day Shift 

Planned nursing  
hours (RN + 

HCA) 

Actual  nursing 
hours (RN + 

HCA) 

Percent of actual 
vs total planned 
shifts (RN + HCA) 

 Falls  
Pressure 

ulcers  

Attributable 
MRSA 

Bacteraemia  

Attributable 
Cdiff  

FFT 
Score 

6 North 20 1:4 2762 2342 85% 0 0 0 0 n/a 

5 South 31 1:8 7365 7328 99% 0 0 0 0 93% 

Neonate RFH vary 2333 2223 95% 0 0 0 0 n/a 

Galaxy 30 1:4 4620 3818 82% 0 0 0 0 n/a 

Neonate BH vary 6468 6121 95% 0 0 0 0 n/a 

Delivery BH n/a 7980 7747 97% 0 0 0 0 86% 

Willow 16 1:5.3 2898 3925 135% 2 0 0 0 78% 

Victoria 48 1:8 6758 6128 91% 0 0 0 0 86% 
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Nursing and midwifery recruitment and retention issues 

 
 

Executive summary  

This paper provides an overview of the nursing and midwifery workforce challenges within 

the NHS and Trust response to secure an adequate workforce. The key issue is a shortage 

in the supply of qualified nursing staff and the Trust is pursuing a range of actions to remain 

competitive and an attractive option for staff, improve supply within the current workforce and 

encourage retention.  
 

Action required  / recommendation  

The Board is asked to note the issues in nursing and midwifery recruitment and Trust 

activities in response.  

 

Trust strategic priorities and business planning objectives 

supported by this paper  

Board assurance risk 
number(s) -  

1. Excellent outcomes – to be in the top 10% of our peers on 

outcomes 

 

2. Excellent user experience – to be in the top 10% of relevant 

peers on patient, GP and staff experience 

 

3. Excellent financial performance – to be in the top 10% of 

relevant peers on financial performance 

 

4. Excellent compliance with our external duties – to meet our 

external obligations effectively and efficiently 

 

5. A strong organisation for the future – to strengthen the 

organisation for the future 

 

 

CQC outcomes supported by this paper 

12 Requirements relating to workers 

13 Staffing 

14 Supporting workers 
 

 

Risks attached to this project/initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 

 

Equality analysis  

 No identified negative impact on equality and diversity  
 

Report from: Debbie Saunders, Director of Nursing    

Author(s):  Debbie Saunders, Director of Nursing & David Grantham, Director of 

Workforce and OD  

  

Report to 
 

Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board 

 

29/04/2015 Paper 6 
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Nursing and midwifery workforce: recruitment and retention issues 

 
 
Introduction  
 

1. This paper outlines the key issues facing the nursing workforce and actions the trust 
is taking to tackle them. It sets out the national context, the London and trust specific 
issues. It is intended to provide an overview to ensure the board and wider trust are 
fully conversant with the challenges and that the actions outlined are informed by the 
views of as wide a groups of stakeholders as possible.  

 
National context 
 

2. There is a recognised shortage of qualified nursing staff available and willing to join 
the permanent nursing workforce. This is a result of fewer nurses being trained as 
commissioned training places were reduced during the financial crisis - the output of 
training programmes will hit a low in 15-16 - against an increased demand for nursing 
staff that has been driven by implementation of higher 'post Francis' staffing levels in 
many trusts and the implementation of NICE 'safer staffing' guidance.  

 
3. Nationally there has been a resultant growth of about 3% in nursing and midwifery 

posts within budgeted establishments against what was previously expected to be a 
modest reduction. In London this growth is estimated to be higher at 4%. 

  
4. Within the Trust there have been some increases in nurse staffing at both the Barnet 

and Chase Farm sites that can be attributed to achieving the desired staffing levels. 
Other growth, including that at the Royal Free site, is a result of increased activity, 
service developments and to respond to changes in the acuity of patients. The Royal 
Free site has for some time met the safer staffing levels required of all hospitals 
under NICE’s guidance.  Nevertheless the increased demand arising from other trusts 
increasing their establishments impacts on the availability of nursing staff. There have 
also been changes in demand arising from increases in turnover and retirements 
reflecting the fact that the profile of the workforce has got older.  

 
London context 
 

5. Within London there is a nursing shortage of about 8,000wte nurses from available 
posts. This is based upon the number of vacancies typically reported by trusts. Inner 
London teaching hospitals report vacancy rates of around 15%, outer London DGH’s 
are similar or slightly higher (typically 15 – 18%).  These rates have all increased by 
about 3% from 2013-14. Within the headline rates areas such as acute medicine, 
elderly care and specialist areas such as theatres and mental health nursing have the 
highest vacancy rates. Maternity is now less difficult to recruit into than it was as the 
supply of trained midwives was increased by boosting training programmes in 
response to shortages a few years ago. 

 
6. Issues that affect London in particular are nurse turnover, as the proximity of Trusts 

allows easier movement than in much if the rest of the country, the high costs of 
accommodation and transport and the differentials in pay between 'inner London' and 
'outer London' High Cost Area Supplement (HCAS).  

 
7. Turnover in London is higher than the rest of the country and has gradually increased 

over the last two years. The growth in post numbers and opportunities for movement 
this has opened up has enabled easier movement, which can also be attractive in a 
climate of pay restraint where taking a new post can provide a higher HCAS or 
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opportunity to negotiate an incremental increase or other benefit with the new 
employer. This does happen given the competition for staff despite Agenda for 
Change terms and conditions not providing for it. 

 
8. The higher costs of living and working in London are partially recognised through 

HCAS. This is 15% of salary in outer London (subject to a minimum payment of 
£3,448 and a maximum payment of £4,395) and 20% of salary (a minimum payment 
of £4,076 and a maximum payment of £6,279) in inner London areas. Within trusts 
with hospitals located in both zones (ourselves, Kings, Barts, Greenwich and 
Lewisham) this pay differential can cause some staff to want to move jobs to sites 
paying the higher supplement and where they do not can engender a sense of 
grievance at the differential. The rates have been set nationally as part of Agenda for 
Change. 

 
9. Accommodation is an issue as house prices and rental charges have increased more 

markedly in London than other areas of the country and outstripping pay increases. 
Most Trusts in inner London are finding that their nursing and other staff are therefore 
increasingly living further afield. Accommodation and transport are therefore two 
significant issues affecting the NHS and wider public sector workforce across London. 

 
10. This is confirmed by RCN research on the London nursing workforce published in 

December 2014 which identified three key issues: 
i. Remedying the deficiency in the supply of trained nurses 
ii. Addressing the high cost of living in London 
iii. Enhancing what it calls the ‘pastoral care’ of the nursing workforce ie 

improving people management and staff engagement to support retention. 
 
The trust position 
 

11. Nursing and midwifery posts make up 4,000 whole time equivalent (wte) of the trust’s 
budgeted workforce (establishment) of 10,000 wte (40%). There are 3,200 wte 
qualified posts and 800 wte unqualified posts (HCA roles). Around 450 posts are 
usually vacant each month. A breakdown of the trust’s nursing roles, numbers of wte 
posts and vacancies by site (at 30 March 2015) is at Appendix 1. An overview of the 
current workforce in post by age and band is at Appendix 2.  

 
12. The trust acts as a training centre for student nurses typically training 100 nurses per 

year.  
 

13. The trust’s turnover of qualified nurses and midwives is 18% - that is to say that to 
stand still 530 wte replacement staff must be recruited each year. Numbers recruited 
in addition to this would reduce the vacancy rate which is typically around 450 wte 
posts that are vacant each month. 

 
14. Turnover amongst HCAs is around 200 wte per annum and the trust typically has 150 

wte vacant posts.  
 

15. Vacancies are covered by a combination of bank workers and agency staff. Typically 
80% of all vacant shifts are covered by bank or agency staff. Bank workers 
accounting for 55% of the shifts filled and agency 25%. The remaining 20% are 
unfilled and the trust monitors staff deployment to achieve safer staffing levels against 
which performance is reported to the board monthly. 
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Nursing and midwifery staff experience 
 

16. The staff survey results for 2014 have been analysed by site and staff group. The 
main conclusions that can be drawn relating to nursing and midwifery staff are: 

a. Training and development is not always felt to be supported 
b. Bullying and harassment is reported more frequently than other staff groups 
c. Career progression is not felt to be fair by staff from BME backgrounds 
d. Work-life balance and wellbeing challenges against pressure of work 

 
17. This reflects national research that the main drivers for nursing staff leaving the 

workforce, other than retirement, are: 

 Career development 

 Re-location 

 Promotion 

 Work-life balance 
 

18. The trust has commissioned a piece of internal work with nursing staff on their 
experiences and for those leaving the reasons that have led them to take that 
decision. 

 
19. The impact of equality and diversity issues and perceptions amongst BME nursing 

staff that they do not get equality of access to promotions and the hard evidence that 
they are more likely to face formal disciplinary action  or regulatory referral than white 
staff is something the trust and NHS as a whole needs to tackle. The trust has been 
leading work on this in London in conjunction with some other trusts, examining data 
and exploring with BME staff how this issue can be tackled. The trust highlighted this 
as an issue in its equality and diversity report (January 2015) and plans further 
engagement with BME staff as part of national equality week in May. The board has 
also committed to supporting this work through offering mentoring to BME staff. A 
number who would like to pursue this have now been identified. 

 
Trust vision 
 

20. As with all staff groups the trust’s aim is that nursing and midwifery staff should have 
a rewarding experience and career in pursing their profession. This means that those 
recruited should be supported throughout their career, lead and managed well and 
engaged in their work. The things nursing staff look for to achieve this are not 
different to other staff but we need to ensure that the time and training is provided to 
ensure they happen. 

 
Areas for action  
 

21. To address the issues outlined above the trust is taking the actions outlined below 
with nursing, HR, recruitment, communications and education and training working 
together. There is opportunity to further coordinating all these activities within a 
comprehensive nursing and midwifery recruitment and retention strategy. 

 
22. The trust has also sought to innovate developing its own solutions. One of these has 

been the programme introduced to provide training to HCAs who held or had 
previously qualified as nurses overseas to support them in meeting UK registration 
requirements. This is initiative is now being pursued in other trusts and not only has 
the potential to increase supply but also providing a development pathway for HCAs. 
There are 25 HCAs who will complete the programme and qualify in September 2015. 

 
23. A second initiative is the accreditation of training delivered in house to nurses in ICU 

skills. The programme, accredited by Greenwich University,  trains current staff to be 
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able to work in ICU providing staff a development opportunity and reducing the need 
for external training to be undertaken. This example can be followed in other areas 
such as emergency department nursing. 

 
24. Other areas of action include: 

 
Safer staffing and deployment 

 Review and clarity of establishments within budgets and plans for 15/16 – ensuring 
budgeted staffing levels are sufficient within each service line and ward to meet safer 
staffing levels 

 Business case and plan for introducing e-rostering to free management time and 
support resource deployment and flexibility and to aid real time monitoring of safer 
staffing levels 

 Using e-rostering to support and offer flexible working arrangements to staff 

 Developing the use of rotational posts between sites for career development 

 Clarity of HCA roles across the Trust and task expectations 

 Examination of alternative roles, including nurse support roles, and development of 3 
– 5 year workforce plans for every service line in 15/16 

 
Technology and operations – included in the IM&T roadmap 

 Using technology to support nurse administration and release time to care 

 Extending nurse prescribing 

 Easing the administrative burden on ward managers and others with improved HR 
and finance and procurement systems 

 
Recruitment 

 Marketing materials refreshed to promote the Trust based on our nurses’ real life 
experiences 

 Use of social and other media  

 Dedicated nurse recruitment team established 

 Use of ‘rolling recruitment’ 

 Guaranteed place offer to graduating student  

 Recruitment fairs and open days targeted at graduating students 

 Exploring  collaborative recruitment options and further international recruitment 

 Developing international links through our existing overseas trained nurses 
 
Management and support  

 Review and improve local/ward induction 

 Nurse leadership programmes (band 6 and band 7) delivered 

 Appraisal and PDP drive (including preparation for re-validation) 

 Mentoring and supervision arrangements strengthened 
 
Training and development 

 Developing a HCA to nurse development pathway 

 Evaluate and continue HCA conversion programme for overseas qualified nurses 

 Mapping all nurse and midwifery training opportunities and expectations for each 
role/roles 

 Nursing ‘leadership pipeline’ mapping and leaders support with ‘license to lead’ 
programme 

 Develop further accredited training like the ITU nurse programme 
 
Bank and agency 

 Rationalisation of agency staff supply contracts 
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 Harmonisation of rates and  a ‘single’ bank for the combined trust – this has led to an 
increase in bank registrations from staff at the Barnet and Chase Farm sites 

 HCA and nurse bank recruitment drive 

 Improving MaST and other training support for bank workers 
 
Accommodation & transport 

 Nursing a priority group for the resource available 

 Long term plan for social housing within CF re-development 

 NHS in London working with the London Mayor’s office and other public sector 
organisations 

 
Equality and diversity and bullying and harassment 

 Pursing work on ‘unconscious bias’  

 Equality Delivery System plan (includes board mentorship) 
 
London-wide collaborative actions 

 London senior nurse group has been established 

 HCA care certificate programme launched 

 HRD collaboration established on ‘making London attractive’ for careers/work 

 AfC discussion on HCAS options have commenced 

 Supporting the development of nurse and midwifery academic roles 
 
In the case of midwifery the staff experience and actions required will form part of the 
maternity review work that is underway. 
 
National action 

25. At national level there has been an increase in the number of nurse training posts 
commissioned, but these will take time to deliver. Overall Health Education England 
(HEE) has increased nurse training by 869 places, 555 of which are for adult nursing. 
There has also been a national return to practice campaign using social media aimed 
at encouraging trained nursing and midwifery staff who have left the profession to 
consider returning. This latter campaign has not been thought to be very successful in 
London. 

 
26. National action has been coordinated between HEE, NHS England, NHS Employers 

and the Nursing and Midwifery Council (NMC). A number of toolkits have been 
provided to support employers in the areas of international recruitment. These are to 
support the proper planning and integration of any staff recruited overseas.  

 
Conclusion 

27. The next few years are going to remain a very difficult period for the supply of 
qualified nursing staff and the trust will regularly need to review the quality and 
reputation of its offering to both new nurse recruits and the current staff it has. There 
are a number of initiatives being pursued and the coordination of these will be key to 
maximising their impact. This coordination will be led by the Nursing and Midwifery 
Recruitment and Retention Group chaired by Rebecca Longmate (Deputy Director of 
Nursing) and involving nursing & midwifery leaders, HR, finance, nurse education and 
communications. 

 
28. The Board will continue to receive assurance on staffing levels through the monthly 

nurse staffing report. 
 
Debbie Sanders – Director of Nursing and Patient Experience 
David Grantham – Director of Workforce and Organisational Development 
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Total 

Estab

Total 

Actual

Total 

Vacant

Vacancy 

Rate %

3971.35 3404.34 567.01 14.28%

Total Registered & Unregistered Nurses

Mar-15
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Total Actual

Total 

Vacant

Vacancy 

Rate %

3175.54 2712.60 462.94 14.58%
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Vacancy 

Rate %

1093.71 926.17 167.54 15.32%
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292.84 266.44 26.40 9.02%

Chase Farm Hospital

Total 

Estab

Total 

Actual

Total 

Vacant

Vacancy 

Rate %

1682.56 1416.15 266.41 15.83%
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86.52 82.41 4.11 4.75%
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378.55 319.65 58.90 15.56%

Royal Free Hospital
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Rate %

44.99 42.58 2.41 5.36%

Other Satellite

Registered & Unregistered Nurses – budgeted establishment and 

vacancies (WTE)  
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Trust Wide Band & Age Profile - Nursing

Band Headcount Age Group Headcount

Band 2 569 16.1% Under 25 241 6.8%

Band 3 153 4.3% 26 – 40 1362 38.5%

Band 4 8 0.2% 41 – 50 1115 31.5%

Band 5 1151 32.5% 51 – 60 690 19.5%

Band 6 993 28.1% 61+ 130 3.7%

Band 7 503 14.2%

Band 8A+ 161 4.6%

Total 3538 3538

16.1% 
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32.5% 

28.1% 

14.2% 
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-40.0% -20.0% 0.0% 20.0% 40.0%
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Under 25
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61+
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Hospital Site Band Profile - Nursing

Royal Free Hospital Barnet Hospital Chase Farm Hospital Other Satellite Sites

Band Headcount Band Headcount Band Headcount Band Headcount

Band 2 248 14.1% Band 2 218 17.5% Band 2 80 21.2% Band 2 23 15.0%

Band 3 80 4.5% Band 3 46 3.7% Band 3 9 2.4% Band 3 18 11.8%

Band 4 3 0.2% Band 4 1 0.1% Band 4 1 0.3% Band 4 3 2.0%

Band 5 537 30.5% Band 5 432 34.6% Band 5 138 36.6% Band 5 44 28.8%

Band 6 510 29.0% Band 6 362 29.0% Band 6 78 20.7% Band 6 43 28.1%

Band 7 295 16.8% Band 7 143 11.5% Band 7 46 12.2% Band 7 19 12.4%

Band 8A+ 88 5.0% Band 8A+ 45 3.6% Band 8A+ 25 6.6% Band 8A+ 3 2.0%

Total 1761 Total 1247 Total 377 Total 153
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Hospital Site Band Profile - Nursing

Royal Free Hospital Barnet Hospital Chase Farm Hospital Other Satellite Sites

Age Headcount Age Headcount Age Headcount Age Headcount

Under 25 155 8.8% Under 25 81 6.5% Under 25 4 1.1% Under 25 1 0.7%

26 – 40 773 43.9% 26 – 40 454 36.4% 26 – 40 100 26.5% 26 – 40 35 22.9%

41 – 50 540 30.7% 41 – 50 382 30.6% 41 – 50 130 34.5% 41 – 50 63 41.2%

51 – 60 251 14.3% 51 – 60 278 22.3% 51 – 60 116 30.8% 51 – 60 45 29.4%

61+ 42 2.4% 61+ 52 4.2% 61+ 27 7.2% 61+ 9 5.9%

Total 1761 Total 1247 Total 377 Total 153
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Equality impact assessment 

 Positive impact which supports equity of service  
 

Report to 
 

Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board 
 

29th April 2015 Paper 7 

 
DIRECTOR OF INFECTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL (DIPC) QUARTERLY REPORT 
 

Executive summary   
This is the trust report from the DIPC for The Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust.  
 
In line with the revised Health and Social Care Act (2008) trusts are required to have appropriate 
management and clinical governance systems in place to deliver effective infection control.  Included 
at appendix A are the ten compliance criteria from the Health and Social Care Act to assist the board 
in assessing the information provided. One of the key actions is a requirement that matrons and 
clinical directors report directly to the trust board on pertinent issues relating to cleanliness and 
infection control.  The trust has declared compliance with the Hygiene Code and is unconditionally 
registered with the CQC.  Compliance is reviewed and discussed at the Patient Safety Committee 
The report reviews IPC priorities to meet NHSLA requirements and meet the requirements of the 
Statement on Internal Control.   

Action required / recommendation 
The Board is asked to confirm that the report provides sufficient information to provide assurance of 
sustained compliance with the Hygiene Code. 

Trust strategic priorities and business 
planning objectives supported by this paper 

Board assurance risk number(s) 

1        Improving clinical effectiveness R1 

2        Enhancing the patient experience  

CQC outcomes supported by this paper 
Outcome 8    Cleanliness and infection control 

Risks attached to this project / initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 
The revised Hygiene Code Risk matrix will be monitored at the Infection Control Committee.   
The risks associated with the Hygiene Code have been included in the Board Assurance Framework  
 

Report From D Sanders, Director of Nursing and DIPC. 
 

Author(s) D Mack,  Microbiology Consultant, Lead IPC Doctor 
Y Carter, Interim Deputy DIPC Royal Free Hampstead  
Husam El-Mugamar, Consultant Microbiologist, IPC Doctor 
Lisa Henderson, Deputy DIPC Barnet and Chase Farm 
IPC team 
 

Date April 2015 
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Introduction 
 
The Health and Social Care Act (2008) Code of Practice on the prevention and control of infections and 
related guidance outlines the actions NHS Trusts in England must take to ensure a clean environment 
for the care of patients, in which the risk of infection is kept as low as possible.  The 10 compliance 
criteria are attached at appendix A.  
 
Monitoring Progress against the Health and Social Care Act, including internal audit. 
 
Hygiene Code compliance will continue to be monitored through the Infection Prevention and Control 
Committee. The Trust’s internal auditors annually assess trust arrangements and ensure robust 
evidence of compliance in all criteria. The 2014 audit did not make any recommendations for 
improvement whilst the date for the 2015 audit is yet to be confirmed. 
 
Meticillin-sensitive and Meticillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus bacteraemia. (MRSA and 
MSSA) 
 
Reduction of hospital acquired Staphylococcus aureus bacteraemias including those due to MRSA 
continue to be an important infection control priority for the trust. The reduction target for 2014-15 is zero 
for all organisations.  
 
In the reporting quarter, January to March 2015, there have been two new MRSA bacteraemias, 1 in the 
Royal Free hospital and 1 at the Chase Farm Hospital. 
 
Patient 1  
This case occurred on 10 South A, Royal Free hospital, in January. The root cause analysis (RCA) 
panel submitted conclusions to the CCG, who agreed there was no failure in duty of care to the patient. 
At arbitration the case was assigned to the Trust. Using RCA findings, areas for improvement in practice 
had been identified. The patient had multiple clinical problems including sarcoid, nephritis, pancreatitis 
with intra-abdominal collections and was colonised with MRSA prior to admission to the Royal Free.  A 
further risk factor was the multiple access lines, including a femoral line due to patient agitation and self-
removal of access lines.  
 
Learning points include: 

 Policy to be updated to state that no MRSA colonised patient should have temporary access 
placed without consultation with Consultant Microbiologist (on call out of hours) to assess and 
mitigate risk  

 Assurance that Trust policy in regard to femoral access and length of time in situ is adhered to. 
Inpatients with femoral lines should be identified and managed as high risk.  

 One-to-one nursing in complex patients with confusion/compliance and line care issues. Trust 
wide special observation policy is required  

 Adherence to IPC policies in regard to documentation assessed through HII audits 

 Eradication protocol compliance and practices to be reviewed and competency assessed 

 Infection control link nurse allocated  

 Competency assessment and accessible record of staff IPC competencies 

 Completion of, and access to HII audits 

 Review of senior nurse cover within unit at weekends to escalate staffing and clinical 
decisions, and to challenge practice. 

 
Patient 2  
 
The case occurred on CDU in Barnet. The Post Infection Review meeting agreed that there were no 
identified lapses or failures in care from either the acute trust or the CCG which contributed to this 
infection. The trust and CCG believe this case should be assigned to a third party. This case has gone 
go to arbitration for final assignment which has agreed that the case should be assigned to a third party 
and not the trust. There are some points of learning from this case which did not contribute to the 
infection which are being addressed by the ward staff and the CCG. 
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MRSA trust acquisitions 
 
 
The trust MRSA acquisition rate remains low across all sites, (an acquisition is defined as any patient not 
previously known to be MRSA positive but has been swabbed whilst in the RFLNHSFT after the first 48 
hours of admission and found to be positive). Although the national requirement has reduced, the trust 
screening process remains inclusive of in-patient admissions as it is felt to be integral in reducing 
acquisition rates and contributes to safer patient care. 
  
Clostridium difficile (C.diff) 
 
The RFLNHSFT has integrated infection control measures across all sites to minimise the risk of C. 
difficile.  Measures include educational programmes, comprehensive antibiotic policies, good bed 
management with early isolation of symptomatic patients and enhanced environmental cleaning. The 
microbiology, IPC and pharmacy teams continue to perform Clostridium difficile ward rounds to ensure that 
all elements of the care and treatment of patients with C. difficile are being appropriately managed. The 
trust C.difficile ‘action log’ incorporates activity across the trust and is driven through the fortnightly 
divisional lead/C.diff action group. Activity is summarised below: 
 
    Main activity  

 RCAs from all sites continue to be discussed at fortnightly meetings to disseminate learning to all 
areas.  

 Learning from antimicrobial audits has provided evidence for a revised patient prescription chart 
with enhanced antimicrobial section. This is being piloted and will be ratified through the DTC. 

 A new version of ‘start smart and focus’ antibiotic audit will be placed on the intranet as part of the 
symbiotic audit package at RF and BCF.  The package is technically complete and is currently 
being implemented through the IT system. 

 The Antimicrobial stewardship committee has now met, and is amalgamated as a cross site 
committee. 

 
Outstanding priorities 

 Continue to align IPC policies and antimicrobial policies 

 Clinical audit programme being aligned across all sites. 

 PPI and laxative protocols to be reviewed. 

 Programme of re-skilling and competence assessment of ward staff to ensure patients with C.diff 
are cared for by competent and knowledgeable staff in any ward area of the enlarged trust. 
 

The trust quality aspiration target is zero avoidable C.difficile cases.  
 
For quarter 4, there were 14 attributable cases for the Trust against a threshold of 8. The threshold 
objective for The Royal Free London Trust for 2014/15 was 54 attributable cases. There were 58 toxin 
positive attributable C.difficile cases for the trust, 4 over threshold for the year. 
 
There were 25 attributable C.difficile cases for Royal Free hospital against a trajectory of 38 for the year 
(13 below trajectory).  At Barnet hospital and Chase Farm hospital there were 33 attributable cases against 
a trajectory of 16 for the year, (17 above trajectory). 
 
Royal free London NHS Foundation Trust C.diff 2014/15 performance by site 

Trust site Apr 
14 

May 
14 

Jun14 Jul14 Aug 
14 

Sept 
14 

Oct 
14 

Nov 
14 

Dec 
14 

Jan 
15 

Feb 
15 

Mar 
15 

2014 
/15 

2013 
/14 

% 
change 

Barnet 2 2 2 1 3 4 4 1 0 4 1 0 24 27 -11.11% 

Chase 
Farm 

3 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 9 7 28.57% 

RF 
Hampstead 

2 1 2 3 2 4 1 2 1 3 4 0 25 35 -28.57% 

Total 7 6 4 4 5 9 5 3 1 7 7 0 58 69 -15.94% 

 
The external threshold objective for The Royal Free London Trust for 2015/16 is 66 attributable cases. 
However, the trust is committed to sustained improvement and securing patient safety and has internally 
set a threshold of 53 cases. 
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Monitor governance arrangements will apply to this reduction target as follows: 

 

 
 

An expert, external review of the BCF service was undertaken in July 2014. The actions against the 
recommendations listed in the DIPC Q3 report have been amalgamated into the overarching Trust C.diff 
action plan. 
 
E.coli bacteraemias 
 
All E.coli bacteraemias are part of the mandatory reporting of health care associated infections (HCAIs), 
there is currently no improvement target associated with this infection.  A breakdown by Division and the 
apparent source of the infection is reported at the fortnightly Divisional Leads IPC meeting to guide future 
reduction activity. 
 
VRE 
 
VRE in critical care at Barnet Hospital 
The IPCT have continued to monitor cases of VRE in critical care since the closure of the 2014 VRE 
outbreak. Sporadic cases continue to be seen and there is regular monitoring of IPC practice and 
environmental cleanliness by both the IPC and critical care teams. A final report of the outbreak has been 
presented to the Patient Safety Committee. 
  
Carbapenemase producing enterobacteriaceae (CPE) and other non-fermenting (CP-NF) organisms 
 
There have been 6 cases of CPE or CP-NF organisms this quarter at the Royal Free hospital site, 
compared to 0 for Q3, 5 for Q2 and 5 for Q1. There was no evidence of cross-infection for the Q4 cases. 
Public Health England Toolkit 
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In November 2013 PHE’s published a CPE toolkit with guidance for CPE management. Pressures within 
this toolkit include  

 isolation of ‘high risk’ patents until screened clear with associated pressures on isolation facilities 

 cost of screening programme 

 training of staff to manage, recognise and screen for CPEs. 

 managing patient concerns – ‘superbug’ anxiety  

 there is no de-colonisation regimen 

 re-admission – ‘flag’ to alert staff to isolate and screen on re-admission 

 transfer of patients to re-hab and other facilities once colonised/infected. 
 
There remains discussion nationally about the ‘toolkit’, in which the RFLNHSFT IPC team participate and 
will include recommendations or changes in the management plan. The community Toolkit has been 
published which will make transfers in and out of the Trust smoother.  A point prevalence study was 
undertaken earlier last year to attempt to identify probable burden of high risk patients and this data has 
been used by PHE in their Toolkit revision. This PPS was repeated earlier this year, to assess changes 
over time. The data is being analysed and will be reported next quarter. 

 
Extended spectrum beta-lactamase (ESBL) producing Gram negative rod (GNR) acquisitions 
 
The divisional leads IPC group have been receiving six monthly reports on ESBL GNRs, in order to monitor 
the prevalence of these resistant organisms, to extend the surveillance and reporting of organisms capable 
of causing infections and to focus actions to reduce further incidences of HCAIs. In previous reports a large 
majority of samples came from community and A&E patients. This trend will be monitored and addressed 
at the fortnightly Divisional Leads IPC group. 
 
Serious Untoward Incidents, outbreaks related to HCAIs  
 
The classification of an outbreak of serious infectious illness occurs when an unusual number of patients 
with similar symptoms present in the same area or with a shared exposure.  A marker for diarrhoea or 
vomiting outbreak is two or more patients with the same symptoms (and possibly identified cause) in the 
same area in 24-48 hours or three or more patients within one month.  When suspected links between 
cases of diarrhoea, or other organism, are identified in the same area, but outside the strict definition of an 
outbreak, this is defined as a period of increased incidence (PII) and IPC measures are instituted to 
prevent an outbreak. 
 
During quarter 4: 
Royal Free Hospital 
 
There were 4 wards affected by Norovirus this quarter, with bays closed; 9 North, 6 East, 7 West, 6 South. 
Full IPC measures were employed including terminal cleaning and VHP fogging. There were no 
subsequent patients in these wards who had norovirus. 
 
7 West:  
There have been a total of seven patients identified with MDR-Acinetobacter baumanni all on 7 west. Six 
cases were linked to 7 west. One case related to podiatrist. This has been a periodic problem since a 
previous MDR Acinetobacter baumannii outbreak in 2013. 
 
To manage the patients acting as a reservoir for this infection, 7 West is admission and discharge 
screening all inpatients for MDR ACB. This will capture the patients who may be re-admitted with MDR 
ACB colonisation. 
 
Seven patients have been identified as positive so far. Most of these patients have been in-patients on 7 
West as well as attending vascular studies, vascular out-patient clinic.  Small numbers of patients have 
attended the podiatrist clinic. Podiatrist clinic has been investigated by the IPT to ensure recommendations 
from previous inspections have been completed. 
 
Barnet hospital and Chase Farm hospital 
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Napier Ward at Chase Farm was closed on 03/04/2015 with an outbreak of norovirus. At the time of 
reporting the outbreak has affected 13 patients and 8 members of staff. IPC control measure were 
implemented and supported by regular outbreak meetings attended by key stakeholders.  Delays in patient 
discharge have significantly impacted on the ability to resolve this outbreak in a timely manner. 
 
There are no other outbreak or significant incidents to report for Q4 
 
 
SUIs 
 
There is a requirement to investigate all deaths via the serious incident (SI) process where an HCAI has 
been recorded as a primary or secondary cause of death on the death certificate. Cases are as follows and 
findings/learning will be reported at next meeting. 
 
 

RFH data 
only 

Month & no. of deaths Associated HCAI Location 

Jan 14 0 deaths   

Feb 14 0 deaths   

Mar 14 0 deaths   

Apr 14 0 deaths   

May 14  0 deaths   

Jun 14 0 deaths   

Combined 
data 

July 14 1 death C.difficile Royal Free 

Aug 14 1 death C.difficile Barnet Hospital 

Sep 14 0 death   

 Oct 14 0 death   

 Nov 14 0 death   

 Dec 14 0 death   

 Jan 15 0 death   

 Feb 15 0 death   

 Mar 15 0 death   

 
Surgical site surveillance 
 
The trust undertakes mandatory surgical site surveillance (SSI) across all sites as well as some in-house 
surveillance at the Royal Free hospital to monitor trends of infections of particular trust services. Mandatory 
surveillance categories are benchmarked nationally.  Where the trust is outside the threshold rate, the trust 
is requested to act and report improvements directly to PHE. No exception reports have been received 
from PHE. All rates are reported to specialty groups and divisional boards by the IPC team to encourage 
good practice and plan any improvements. 
 
Barnet Hospital and Chase Farm hospital  
 

Site Q4 

 Operations Infections 

Total hip 
replacements      

59 0 

Total Knee 
replacements                  

76 0 
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 Royal Free Hospital site: 
 
Site Q1  Q2 Q3 Q4 

 Operations Infections Operations Infections Operations Infections Operations Infections 

Total hip 
replacements      

33 0 40 0 41 1 47 0 

Total Knee 
replacements                  

46 0 62 1 58 0 56 0 

Hip 
Hemiarthroplasties                      

14 1 15 0 22 0 20 0 

Total 
orthopaedic 
surgery              

96 1 117 1 121 1 123 0 

Endovascular 
aneurysm repair         

27 0 24 0 21 0 27 0 

Hemicolectomies   
    

19 2 11 0 13 0 13 1 

Above and below 
knee amputations  

8 1 18 0 15 1 11 0 

Liver transplant 
surgery                

29 1 18 1 20 0 17 0 

 
Hand hygiene 
 
The DH Saving Lives programme High Impact intervention audit tool is used to audit, monitor and report 
hand hygiene compliance.  
 
The RFLNHST compliance rate per quarter is detailed in the table below.  
 

 Royal Free hospital Barnet hospital/Chase 
Farm hospital 

Jan – Mar 201 (Q4) 95.% 97.0% 

Apr – June 2014 (Q1) 96.6% 95.9% 

Jul – Sep 2014 (Q2) 97.8% 96.0% 

Oct – Dec 2014 (Q3) 97.4% 96.0% 

Jan – Mar 2015 (Q4) 97.3% 97.0% 

 
 
Trust cleanliness  
 

 The trust undertakes at least monthly cleaning audits across all areas within the trust. These are 
undertaken jointly with the facilities staff and matrons and ward leaders. Any areas of concern are 
immediately identified and rectified.  Any rectification keeps the trust in line with National Standards of 
Cleanliness (NPSA) level. 

 
At the Royal Free hospital in quarter 4 the cleaning compliance was 99% in very high risk areas (eg ITU) 
where the target is 98%, 97% in high risk areas (eg wards) where the target is 95%, and 96% in significant 
risk areas (eg outpatients) where the target is 87%. 
 
At Barnet hospital in quarter 4the cleaning compliance was 96% in very high risk areas, 95% in high risk 
areas and 94% in significant risk areas.  The compliance failure in very high risk areas is related to the 
nursing related items in the audit which is being addressed by the matron and IPC team. 
 
 
 Isolation Facilities 
 
 Under criterion 7 of the Health and Social Care Act, the trust has an obligation to ensure adequate isolation 
facilities. The Board needs to be kept fully informed of any risks associated with this criterion, in order to 
accurately inform any capital development programmes or service reconfigurations and developments, 
data on deficits in facilities is reported in the fortnightly divisional meeting.  
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A point prevalence survey in March identified that there are over twice the number of side rooms within the 
trust than are needed for infection isolation. There were a small number of patients managed in bed-space 
isolation, rather than side rooms in Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals, but no bed-space isolation in Royal 
Free Hospital. Side rooms are obviously required for other clinical reasons and for end of life care, but the 
capacity is available if managed well operationally. 
 

. 
 
 
The major points from this quarter include. 
 

i. Monthly meeting of C. difficile action group to drive forward action log 
ii. Extending rapid antimicrobial audit tool to further clinical specialties.  
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Matrons report from Surgery and Associated Services 
 
From July 2014, in the new Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust, the Surgery and Associated 
Specialities (SAS) Division grew significantly to encompass surgical wards and departments across four 
main hospital sites, Royal Free, Barnet, Chase Farm and Edgware.  
 
The opportunity to work with new colleagues in an enlarged organisation has been a rewarding experience 
for all and a number of our directorates are part of Wave 1 integration projects looking at aligning patient 
pathways to maximise clinical efficiencies and to enhance the patient experience.  
 
The division is made up of 6 directorates and has 7 matrons 
 
Directorate Ward Speciality Matron 

 
General, emergency 
surgery, colorectal and 
vascular 

7 West 
Cedar 
Damson 
Wellington 
 

General Surgery, vascular and 
colorectal 
 

L. Mattin 
L. Wessel 
P. Roberts 

Trauma & Orthopaedics 7 East a 
7 East b 
Beech 
Canterbury 

Orthopaedics & Trauma 
Elective orthopaedics 

L. Wessel 
P. Roberts 
 
C. Binch to start 
June 2015 

 

ENT & audiology; Maxfac 

& orthodontics; 
Ophthalmology 

Mann Unit 
Cedar  
Maxfac clinic 
ENT Clinic 
Wellington 

 Ophthalmology Day Unit   
 
C. Binch to start 
June 2015 
 
 
 

Plastics surgery & breast  Clinic 147 north 
MVH 
Breast Units 

Plastic & reconstruction OPD 
Plastic surgery 
Plastic & reconstruction 
Gynaecology beds on 7 North 

 
L. Mattin 

Therapy services and 
pain management  

Lower ground 
floor 
12 East a 
Podiatry OP 

  

Anaesthetics, theatres & 
ambulatory care 

RF Hospital 
Barnet Hospital 
CF Hospital 
Edgware Hospital 
 

Main theatres & recovery 
Day surgery unit 
Surgical admissions 
Pre-operative assessment  

K.Harries 
E. Harrisberg 
S. Rudrum 
 
 
 
 

 
General, emergency surgery, colorectal and vascular  
 
This directorate is made up of 4 wards encompassing, emergency and planned surgery.  
 
Trauma and orthopaedics 
 
The elective orthopaedic wards on 7 east b and Canterbury ward have an admission criteria that all 
patients are screened and confirmed as clear from MRSA before admission to this area.  This reduces the 
risks associated with MRSA infections in major joint and deep tissues following orthopaedic surgery. The 
pre-operative screening and cohorting of MRSA free patients, enhances the patients experience by 
reducing length of stay and risks associated with orthopaedic surgery. 
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Plastic surgery and breast 
 
This directorate is made up of 1in-patient 32 bedded ward accommodating patients undergoing plastic and 
reconstructive surgery. In 2012/3 the plastic surgery beds were reduced and ward now accommodates 8 
gynaecology beds and 4 general surgery. 
  
Patients are received from A&E, GP referrals and other NHS Trust’s within a large geographical catchment 
area. We are the regional centre for hand trauma.  
 
Anaesthetics, theatres and ambulatory care 
 
This directorate is made up of the following:  
 
Royal Free site, 16 theatre suites and 2 recovery areas on level 3 and 3 theatres and 3 recovery bays on 
level 1 plus a Day Surgical unit on Level 3 and Pre-Operative assessment areas on the first floor.  The 
operating department is undergoing continued refurbishment and four theatres will be closed for 6 weeks 
during the summer for maintenance and further refurbishment.  
 
Barnet site:  5 emergency theatre suites and 1 recovery area on the 3rd floor and a purpose built day 
surgery unit on the ground floor with 3 theatres. This area is currently being used as additional capacity for 
inpatients.  
 
Chase Farm site: 5 theatre suites for elective surgery and a stand-alone surgicentre unit within the grounds 
for day case operating. There is pre-assessment on both the Barnet and the Chase Farm sites.  
 
The sterile services department is located within the estates directorate.  
 
Therapy services and pain management 
 
There are no inpatient areas within this directorate. 
 
ENT and audiology; Maxfilliofacial and orthodontics; Ophthalmology  
 
Ophthalmology out-patient and surgical facilities are provided at the Royal Free, Barnet, Edgware and 
Whittington sites. ENT and Maxillofacial  inpatient surgical facilities are provided on Cedar ward and 
Wellington ward.  Following some concerns regarding Endopthalmitis in March 2014, Barnet day surgery 
unit is no longer being used for ophthalmology.  During the past year the Infection Control Team have 
visited all Ophthalmology services at Barnet Hospital, Edgware Community Hospital and Royal Free 
Hospital. Changes have been implemented regarding prepping patients prior to surgery and other invasive 
procedures with practice now standardised across the service.  
 
 
Collective Indicator scores for division of surgery and associated services 
 

INDICATOR Q1 14/15 Q2 14/15 Q3 14/15 Q4 14/15 

Number of MRSA acquisitions  
 

0 3 3 0 

Number of patients with MRSA bacteraemia 
 

0 0 `1 0 

Number of patients CDT positive 
 

1 7 1 2 

% National Standards 
Cleanliness Audit (avg 

% compliance) 

Very high risk 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 

High risk 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 

Significant risk 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 
>95% 2nd 

check 

Number of outbreaks     
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MRSA acquisitions 
 
During 2014-15 six patients were colonised with MRSA while an inpatient.  The breakdown is four vascular 
patients, one orthopaedic patient and one plastics patient. 
 
 
MRSA bacteramia 
 
During 2014-15 one orthopaedic patient acquired a MRSA bacteraemia in December 2014. 
Clostridium difficle  
During 2014-15 eleven patients acquired C.diff.  The break down is six GI and colorectal patients, three 
general surgery patients and two plastics patients. The most significant cluster of patients was on Damson 
ward in quarter 2.  All appropriate special measures were put in place with increased monitoring of infection 
control practice through teaching and audit and also attention to the ward environment. Work is currently 
being undertaken in plastic surgery in relation to antibiotic prescribing.   
 
Acinetobacter 
 
A cluster of cases were identified in quarter 4 associated with 7 West and Podiatry outpatients.  Screening 
on admission and discharge commenced on 9 march 2015 and 8 cases have been identified. Patients with 
a positive screen have been isolated and deep cleaning undertaken as required.  The plan is to decant 
ward 7 West when 6 East becomes available to enable a terminal deep clean of the environment and 
refurbishment. 
 
Patient environment 
 
Throughout 2014-15 the cleaning scores for the wards and department score greater than 95% on second 
checking.  Where issues are identified on first check they are addressed at the time. 
 
Kevin Walsh 
Head of Nursing SAS 
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CHAIRMAN’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT  
 

 

Executive summary   
 
This is a combined chairman’s and chief executive’s report containing items of 
interest/relevance to the board. 
 

 

Action required 
 
The board is asked to note the report.  

 
Report From D Dodd, chairman and D Sloman, chief executive   
Author(s) A Macdonald, acting trust secretary   
Date April 2015  
  
  
 

Report to 
 

Date of meeting Attachment number 
 

Trust Board 
 

29 April 2015 Paper 8 
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CHAIRMAN’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT 

A  TRUST DEVELOPMENTS 

  
REDEVELOPMENT OF CHASE FARM HOSPITAL  
 
The redevelopment of CFH took a major step forward at the end of March when the 
government approved the trust’s outline business case. Planning permission was also 
granted by Enfield Council in March meaning main construction works are on target to start 
in early 2016, with the new hospital opening in 2018. 
 
To keep staff informed of the latest news regarding the redevelopment the trust has 
launched a regular newsletter that will be sent to all CFH staff several times a year. The first 
edition includes information about what services the new hospital will provide, the 
engagement the trust is carrying out with staff, patients and the public and public health 
information. 
 
The information hub at Chase Farm Hospital, based outside the Clocktower, has been open 
for over a month and has been visited by more than 150 patients and staff. 
 
ROYAL FREE EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT REDEVELOPMENT  
 
On Monday 18 May there will be a new entrance to the RFH emergency department (ED) 
next to the current entrance. Signs will be in place to direct staff, patients and visitors to the 
A&E, the out-patient lifts and the rest of the hospital.  
 
Work on the new urgent care centre (UCC) is currently underway and it is expected to open 
in July this year. Both the new entrance and the new UCC are part of phase 1a of the 
construction work. In total there are four phases and the construction work will be complete 
in 2017. 
 
Since December, when construction work began, a great deal of progress has been made. 
Over the past five months the following new areas have been created: 
 
• New out-of-hours entrance 
• New vehicle drop-off bays 
• Security office 
• CCTV control room 
• Temporary TREAT hot clinic 
• Temporary bed and chair wait for A&E x-ray 
 

B REGULATION 

 
 

C BOARD AND COUNCIL MATTERS 

 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS  
 
Elections for three patient governor places were completed on 23 March and three 
experienced governors were elected to the council of governors:  Judy Dewinter, Dr Stephen 
Cameron and Linda Davies.  Judy Dewinter was first elected as patient governor in April 
2012 and was re-elected for a further term.  Stephen Cameron and Linda Davies had 
previously served on the council as public governors between April 2012 and September 
2014. 
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Currently elections are taking place for the role of Lead Governor (as Peter Atkin’s term of 
appointment has come to an end) and to the Nominations Committee (where all current 
appointments have expired).  The outcome of the elections will be reported at the board 
meeting. 
 
USE OF THE TRUST SEAL 
 
The trust’s standing orders require an annual report to the board on the use of the trust seal.  
The report should contain details of the seal number, the description of the document and 
the date of sealing.  The table below lists the documents which the seal has been affixed to 
the within the last year. 
 
Date No. Item 

21 May 2014 356 RFL and Siemens Medical Instruments (Hearing Aids) Deed of termination  

28 May 2014 357 RFL and Tangram Architects, Ansell and Bailey, WT Partnership, Richard 
Stephens Partnership; RLT Structural Engineers 

4 June 2014 358 RFL and Cuffe Plc – A&E decant works 

25 July 2014 359 Joint Venture Agreement – UCLH/RFH/TDL/Health Services Laboratory  

25 July 2014 360 Redundancy side letter  

25 July 2014 361 Agreement for Lease 1 – HSL (FM) LLP 

25 July 2014 362 Agreement for Lease 2 - HSL (FM) LLP 

25 July 2014 363 Trust Services Agreement – HSL (Analytics) LLP and HSL (FM) LLP 

25 July 2014 364 Leasehold Lease - HSL (FM) LLP 

25 July 2014 365 Freehold Lease - HSL (FM) LLP 

25 July 2015 366 Pathology Services Agreement - HSL (Analytics) LLP 

25 July 2014 367 Managed Services Environment Agreement - HSL (FM) LLP 

28 October 2014 368 Transfer of College of Nursing – RFL and SoS for Health  

28 October 2014 369 Pathology RFL FM guarantee – HSL (FM) LLP and North Middlesex NHS 

28 October 2014 370 Pathology RFL Analytics guarantee - HSL (Analytics) LLP and North 
Middlesex NHS 

3 November 2014 371 Deed of Novation (Electric Vehicle Charging) – RFL and TFL and BluePoint 

2 February 2015 372 Mary Rankin Building, North Wing, St Pancras Hospital, Camden  

25 February 2015 373 Genesis Housing Assoc. Ltd and RFL NHS FT – Nurses Tower, RFH 
operating agreement  

26 February 2015 374 Deed of variation of joint venture agreement and re Health Services 
Laboratories LLP between UCLP and RFL NHS FT and the Doctors 
Laboratory Ltd and Health Services Laboratories LLP 

26 February 2015 375 Licence to enter and carry out works re pathology services  

26 February 2015 376 The Doctors Laboratory and HSL and UCLH and RFL NHS FT– agreement 
for lease 

26 February 2015 377 Deed of variation of an agreement for lease relating to G, 1
st
, 2

nd
 and 11

th
 

floors at RFH between RFL and HSL. 

26 February 2015 378 Deed of variation of an agreement for lease relating to LG, G, and 2
nd

 floors 
at RFH between RFL and HSL. 

26 February 2015 379 Second deed of variation of joint venture agreement between UCLH, RFL 
NHS FT, Doctors Laboratory and Health Services Laboratory. 

26 February 2015 380 Deed of variation between RFL NHS FT and HSL (FM) LLP and HSL 
(Analytics) LLP 

30 March 2015 381 Linden Barnet LLP and Galiford Ivy PLC – signing of sale agreement for the 
transfer of Elmbank site at Barnet. Wellhouse Lane. 

30 March 2015 382 Deed of surrender variation for the surrender and variation to Metiers Lease 
Plan, Barnet 

30 March 2015 383 Standard building contract with Quantities 2011.  Willmott Dixon Interiors 
Ltd.  RFL A&E contract.   

31 March 2015 384 RFL and trustees of RF Hampstead Charities.  Conditional lease agreement 
for the Pears Building, The Royal Free Hospital, Pond St, NW3 
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D  LOCAL NEWS AND DEVELOPMENTS 

 
TRUST OBJECTIVES 
 
The trust’s revised objectives for 2015/16, which have been discussed with the council of 
governors are listed below. 

 

Annual objective 2015/16 
Related governing 
objective/s 

1  Develop a single approach to quality and safety 
improvement. 

Excellent outcomes;  Patient 
and staff experience;  Safety 
and compliance. 

2 Validate the waiting list, and make definitive progress in 
reducing the number of patients waiting over 18 weeks. 

Patient experience;  Safety 
and compliance 

3 Improve the flow of emergency patients through and out 
of our hospitals.  

Patient experience;  Safety 
and compliance 

4 Deliver an ambitious but achievable QIPP (savings with 
quality improvement) programme, whilst strengthening 
long term financial sustainability. 

Excellent value 

5 Work together with commissioners and other partners to 
implement the integrated care plans with new patient 
pathways and effective demand management. 

Patient and GP experience;  
A strong organisation 

6 Adopt throughout the trust World Class Care values and 
behaviours. 

Patient and staff experience 

 
 
PATIENT FRIENDS AND FAMILY TEST (FFT) UPDATE 
 
The NHS friends and family test (FFT) was introduced in 2013 to enable patients to feed 
back on their care and treatment to enable hospitals and other providers to improve 
services. 
It asks patients whether they would recommend hospital wards, A&E departments and 
maternity services to their friends and family if they needed similar care or treatment. The 
March results are below. 
 
We are now able to compare performance between our three main sites for A&E and in-
patient care as we now use one methodology to collect the data.  
 

Royal Free London 
combined data 

% likely/extremely likely to 
recommend March 2015 

(range: 0 – 100%) 

Number of patient responses 

In-patient 87.6% 1270 

A&E 85.9% 4166 
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Barnet Hospital % likely/extremely likely to 
recommend March 2015 

(range: 0 – 100%) 

Number of patient responses 

In-patient 85.0% 421 

A&E 86.1% 2453 

Antenatal care 50% 6 

Labour and birth 60% 14 

Postnatal hospital ward 60% 14 

Postnatal community care 97.7% 90 

 

Chase Farm Hospital % likely/extremely likely to 
recommend March 2015 

(range: 0 – 100%) 

Number of patient responses 

In-patient 91.7% 193 

 

Royal Free Hospital % likely/extremely likely to 
recommend – March 2015 

(range: 0 – 100%) 

Number of patient responses 

In-patient 88.0% 656 

A&E 89.0% 1712 

Antenatal care 92.7% 41 

Labour and birth 96.6% 29 

Postnatal hospital ward 96.6% 29 

Postnatal community care 97.7% 90 

 
 
WORLD CLASS CARE VALUES RELAUNCH 
 
The trust employs more than 10,000 staff across the trust all working hard towards one 
shared aim providing world class care to the 1.6 million patients we see every year.  
 
The trust’s world class care values define the way staff work, what they feel is important and 
how they interact with patients and each other. In February 2015 almost 1,000 members of 
staff and volunteers contributed to the development of the trust’s ‘living our values’ behaviour 
framework, which summarises the behaviours that staff and patients expect to see in the 
hospitals. 
 
In the last week of April the trust will be launching the ‘living our values’ framework with 
events for all staff across the three main sites.  
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CHASE FARM HOSPITAL IMPROVEMENT WEEK  
 
Following successful improvement weeks at Barnet Hospital and the Royal Free Hospital in 
the past six months it was Chase Farm Hospital’s turn in March. 
 
The purpose was to free non-clinical staff to support patient-facing staff in improving the flow 
of patients through the hospital and helping them to resolve any issues.  
 
During the week most non-clinical meetings were cancelled allowing non frontline staff, 
including the executive team, clinical and operational managers, to focus on improving 
patient flow, looking in particular at processes such as discharge.   
 
There was excellent engagement from a large number of staff and the clinical and 
operational teams worked well together to make improvements, both immediate and longer 
term. 
 
A detailed plan of actions identified from the RFH and BH improvement weeks continues to 
be delivered and a similar action plan will be developed for CFH. 
 
HIGH LEVEL ISOLATION UNIT 
 
A third patient has been successfully treated for Ebola at the high level isolation unit at the 
Royal Free Hospital, and has been discharged.  There are currently no patients being 
treated in the unit.  
 
PATHOLOGY JOINT VENTURE LAUNCHED 
 
On 1 April 2015 Health Service Laboratories (HSL) launched and became the provider of all 
RFH pathology services.  This is a ground-breaking partnership between the Royal Free 
London, University College London Hospitals and The Doctors Laboratory to provide state-
of-the art pathology services to the NHS. 
 
This partnership aims to bring together the best aspects of three organisations to deliver 
high quality care for patients and value for the NHS. HSL will build on and strengthen each 
partner’s track record of providing world class research, educational opportunities and 
patient care. 
 
By providing a world class working environment and outstanding opportunities for personal 
and professional development Health Services Laboratories will be able to recruit and retain 
the highest quality workforce. The partnership will maximise research and educational 
opportunities, ensuring its NHS partners and customers remain at the forefront of patient 
care. 
 
NEW DIALYSIS UNIT OPENS 
 
The trust opened a new supported self-care unit at its kidney and diabetes clinic at St 
Pancras Hospital.  The new purpose-built unit provides dialysis for up to 72 patients and is 
adjacent to what is currently known as the Mary Rankin unit. 
 
The new unit offers eligible patients receiving dialysis at any of the trust’s six current sites 
the chance to have more flexibility and independence in their dialysis care. Patients are able 
to attend consultant-led dialysis clinics and access dietetics, social care and psychology 
services. The unit also includes a dedicated supported self-care training area for patients. 
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The expansion of the unit forms part of the trust’s clinical strategy to expand renal services 
and provide clinical care, including dialysis, closer to patients’ homes and in the heart of 
local communities. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS REPORT – MARCH 2015  
 
The communications team had a lot of positive external and internal interest during March, 
with the Royal Free London coming under the local, national and international media 
spotlight over the admission and successful treatment of a military health worker for Ebola. 
The story featured in the Ham & High, Evening Standard, Yahoo News, The Guardian, BBC 
News, The Independent, ITV News, The Telegraph, Times of Malta, The Mirror, International 
Business Times, Cambridge News, Scottish Daily record, Irish times, Camden New Journal,  
Sky News, Daily Mail, Cambridge News, The Star, The New York Times and News talk.  
 
Other media stories featuring the trust include: 
 

 David Sloman, chief executive of the Royal Free London, welcomed the permission 
received to redevelop Chase Farm Hospital, in The Enfield Independent (also see e-
edition) and North London Today.  

 Our No Smoking Day campaign at Chase Farm Hospital and Barnet Hospital was 
reported on in The Enfield Independent, Barnet and Whetstone Press and This is 
Local London . 

 The H&H mentioned the Royal Free Hospital as the first site in Europe to install a 
simulator which allows staff to virtually practise surgery. 

 Mr Norbert Kang, plastic surgeon at the Royal Free Hospital, successfully reshaped 
the ears of a two patients, in the Mirror.  

 Larry Ross, a patient at Barnet Hospital, wrote a letter to the Barnet and Potters Bar 
Times, praising staff for his care (see e-edition page 22). 

 Will Smart, chief information officer, featured in stories on our use of EDRM software 
in Exchange Morning Post, Computerweekly.com and PR Newswire.  

 The Times and The Independent featured a piece on John Hopewell, urologist and 

former head of the renal unit at the Royal Free Hospital.   

 Aseem Malhotra, cardiologist at the Royal Free Hospital, was quoted in a campaign 

to ban fast food in hospitals, reports Yahoo News.  

 Ed Miliband, leader of the Labour party, criticised Prime Minister, David Cameron, for 

the closure of services at Chase Farm Hospital, in North London Today. 

 A former patient praised staff for the care they received at the Willow Ward at Barnet 

Hospital, in the Borehamwood and Elstree Times. 

In this period the communications team also: 

 Issued 9 statements. 

 Handled 95 media enquires including queries about our Ebola patient, requests for 
interviews, statements, briefings, filming and documentary enquiries. 

 Posted 19 news stories on our website. 

 Posted 30 stories, notices and events on our intranets. 

 Increased our twitter following by 210 followers to 7,813. 

 Continued to build our Facebook page, with 84 new ‘likes’ to 2,663 fans. 

 Published the March Freepress magazine and commenced work on the April issue. 

 Provided communications support for key trust projects including the Chase Farm 
Redevelopment, RTT, pathology joint venture, the change in patient transport 
provider and RPASS. 

 Promoted Friends and Family test results both internally and externally. 

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCAQqQIoADAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.hamhigh.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fhealth%2Fbritish_army_corporal_with_ebola_discharged_from_royal_free_after_world_first_treatment_1_4012653&ei=cEYZVdyOBsHaPI6hgMgH&usg=AFQjCNGnQzI9Xu8dxPWngkjzlIPt5kYgiQ&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCEQ-AsoATAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.standard.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fhealth%2Farmy-volunteer-given-ebola-allclear-after-experimental-drug-treatment-at-royal-free-10139244.html&ei=cEYZVdyOBsHaPI6hgMgH&usg=AFQjCNERxWgpIj97Q2vrXPl97k9okM1b1w&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCIQ-AsoAjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fnews.yahoo.com%2Fnurse-cured-ebola-receiving-treatment-153103211.html&ei=cEYZVdyOBsHaPI6hgMgH&usg=AFQjCNFqPbzm22fxKf0lVHIbTF9BX9LblA&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_0_0_t&usg=AFQjCNEUrP8t8MMgREfPbxdR9PrEewNyIQ&did=38237bab79bd2900&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.theguardian.com%2Fworld%2F2015%2Fmar%2F27%2Fbritish-military-nurse-infected-with-ebola-has-been-discharged-from-hospital
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_1_0_t&usg=AFQjCNFjprYO5mtqOSWG71ko_mHXCYc9KQ&did=7439bdeab6855f18&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fhealth-32088310
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_1_0_t&usg=AFQjCNFjprYO5mtqOSWG71ko_mHXCYc9KQ&did=7439bdeab6855f18&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fhealth-32088310
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_9_0_t&usg=AFQjCNEHCVnjrgjGKlaM2QvCl3Fj4M8x-Q&did=e34a39e07cd7208e&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.independent.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk%2Fhome-news%2Febola-in-the-uk-nurse-who-contracted-ebola-thanks-incredible-nhs-team-that-cured-her-10139953.html
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_10_0_t&usg=AFQjCNH1XSyHS3ZSneNXHo9t5RoEAQiShg&did=2a586e014843ca25&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.itv.com%2Fnews%2Fstory%2F2015-03-27%2Fbritish-medic-ebola-free-after-using-experimental-drug%2F
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_19_0_t&usg=AFQjCNHSKtZ15BtW0DfH82ge19ObPvXaFg&did=425b204d4070ae6&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.telegraph.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fworldnews%2Febola%2F11499584%2FNurse-who-became-first-in-world-to-be-cured-of-Ebola-by-experimental-drug-is-discharged.html
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_21_0_t&usg=AFQjCNH1J3Xon4IYHKQxfR4riT9-Mgb4dg&did=547d00953c7ec375&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.timesofmalta.com%2Farticles%2Fview%2F20150328%2Fworld%2FBritish-Ebola-patient-is-cured-after-experimental-treatment.561717
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_24_0_t&usg=AFQjCNEOaQ8UTWVsdyVhb-wbq3YpMctgMw&did=5a990cd56e19aed9&cid=52778784322952&ei=f0YZVdDxCe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mirror.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-news%2Febola-british-female-army-medic-5412603
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=4&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CDsQqQIoADAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ibtimes.co.uk%2Fhigh-hopes-new-ebola-drug-given-military-nurse-anna-cross-1493989&ei=_FQZVdTXJIy-PLmngdAE&usg=AFQjCNESGRe0cboGbknpPu0hVXvSgLJZRA&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=4&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CDsQqQIoADAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ibtimes.co.uk%2Fhigh-hopes-new-ebola-drug-given-military-nurse-anna-cross-1493989&ei=_FQZVdTXJIy-PLmngdAE&usg=AFQjCNESGRe0cboGbknpPu0hVXvSgLJZRA&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCIQ-AsoAjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cambridge-news.co.uk%2FCambridge-military-nurse-Anna-Cross-declared-free%2Fstory-26242929-detail%2Fstory.html&ei=H1UZVfGoKMevPJX9gKAO&usg=AFQjCNFM7gYGzZ2Df_dHxvNof062b-XaUQ&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CDAQ-AsoAjAB&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dailyrecord.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-world-news%2Fbritish-army-nurse-overcomes-ebola-5417468&ei=H1UZVfGoKMevPJX9gKAO&usg=AFQjCNHRuzgnOyaqjH4PpD8ztDFLJf5ROw&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_25_0_t&usg=AFQjCNEs4B_CdWbQGFMFoiygHTiQRpOTJg&did=1218436ef2687337&cid=52778784322952&ei=YFUZVaiNE-_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.irishtimes.com%2Fnews%2Fworld%2Fuk%2Fbritish-military-medic-declared-free-of-ebola-1.2155924
http://www.camdennewjournal.com/ebola-patient-corporal-cross-cured-royal-free
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCIQqQIwAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fnews.sky.com%2Fstory%2F1454009%2Fbriton-with-ebola-cured-after-taking-new-drug&ei=zlUZVevEN4bDOaGkgOAG&usg=AFQjCNHNrNaamejO0C7dEQUhe4mcSQJByg&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCIQqQIwAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dailymail.co.uk%2Fhealth%2Farticle-3014866%2FBritish-nurse-cured-Ebola-experimental-drug.html&ei=L1YZVfDyJ8bJPJDSgfAE&usg=AFQjCNHiUMn_QBcW88TwYNPVbc_M78C_lQ&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=15&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CF0QFjAO&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cambridge-news.co.uk%2FCambridge-military-nurse-Anna-Cross-declared-free%2Fstory-26242929-detail%2Fstory.html&ei=L1YZVfDyJ8bJPJDSgfAE&usg=AFQjCNFM7gYGzZ2Df_dHxvNof062b-XaUQ&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=newssearch&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CCMQ-AsoAzAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.thestar.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fnational%2Febola-patient-thanks-hospital-staff-1-7180140&ei=cEYZVdyOBsHaPI6hgMgH&usg=AFQjCNFg41gs99JVW3dbjjWI7CQqrJGE_Q&bvm=bv.89381419,d.ZWU
http://www.nytimes.com/2015/03/13/world/europe/british-health-worker-infected-with-ebola-in-sierra-leone.html?_r=0
http://news.google.com/news/url?sr=1&sa=t&ct2=uk%2F0_0_s_4_0_t&usg=AFQjCNEW_SVMGNDVZ9zKdXF190DekhL7OA&did=745707a03e6f5984&cid=52778784322952&ei=-1YZVeDHMe_6iQbntIDABw&rt=STORY&vm=STANDARD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.newstalk.com%2Freader%2F47.301%2F44180%2F
http://www.enfieldindependent.co.uk/news/11860298._The_right_thing_to_do___Chase_Farm_plans_welcomed/
http://edition.pagesuite-professional.co.uk/Launch.aspx?referral=other&refresh=6Jm019Ft4y1N&PBID=e7e5d511-be97-43e8-8288-f7095a2f15e8
http://edition.pagesuite-professional.co.uk/Launch.aspx?referral=other&refresh=6Jm019Ft4y1N&PBID=e7e5d511-be97-43e8-8288-f7095a2f15e8
http://www.enfieldindependent.co.uk/news/11840943.Hospital_rolls_out__no_smoking__campaign_to_Chase_Farm/
http://www.barnet-today.co.uk/news.cfm?id=27261&headline=Campaign%20urges%20smokers%20to%20be%20proud%20to%20be%20a%20quitter
http://www.thisislocallondon.co.uk/news/londonnews/11841329.Hospital_campaign_to_create_smoke_free_environment/
http://www.thisislocallondon.co.uk/news/londonnews/11841329.Hospital_campaign_to_create_smoke_free_environment/
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/health/unbelievable_virtual_surgery_machines_arrive_at_the_royal_free_1_3981886
http://www.mirror.co.uk/news/uk-news/mum-of-three-pioneering-operation-turned-mine-5302449
http://edition.pagesuite-professional.co.uk/Launch.aspx?referral=other&refresh=mM170e5TL1k9&PBID=0602EA75-70A7-45EB-9E78-86E4A9C2A974&skip=
https://www.google.com/url?rct=j&sa=t&url=http://www.exchangemagazine.com/morningpost/2015/week12/Monday/15032309.htm&ct=ga&cd=CAEYACoSNDM0Mjk5MDU2NDQ3NjE1MjExMho0NTVkNjRjOWNmMWVhNTM0OmNvbTplbjpVUw&usg=AFQjCNFZUGGo0QetOteCG1EwZ9caZwUvYw
http://www.computerweekly.com/news/2240242755/Royal-Free-Hospital-Trust-digitises-patient-records-using-OpenText
http://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/royal-free-london-hospital-reduces-costs-and-improves-patient-care-with-opentext-300053610.html
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/tto/opinion/obituaries/article4391946.ece
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/people/john-hopewell-pioneering-urologist-who-led-the-way-in-the-treatment-of-kidney-failure-both-by-dialysis-and-transplantation-10111906.html
http://news.yahoo.com/doctors-fight-ban-fast-food-hospitals-good-reason-160411259.html
http://www.northlondon-today.co.uk/News.cfm?id=28691&headline=Miliband%20attacks%20PM%20over%20Chase%20Farm%20A&E%20closure
http://www.borehamwoodtimes.co.uk/opinion/letters/11852826.Hospital_staff_were_very_professional/
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 Continued communications planning for the new developments including the Institute 
of Immunity and Transplantation, Royal Free Hospital emergency department rebuild 
project 

 Launched a new newsletter for the Chase Farm Hospital redevelopment and 
continued supporting the redevelopment hub. 

 

E  NATIONAL DEVELOPMENTS 

 

WELL-LED FRAMEWORK FOR GOVERNANCE REVIEWS: GUIDANCE FOR 
NHS FOUNDATION TRUSTS 
 
Last year the Care Quality Commission (CQC), Monitor and the NHS Trust Development 
Authority (TDA) set out plans for developing an aligned view of a well-led organisation, 
aimed at supporting NHS providers to improve, and therefore benefiting the broader 
NHS and its patients.   Well led means that the leadership, management and 
governance of the organisation ensure the delivery of sustainable high quality person-
centred care, support learning and innovation, and promote an open and fair culture.  
 
The characteristics of a well-led organisation, as defined by CQC, Monitor and TDA, are 
now identical, with a common understanding of what a good organisation looks like and 
what it should be able to demonstrate, creating coherence, consistency and 
transparency across our regulatory activities.  
 
This aligned view of a well-led organisation is reflected in CQC’s assessments and 
ratings, as set out in its provider handbooks, while Monitor and TDA now use the 
updated well-led framework as the point of reference for NHS trusts and foundation 
trusts. It replaces the quality governance framework (QGF) and the board governance 
assurance framework (BGAF), which are now effectively incorporated within this 
framework.  
The good practice guidance within the well-led framework has been enhanced and 
made clearer, particularly in the area of culture, and there is more guidance on strategy 
development and execution linked to Monitor’s ‘Strategy development toolkit’. 
 

Existing foundation trusts are expected, under Monitor’s risk assessment framework (on 
a ‘comply or explain’ basis), to undertake an external and independent review of their 
governance every three years. They should now use the updated well-led framework 
and advise Monitor of any material governance concerns arising from their review and 
what they plan to do about them. 
 
Monitor recognises that a number of NHS foundation trusts may already have carried out 
a similar independent governance review within the one to two years before May 2014 
when the framework was originally published.  If this is the case and the review covered 
the areas of this framework, the trust may use this to explain why they are not doing an 
extra review under this guidance within the relevant time period. An independent 
reviewer is required – independent means that they have not undertaken any audit or 
governance related work for the trust in the past three years. 
 
As part of its inspection, CQC asks providers how they have assured their governance 
arrangements. This may include asking for information about any independent reviews 
and how they have been acted on. CQC seeks Monitor’s views as part of the process. 
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The board took the view that the comprehensive governance review that took place as 
part of the acquisition meant that a ‘well led’ review was not immediately necessary.  
However this will need to take place in the next 12-18 months and decisions will be 
needed about the timing of this review, the process to be followed and the selection of 
the independent reviewer. 
 
 
CONSULTATION ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS, 
PRINCIPLES AND ACTIONS SET OUT IN THE REPORT OF THE FREEDOM TO SPEAK 
UP REVIEW  
 
Following the publication of Sir Robert Francis’s report Freedom to Speak Up in February 
2015, the Department of Health is now consulting on the implementation of the report’s 
recommendations. The consultation is seeking views on nine key questions covering: local 
implementation; the role and title of the freedom to speak up guardian; the role of the 
independent national officer; and the standards for professionals in relation to raising 
concerns. The consultation closes on 4 June 2015. 
 
REPRESENTING THE INTERESTS OF MEMBERS AND THE PUBLIC  
 
Monitor, the Care Quality Commission and the Department of Health have collaborated to 
publish guidance designed to assist governors of NHS foundation trusts to represent the 
interests of both the public and NHS foundation trust members. Foundation trusts have the 
freedom to decide how they will engage with members of the public. The guidance provides 
examples of engagement that have worked for foundation trusts and is thus a useful 
resource for trusts to utilise.  The guidance will be used to inform the trust’s membership 
engagement strategy. 
 
ACCESS TO HOSPITAL CARE – IS THE NHS ON TARGET? 
 
The Nuffield Trust has released the fourth briefing in their series examining issues of 
importance to the successful long-term future of the health and social care sector. The latest 
briefing assesses how hospital trusts within England are performing against six national 
targets. The targets assessed against are: the four hour A&E waiting time; 18 week wait for 
inpatient and outpatient treatment; six week wait for diagnostic tests; two week urgent 
cancer referral; and 31 day start to cancer treatment. The briefing concludes that although 
the majority of patients within the NHS will receive treatment within the timescales outlined in 
the targets there has been a decline in trust performance against these targets more 
recently. 
 
EQUAL MEASURES: EQUALITY INFORMATION REPORT FOR 2014 
 
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) has published its annual report on equality and 
diversity. The report examines the health and social sector as a whole but also the equality 
and diversity practices within the CQC. The regulator notes that people accessing the health 
and social care sector experience a significant variation in the care they receive based on 
equality characteristics. The report also highlights a similar variation in the experiences of 
staff within the sector based on equality. During inspections the CQC will assess providers, 
in relation to providing equitable, high quality care within a safe environment. In judging 
whether hospitals are well led during inspections the CQC will use the NHS Workforce Race 
Equality Standard to judge race equality for hospital staff. 
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NHS ENGLAND PUBLISHES REVISED NEVER EVENTS POLICY AND SERIOUS 
INCIDENT FRAMEWORKS 
 
NHS England has revised two important patient safety documents. The revised Never 
Events Policy and Framework includes changes to the definition of a Never Event and 
adjustments to the Never Events list. The revised Serious Incident Framework provides 
renewed guidance to help organisations recognise, investigate and respond to Serious 
Incidents appropriately to minimise the risk of the incident happening again. 
 
NEW OFFENCE OF PROVIDING FALSE OR MISLEADING INFORMATION 
 
The Department of Health (DH) has issued guidance for NHS provider organisations on the 
offence of providing false or misleading information.  Section 92 of the Care Act 2014 put in 
place a new criminal offence that applies to NHS provider organisations and in certain 
circumstances to individuals who work in provider organisations.  The Act specifies that 
organisations that supply, publish or otherwise make available certain types of information, 
that is determined to be false or misleading commit an offence (where that information is 
required to comply with a statutory or other legal obligation). The offence also applies to the 
‘controlling minds’ of the organisation, where it can be shown that they have consented or 
connived in an offence committed by a care provider.  The offence actually goes further than 
the recommendations of the Report of the Mid Staffordshire Public Inquiry which proposed 
an offence where a director provided information they knew not to be true. The offence in 
respect of organisations is a strict liability offence. This means that to establish that an 
offence has been committed only requires that information published or supplied by the 
organisation, that is required to comply with a statutory or other legal obligation, is inaccurate 
or misleading. The intent of the provider to supply accurate information is not a defence and 
not relevant to the offence.   For an offence to have been committed by an individual 
requires first that an offence was committed by the organisation, so it must be shown that 
false or misleading information was published or supplied by the organisation before an 
individual can be prosecuted. However in certain circumstances, the offence could apply 
both to an organisation and to one or more individuals.  The provisions set out above come 
into force from 1 April 2015. 
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With cancer data not yet available for March the trust is forecasting a Green rating for the 
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March 2015 Monitor Risk Assessment Scorecard April 2014 to March 2015 

Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust

Monitor Indicators of Governance Concerns - October 2013 - March 2015 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Q4 Actual/
Forecast Target Weighting

*A&E - 95% of patients admitted, transferred or discharged within 4-hours 93.3% 95.9% 95.6% 94.3% 91.0% 96.5% 95.7% 94.5% >= 95% 1.0

*C difficile number of cases against  plan2&3 22 17 18 9 7 7 0 14 Q4 <= 13 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in
aggregate for admitted patients 90.7% 91.9% 90.8% 90.6% 90.2% 90.7% 90.0% 90.3% >=90% 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in
aggregate for non-admitted patients 97.0% 97.4% 97.3% 97.7% 96.8% 96.7% 96.7% 96.8% >=95% 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in
aggregate for patients on an incomplete pathways 92.1% 92.2% 92.5% 92.3% 92.2% 92.1% 92.1% 92.1% >=92% 1.0

**All Cancer 31 day second or subsequent treatment -
surgery 99.3% 97.9% 98.1% 100.0% 98.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=94%
drug 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=98%
radiotherapy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 97.6% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=94%

**All Cancer 62 days wait for first treatment:
from urgent GP referrals: 86.1% 84.1% 85.2% 78.7% 72.2% 76.0% Fail Fail >=85%
from a screening service 97.8% 95.9% 94.9% 88.5% 100.0% 96.2% Compliant Compliant >= 90%

**All cancers: 31 day wait from diagnosis to first treatment 99.0% 98.3% 98.5% 99.3% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=96% 1.0

**Cancer: two week wait from referral to date first seen
All cancers 95.4% 94.9% 94.9% 95.8% 95.4% 96.3% Compliant Compliant >=93%
Symptomatic breast patients 94.6% 94.5% 94.3% 96.4% 91.1% 94.7% Compliant Compliant >=93%

Compliance with requirements regarding access to healthcare for people with 
learning disabilities

Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant
Meeting the 

6 criteria
1.0

Monitor overall governance thresholds: Trust Rating: Green Red Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1

Green: a service performance score of <4.0 and <3 consecutive quarters' 
breaches of a single metric

Weighting: 2 2 0 1 2 1 1 1

Red: a service performance score of >=4.0 and >=3 consecutive quarters' 
breaches of a single metric 

* Denotes actual data for March 2015
**Cancer & 18-weeks data is not available for March 2015
Note: C. difficile RAG rating applied on the basis of the cumulative quarterly 
expression of the trajectory

1The overall trust rating has been modified following application of the Monitor governance framework adjustment, refer to page 9
2The C. difficile trajectory has been reduced by 4 in year as a result of inpatient activity transfers to the North Middlesex hospital resulting from the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey strategy  
3The C. difficile confirmed fail for Q4 is on the basis of the cumulative trajectory used by Monitor to measure performance.   
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March 2015 Monitor Risk Assessment Scorecard April 2014 to March 2015 

Royal Free Hospital

Monitor Indicators of Governance Concerns - October 2013 - March 2015 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Q4 Actual/
Forecast Target Weighting

*A&E - 95% of patients admitted, transferred or discharged within 4-hours 96.0% 95.8% 94.4% 91.9% 89.2% 97.1% 95.4% 93.9% >= 95% 1.0

*C difficile number of cases against  plan2 5 5 9 4 3 4 0 7 Q4 <=9 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in aggregate for 
admitted patients 90.7% 91.9% 90.8% 90.6% 90.2% 90.7% 90.0% 90.3% >=90% 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in aggregate for 
non-admitted patients 97.0% 97.4% 97.3% 97.7% 96.8% 96.7% 96.7% 96.8% >=95% 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in aggregate for 
patients on an incomplete pathways

92.1% 92.0% 92.5% 92.3% 92.2% 92.1% 92.1% 92.1% >=92% 1.0

**All Cancer 31 day second or subsequent treatment -
surgery 98.8% 97.4% 96.9% 100.0% 95.5% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=94%
drug 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=98%
radiotherapy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 97.6% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=94%

**All Cancer 62 days wait for first treatment:
from urgent GP referrals: 86.7% 88.5% 88.5% 83.3% 80.0% 89.1% Fail Fail >=85%
from a screening service 92.9% 92.3% 95.5% 84.6% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >= 90%

**All cancers: 31 day wait from diagnosis to first treatment 98.7% 97.2% 96.7% 98.3% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=96% 1.0

**Cancer: two week wait from referral to date first seen
All cancers 98.0% 97.2% 98.1% 99.1% 99.8% 99.2% Compliant Compliant >=93%
Symptomatic breast patients 97.2% 98.0% 96.0% 98.1% 95.8% 99.5% Compliant Compliant >=93%

Compliance with requirements regarding access to healthcare for people with 
learning disabilities

Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant
Meeting the 

6 criteria
1.0

Monitor overall governance thresholds: Trust Rating: Green Green Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1

Green: a service performance score of <4.0 and <3 consecutive quarters' 
breaches of a single metric

Weighting: 1 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Red: a service performance score of >=4.0 and >=3 consecutive quarters' 
breaches of a single metric 

* Denotes actual data for March 2015
**Cancer & 18-weeks data is not available for March 2015 
Note: C. difficile RAG rating applied on the basis of the cumulative quarterly 
expression of the trajectory

1The overall trust rating has been modified following application of the Monitor governance framework adjustment, refer to page 9
3Compliance against the C. difficile indicator for Q4 is on the basis of the cumulative trajectory used by Monitor to measure performance.  

2014/15
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March 2015 Monitor Risk Assessment Scorecard April 2014 to March 2015 

Barnet Hospital and Chase Farm Hospital

Monitor Indicators of Governance Concerns - October 2013 - March 2015 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Q4 Actual/
Forecast Target Weighting

*A&E - 95% of patients admitted, transferred or discharged within 4-hours 91.4% 96.0% 96.4% 95.9% 92.2% 96.1% 95.9% 94.8% >= 95% 1.0

*C difficile number of cases against  plan2 &3 17 12 9 5 4 3 0 7 Q4 <= 4 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in
aggregate for admitted patients >=90% 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in
aggregate for non-admitted patients >=95% 1.0

**Maximum time of 18 weeks from point of referral to treatment in
aggregate for patients on an incomplete pathways

>=92% 1.0

**All Cancer 31 day second or subsequent treatment -
surgery 100.0% 98.4% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=94%
drug 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=98%
radiotherapy NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA >=94%

**All Cancer 62 days wait for first treatment:
from urgent GP referrals: 85.7% 81.4% 83.0% 76.3% 67.7% 68.2% Fail Fail >=85%
from a screening service 97.5% 96.0% 94.3% 90.1% 100.0% 93.8% Compliant Compliant >= 90%

**All cancers: 31 day wait from diagnosis to first treatment 99.4% 99.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Compliant Compliant >=96% 1.0

**Cancer: two week wait from referral to date first seen
All cancers 94.4% 94.0% 93.2% 94.1% 92.8% 94.9% Compliant Compliant >=93%
Symptomatic breast patients 93.5% 92.6% 93.5% 95.4% 88.5% 92.1% Compliant Fail >=93%

Compliance with requirements regarding access to healthcare for people with 
learning disabilities

Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant
Meeting the 

6 criteria
1.0

Monitor overall governance thresholds: Trust Rating: Red Red Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1 Green1

Green: a service performance score of <4.0 and <3 consecutive quarters' breaches 
of a single metric

Weighting: 2 3 1 1 2 2 1 2

Red: a service performance score of >=4.0 and >=3 consecutive quarters' breaches 
of a single metric 

* Denotes actual data for March 2015
**Cancer data is not available for March 2015. Barnet and Chase Farm are not 
currently reporting against the 18-weeks RTT indicators.    
Note: C. difficile RAG rating applied on the basis of the cumulative quarterly 
expression of the trajectory

1The overall trust rating has been modified following application of the Monitor governance framework adjustment, refer to page 9
2The C. difficile trajectory has been reduced by 4 in year as a result of inpatient activity transfers to the North Middlesex hospital resulting from the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey strategy  

3The C. difficile confirmed fail for Q4 is on the basis of the cumulative trajectory used by Monitor to measure performance.
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Trust Performance Dashboard 
Month: March 2015 

Commentary and Exception Report  

 

Risk Assessment Framework Ratings Summary    
With cancer data not yet available for March the trust is forecasting a Green rating for the month and the quarter. Against known data the following 
outcomes can be reported: 
 
A&E:  
The combined trust outturned March at 95.7% and quarter 4 at 94.5% against the 95% standard. For March the Royal Free hospital site recorded a 
performance of 95.4% and 93.9% for the quarter, Barnet hospital site 94.4% for March and 93.0% for the quarter with Chase Farm hospital site recording 
100% for March and the quarter. Combining the Barnet and Chase Farm sites, the shape of the legacy organisation, results in a performance of 95.9% for 
March and 94.8% for the quarter. Despite significantly improved performance during February and March the volume of breaches recorded during January 
resulted in target failure for the quarter. A number of factors have influenced performance during quarters 3 and 4, including reduced bed flow, an increase 
in Delayed Transfers of Care and those medically fit patients pending transfer as well as increased A&E attendances. At the Royal Free hospital site 
attendances increased by 9.4% during quarter 3 and by 1% in quarter 4 against the same period in 2013/14. Barnet hospital site attendances increased by 
3% during quarter 4 compared to the same quarter in 2013/14. 
 
Mitigating actions include weekly meetings with Commissioners as well as representatives of NHS community and Local Authority provided services 
designed to ensure improved bed flow and reductions in Delayed Transfers of Care as well as other initiatives. In addition the majority of the trust's winter 
pressure schemes have been funded and will be retained until the end of April 15. 
 
C. difficile: 
The Royal Free hospital and Barnet and Chase Farm hospital sites recorded zero infections against a trajectory of 3 and 1 respectively. Monitor manages this 
indicator against the cumulative quarterly expression of performance. For quarter 4 the Royal Free hospital site recorded 25 infections against a quarterly 
trajectory of 38, Barnet and Chase Farm hospital sites 33 infections against a quarterly trajectory of 16 with the combined trust recording 58 infections 
against a quarterly trajectory of 54. The trust has therefore failed the quarter 4 trajectory and its annual plan.  
 
Cancer 62 Days from GP referral:  
The combined trust failed the All Cancer 62 Days from GP Referral element of the indicator outturning February at 76.0% against the 85% standard; 
however this is in line with the trusts quarter 4 recovery trajectory. Both Barnet CCG, and NHS England in its Commissioner role, have taken contractual 
action against the trust on this standard. This arises because they are dissatisfied with the remedial action plan that the trust produced to show how it 
would return to compliance. This contractual action is currently being addressed. This includes the recent submission of an enhanced recovery and 
sustainability plan which has been fully discussed with both Barnet CCG and NHS England. 
 
Mitigating actions in relation to the All Cancer 62 Day GP referred standard include: 

1. A full recovery plan has been implemented addressing all stages of treatment and tumour sites     
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2. A revised 62 day breach avoidance escalation process has been implemented across all tumour sites 
3. Improved capacity has been provided for Urology diagnostic tests including MRI and TRUS/TEMPLATE biopsy 
4. Active shared pathway meetings are being initiated with referring and receiving trusts such as UCLH, Brompton and the Royal Marsden with 

referrals to these trusts actively tracked by the trust's Cancer MDT      
 
Symptomatic breast two week wait: 
The combined trust failed the indicator during January recording 91.1% against the 93% standard. Data strongly suggested that the high volume of breaches 
recorded in January would trigger a fail for quarter 4. A recovery trajectory was therefore set out presenting the maximum volume of breaches that could 
be tolerated each day and week to achieve compliance at the end of the quarter. The trajectory was achieved with February outturning at 94.7%, March at 
95.7% and quarter 4 at 94.1%. 
 
Monitor governance adjustment: 
The trust is currently at risk of triggering governance concerns against the following indicators: 
 
A&E: The trust failed the indicator for quarter 3 and quarter 4. In relation to this standard a governance concern may be triggered after breaching the 
standard in two quarters over any four quarter period. However risk against this standard was identified prior to acquisition and is taken account of in the 
Monitor governance framework adjustment. The trust advised Monitor that it expected to return to compliance in quarter 2 2015/16.     
 
C. difficile: The trust has been in breach of the quarterly cumulative trajectory for four consecutive quarters and has breached the year to date target. A 
governance concern may be triggered following three consecutive quarters’ breaches or breaching the full year trajectory. The risk against this standard 
was also identified prior to acquisition and is also taken account of in the Monitor governance framework adjustment. The trust advised Monitor that it 
expected to return to compliance in quarter 4 2015/16.     
 
Cancer 62 Days from GP referral: The trust failed the indicator in quarter 3 and is at High risk of failing quarter 4, this would be a planned fail designed to 
ensure backlog clearance with the objective of returning to compliance in quarter 1 2015/16. Assuming compliance is achieved in quarter 1 then the trust 
will have recorded two consecutive quarters’ failures and will avoid a third. This indicator was not identified as a risk pre‐acquisition.   
 
The governance framework adjustment referenced above in respect of A&E and C. difficile performance has been applied to the Monitor scorecard ratings 
on pages 2 to 4 of this paper.     
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FINANCE PERFORMANCE REPORT MARCH 2014/15 
 
 

Executive summary  

Income & Expenditure Position 
The month 12 year to date position is a deficit before impairments and absorption of 
£2.0m which is an adverse variance of £10.1m compared to plan.  
 
The £2.0m deficit before impairments and absorption for the year compares to a 
surplus of £62k within the re-forecast submitted to Monitor earlier in the year. 
 
The impact of accounting adjustments for fixed asset impairments and gains on 
transfers by absorption resulting from the acquisition is £182.2, thus the retained 
surplus for the year is £180.2m. These accounting adjustments do not affect the 
Monitor COSR risk rating.  
 
Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure in March was £10.8m with a year to date spend of £43.7m. This is in line 
with the re-forecast submitted to Monitor earlier in the year. 
 
Cash 
The cash balance at the end of March was £94.6m which compares to original plan of 
£88.5m.  
 
Monitor Continuity of Service Risk Rating 
The overall risk rating is 4 for the year compared to the plan of 4. This is an 
improvement from a rating of 3 for the second quarter and reflects improved EBITDA 
performance since October. 
 

 

 

Action required  

For discussion. 

 

Trust strategic priorities and business planning objectives 
supported by this paper  

Board assurance risk 
number(s) 

3. Excellent financial performance – to be in the top 10% of 
relevant peers on financial performance 

 

 

CQC outcomes supported by this paper  
26 Financial position 

 

Report to 
 

Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board 29 April 2015 Paper 10 
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Equality analysis  

No identified negative impact on equality and diversity 

 

Report from Caroline Clarke, Director of Finance 
Author(s)          Mike Dinan, Director of Financial Operations   
    Edmund Knight-Jones, Assistant Director of Finance  
 
Date 24 April 2015 
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Current Month Year to Date

Income & Expenditure Budget Actual
Surplus/ 

(Deficit)
Budget Actual

Surplus/ 

(Deficit)

MARCH 2015 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue

NHS Clinical Revenue 68,201 63,453 (4,749) 718,266 714,168 (4,097)

Non-NHS Clinical Revenue 2,298 2,097 (201) 25,986 25,710 (276)

Other Operating Revenue 9,953 10,603 650 114,783 114,225 (558)

Total Operating Revenue 80,452 76,152 (4,300) 859,035 854,103 (4,932)

Permanent Staff (41,446) (36,530) 4,916 (439,805) (389,523) 50,282

Bank Staff (246) (3,840) (3,594) (1,236) (32,257) (31,021)

Agency Staff (691) (4,095) (3,405) (5,461) (35,387) (29,926)

Total Employee Expenses (42,382) (44,465) (2,082) (446,502) (457,167) (10,665)

Reimbursable Drugs & Devices (12,215) (13,820) (1,605) (144,031) (149,554) (5,523)

Clinical Supplies (8,278) (9,657) (1,379) (94,203) (97,463) (3,260)

Other Expenses (13,404) (14,938) (1,534) (142,164) (142,680) (515)

Total Non-Pay Expenses (33,898) (38,415) (4,517) (380,398) (389,696) (9,298)

Total Operating Expenditure (55,581) (63,011) (7,430) (616,766) (629,839) (13,073)

Divisional Contribution Total 4,172 (6,727) (10,900) 32,135 7,240 (24,894)

Transaction support and central provisions 2,995 1,896 (1,099) 26,926 25,726 (1,200)

Reserves (576) 4,586 5,163 (14,423) (1,809) 12,614

EBITDA 6,591 (245) (6,836) 44,637 31,158 (13,480)

Disposals, Depreciation, Interest & Dividends 3,280 4,637 1,357 (36,533) (33,111) 3,422

Surplus/(Deficit) before Impairments & Absorption 9,871 4,392 (5,479) 8,104 (1,953) (10,058)

Fixed asset impairments (4,648)

Gains arising from transfers by absorption 186,835

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 180,233

Monitor Continuity of Services Risk Rating
Year To 

Date
Status

Liquidity Rating 4

Debt Service Cover Rating 3

Overall 4

Monitor Indicators of Forward Financial Risk Status
Direction of 

Travel

The planned debt service cover ratio is 3. This is being achieved for the 

year to date due to the improved EBITDA performance in previous 

months.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

MARCH 2015

Income & Expenditure Position

The month position for the year excluding impairments and absorption is a deficit of £2.0m which is an adverse variance of 

£10.1m compared to plan. In the current month there is an adverse variance against the income and expenditure plan of 

£5.5m. 

The key areas of adverse performance against plan for the year to date are:

- NHS clinical income £4.1m adverse (£4.7m adverse in month)

- Pay overspend £10.7m adverse (£2.1m adverse in month)

- Non-Pay overspend £9.3m adverse (£4.5m adverse in month)

- There are favourable variances for the year to date against reserves and against depreciation and dividends primarily due to 

asset revaluation.

Capital Expenditure

The YTD capital spend is £43.7m, this compares to an original plan of £88m.

Cash

The cash balance at the end of March was £94.6m which compares to original plan of £88.5m.

Monitor Continuity of Service Risk Rating

The overall risk rating is 4 for the year compared to the plan of 4. This is an improvement from a rating of 3 for the second 

quarter and reflects improved EBITDA performance since October.

Commentary

The planned liquidity rating is 4. Performance remains in line with plan 

due to the substantial cash balance.

The planned overall rating is 4. Performance is now in line with plan.

Commentary

Unplanned decrease in EBITDA margin in two consecutive quarters EBITDA margin was favourable against original plan in quarter 3 2014/15

Quarterly certification by trust that FRR may be less than 3 in next 12 

months

The Finance and Performance has confirmed that a rating of at least 3 is 

planned for the next 12 months. 

Financial Risk Rating 2 for any one quarter
The Trust has never had a financial risk rating of below 3 in any one 

quarter.

Working capital facility used in previous quarter The working capital facility has not yet been used.

Debtors > 90 days past due account for more than 5% of total debtor 

balances
Debtors over 90 days net of provisions are greater than 5%.

Quarter end cash balance <10 days of operating expenses or < £4 

million
The month end cash balance is £78.1m.

Capital expenditure less than 75% or more than 125% of plan for year-

to-date
Capital expenditure year to date is 50% of the plan.

Creditors > 90 days past due account for more than 5% of total 

creditor balances
Creditors over 90 days are greater than 5%.

Two or more changes in Finance Director in a twelve month period No change in Finance Director in last 12 months.

Interim Finance Director in place over more than one quarter-end Permanent Finance Director in post since January 2011.
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LEGACY BARNET AND CHASE FARM 3 MONTH REPORT AND ACCOUNTS TO 30TH 

JUNE 2014 

 
 

 

Executive summary 

 

The Audit Committee will be reviewing the latest version of the legacy Barnet and Chase 

Farm 3 month report and accounts on 28th April 2015 and will be making a recommendation 

to the Board on whether to approve them. 

 
 

 

 

Action required 

For approval. 

 

 

 

 

Report from C Clarke 

Date 29 April 2015 
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Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board 
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014Data entered below will be used throughout the workbook:

Trust name Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust

This year 2014-15 (Q1)

This year header 2014-15 (April - June 2014)

Last year 2013-14

This year ended 30 June 2014

Last year ended 31 March 2014

This year commencing: 1 April 2014

Last year commencing: 1 April 2013

 Accounts 2014-15 (Q1) (April - June 2014)
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Statement of Comprehensive Income for period ended

30 June 2014
2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

NOTE £000s £000s

Gross employee benefits 10.1 (52,723) (210,072)

Other operating costs 8 (42,338) (135,916)

Revenue from patient care activities 5 67,344 308,352

Other Operating revenue 6 8,307 31,288

Operating surplus/(deficit) (19,410) (6,348)

Investment revenue 12 7 38

Other gains and (losses) 13 2 (72)

Finance costs 14 (828) (3,423)

Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year (20,229) (9,805)

Public dividend capital dividends payable (1,740) (6,560)

  Transfers by absorption - gains 0 0

  Transfers by absorption - (losses) (186,645) 0

Net Gain/(loss) on transfers by absorption (186,645) 0

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (208,614) (16,365)

Other Comprehensive Income 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Impairments and reversals taken to the Revaluation Reserve 0 (272)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment (7,531) 17,373

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Other gain /(loss) (explain in footnote below) 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes 0 0

Other Pension Remeasurements 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments

   On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Total Comprehensive Income for the year* (216,145) 736

Financial performance for the year
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (208,614) (16,365)

Prior period adjustment to correct errors and other performance adjustments 0 0

IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments) 0 0

Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments) 5,910 911

Adjustments in respect of donated gov't grant asset reserve elimination (75) (382)

Adjustment re Absorption accounting 186,645 0

Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit) (16,134) (15,836)
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Statement of Financial Position as at

30 June 2014
30 June 2014 31 March 2014

NOTE £000s £000s

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 15 0 256,767

Intangible assets 0 0

Investment property 0 0

Other Investments - Charitable 0 0

Other financial assets 0 0

Trade and other receivables 20.1 0 7,275

Total non-current assets 0 264,042

Current assets:

Inventories 19 0 3,467

Trade and other receivables 20.1 0 26,796

Other financial assets 0 0

Other current assets 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 21 0 2,239

Total current assets 0 32,502

Non-current assets held for sale 0 0

Total current assets 0 32,502

Total assets 0 296,544

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 0 (38,145)

Other liabilities 0 0

Provisions 26 0 (2,880)

Borrowings 23 0 (6,654)

Other financial liabilities 0 0

Working capital loan from Department 0 0

Capital loan from Department 0 0

Total current liabilities 0 (47,679)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 0 (15,177)

Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities 0 248,865

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 0 0

Other Liabilities 0 0

Provisions 26 0 (3,839)

Borrowings 23 0 (32,950)

Other financial liabilities 0 0

Working capital loan from Department 0 0

Capital loan from Department 0 0

Total non-current liabilities 0 (36,789)

Total Assets Employed: 0 212,076

FINANCED BY:

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

Public Dividend Capital 0 142,568

Retained earnings 0 (44,174)

Revaluation reserve 0 113,682

Charitable Funds Reserve

Other reserves 0 0

Total Taxpayers' Equity: 0 212,076

      

The notes on pages 5 to 42 form part of this account.

David Sloman

Chief Executive

The financial statements on pages 1 to 42  were approved by the Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust Board on 29th April 

2015  and signed on its behalf by
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity

For the period ended 30 June 2014

Public 

Dividend 

capital

Retained 

earnings

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 142,568 (44,174) 113,682 0 212,076

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15 (Q1)

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 0 (208,614) 0 0 (208,614)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 0 0 (7,531) 0 (7,531)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0 0

Other gains/(loss) (provide details below) 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 2,443 (2,443) 0 0

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - PCTs & SHAs 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - Other Bodies 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments

Transfers to/(from) Other Bodies within the Resource Account Boundary 0 250,345 (103,708) 0 146,637

Transfers between Revaluation Reserve & Retained Earnings in respect of 

assets transferred under absorption

0 0 0 0 0

On Disposal of Available for Sale financial Assets 0 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0 0

Originating capital for Trust established in year 8,069 0 0 0 8,069

New PDC Received - Cash (4,000) 0 0 0 (4,000)

New PDC Received/(Repaid) - PCTs and SHAs Legacy items paid for by 

Department of Health

0 0 0 0 0

PDC Repaid In Year 0 0 0 0 0

PDC Written Off 0 0 0 0 0

Transferred to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0

Other Movements (146,637) 0 0 0 (146,637)

Revaluation and impairment of Charitable fund assets 0 0 0 0 0

Charitable Funds Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0

Net Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Pension 0 0 0 0 0

Other Pensions Remeasurement 0 0 0 0 0

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year (142,568) 44,174 (113,682) 0 (212,076)

Transfers between reserves in respect of modified absorption - PCTs & 

SHAs

0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves in respect of modified absorption - Other 

Bodies

0 0 0 0

Balance at 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 1 April 2013 119,080 (28,123) 96,384 0 187,341

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 March 2014

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 0 (16,365) 0 0 (16,365)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 0 0 17,373 0 17,373

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 (272) 0 (272)

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to Statement of Comprehensive Income 0 0 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments

Transfers to/(from) Other Bodies within the Resource Account Boundary 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers between Revaluation Reserve & Retained Earnings Reserve in 

respect of assets transferred under absorption

0 511 0 0 511

On Disposal of Available for Sale financial Assets 0 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0 0

Originating capital for Trust established in year 0 0 0 0 0

New PDC Received 31,488 0 0 0 31,488

PDC Repaid In Year (8,000) 0 0 0 (8,000)

PDC Written Off 0 0 0 0 0

Transferred to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0

Other Movements in PDC In Year 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation and impairment of Charitable fund assets 0 0 0 0 0

Charitable Funds Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0

Net Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Pension 0 0 0 0 0

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 23,488 (15,854) 17,101 0 24,735

Transfers between reserves in respect of modified absorption - PCTs & 

SHAs

0 (217) 217 0 0

Transfers between reserves in respect of modified absorption - Other 

Bodies

0 20 (20) 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2014 142,568 (44,174) 113,682 0 212,076
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

30 June 2014
2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) (19,410) (6,348)

Depreciation and Amortisation 2,677 10,089

Impairments and Reversals 5,910 911

Other Gains/(Losses) on foreign exchange 0 0

Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash (75) (417)

Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Interest Paid (809) (3,423)

Dividend (Paid)/Refunded 0 (6,300)

Release of PFI/deferred credit 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 41 452

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (3,449) (7,072)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 0 0

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 12,335 9,150

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities 0 0

Provisions Utilised (90) (1,727)

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (1,544) (5,107)

NHS Charitable Funds - net adjustments for working capital movements, non-cash 

transactions and non-operating cash flows

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities (4,414) (9,792)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest Received 7 38

(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment (765) (17,077)

(Payments) for Intangible Assets 0 0

(Payments) for Investments with DH 0 0

(Payments) for Other Financial Assets 0 0

(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 0 0

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (Intangible) 0 0

Proceeds from Disposal of Investment with DH 0 0

Proceeds from Disposal of Other Financial Assets 0 0

Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0

Loans Made in Respect of LIFT 0 0

Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFT 0 0

Rental Revenue 0 0

NHS Charitable Funds - net cash flows relating to investing activities

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (758) (17,039)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEFORE FINANCING (5,172) (26,831)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Public Dividend Capital Received 8,069 31,488

Public Dividend Capital Repaid (4,000) (8,000)

Loans received from DH - New Capital Investment Loans 0 0

Loans received from DH - New Revenue Support Loans 0 0

Other Loans Received 0 0

Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal 0 0

Loans repaid to DH - Revenue Support Loans 0 0

Other Loans Repaid 0 0

Cash transferred to NHS Foundation Trusts 0 0

Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-SoFP PFI and LIFT (327) (1,307)

Capital grants and other capital receipts (excluding donated / government granted cash receipts) 0 0

NHS Charitable Funds - net cash flows relating to Financing activities

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities 3,742 22,181

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,430) (4,650)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the Period 2,239 6,889

Transfers by Absorption (809) 0

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end 0 2,239
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (30 JUNE 2014)

1. Accounting Policies 

The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the 

accounting requirements of the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM 

Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

2014-15 NHS Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health as this is the latest version 

available at the time of producing the accounts.  The accounting policies contained in that manual follow 

International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the 

NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  

Where the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy 

which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the trust for the purpose of 

giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by the trust are described 

below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the 

accounts.  

1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the 

revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets 

and financial liabilities.

1.2 Acquisitions and discontinued operations

Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector.  

Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely.  They are not considered to be 

‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.3 Movement of assets within the DH Group

Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with 

the Treasury FReM.  The FReM does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions 

(which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been restated.  Absorption 

accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with 

no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  Where assets 

and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the SOCNE/SOCNI, and is disclosed 

separately from operating costs.

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Group are accounted for in line with IAS20 and similarly 

give rise to income and expenditure entries.

For transfers of assets and liabilities from those NHS bodies that closed on 1 April 2013, Treasury has 

agreed that a modified absorption approach should be applied.  For these transactions only, gains and 

losses are recognised in reserves rather than the SOCNE/SOCNI.

1.4 Charitable Funds

From 2013-14 onwards, the divergence from the FReM that NHS Charitable Funds are not consolidated 

with NHS Trust's own returns is removed.  Under the provisions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 

Financial Statements , those Charitable Funds that fall under common control with NHS bodies are 

consolidated within the entity's financial statements.  In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 

Statements , restated prior period accounts are presented where the adoption of the new policy has a 

material impact. The Barnet and Chase Farm Charity was removed from the Charity Commissioner 

register during 2014/15 and therefore the charity has not been consolidated into the Trust accounts.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from those 

estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 

only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 

future periods.

1.5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that 

management has made in the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies and that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 - The Trust does not hold any material assets that, in its judgement, meet the criteria on intangible 

assets under IAS 38 intangible assets.

 - The Trust does not have any contractual arrangements that contain material embedded leases that 

are required to be capitalised under IFRIC 4.

 - The Trust has used component lives based on historic data provided by the District Valuer to 

depreciate building and dwellings on a component basis. 

 - The Trust had estimated the provisions for pensions relating to former staff using estimates provided 

by the NHS Pensions Agency provided at the time of the member's early retirement. These were last  

revised on 31/03/13 using revised estimates from the NHS Pensions Agency.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year

 - In order to calculate the carrying value of the Trust's provisions there are a number of areas which require to 

be estimated:

 (i) The Trust will need to estimate the amount of its liability. In the case of legal claims, for example, it uses 

the advice of experts but the actual amount of the liability will not be known until the outcome of the litigation.

(ii) The Trust will need to estimate the probability of a liability existing. The outcome of litigation may be 

uncertain but the Trust will use the advice of its experts on whether it is probable that it will be found liable.

(iii) In the cases of pension and other benefits payable in the future, an estimate will be made of the length of 

time that payment will be required to be made, using actuarial mortality tables and the discount rate used to 

estimate the present value of the estimate future payments.

(iv) In the cases of redundancy payments payable in future years, an estimate has been made using average 

length of service and salary of the affected staff.

 - The Trust has estimated the level of recovery of its non NHS receivable and made allowances (£1,530,000 

as at 30th June 2014) for the expected level of impairment to those receivables. Actual experience may differ 

from these estimates. 

 - The Trust has made an estimate for holiday pay accrual based on a sample of leavers within the last 3 

months of the year.

1.6 Revenue  

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and 

is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.  The main source of revenue for the trust is from 

commissioners for healthcare services.  Revenue relating to patient care spells that are part-completed at the 

year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis of length of stay at the end of the reporting 

period compared to expected total length of stay.

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is 

deferred.

The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of 

treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an 

insurer.  The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and 

Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is 

measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for 

unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

1.7 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is 

received from employees. The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is 

recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into 

the following period.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The scheme is an 

unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under 

the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that 

would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the 

scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the 

scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. 

The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Trust commits itself to 

the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

1.8 Other expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. 

They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the Trust;

● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, 

where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to 

have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or

● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their 

individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, 

the components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring 

or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the Trust's services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial 

position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially 

different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined 

as follows:

● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern 

equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an 

alternative site can be valued.  

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any 

impairment loss.  Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses 

immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation 

commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially 

different from fair value.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment 

for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the 

extent of the decrease previously charged there.  A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of 

economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the 

extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses 

that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses 

recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable 

cost is capitalised.  Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the 

expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to 

operating expenses.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and 

equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a 

manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated 

useful life of an asset is the period over which the Trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service 

potential from the asset. This is specific to the  Trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset 

itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes 

recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated 

useful lives 

At each reporting period end, the Trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or 

intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, 

the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its 

amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised 

as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for 

the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic 

benefit should be taken to expenditure.  Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount 

that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of the impairment 

loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the 

revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed 

Expenditure (AME).  This is necessary to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.  DEL limits are set in 

the Spending Review and Departments may not exceed the limits that they have been set.

AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget. 

Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above 

forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean departments do 

not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial year, any expected increases in 

AME require Treasury approval.

1.11 Donated assets

Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to Income. 

They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on 

revaluations, impairments and sales are as described above for purchased assets.  Deferred income is 

recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.12 Government grants 

The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly to income.  Deferred 

income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.13 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through 

a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when the sale is 

highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and management is 

committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from 

the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous 

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 

amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  On disposal, the balance for the 

asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held 

for sale.  Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-

recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.14 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 

transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Trust as lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, 

at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the 

lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of 

the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  

Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease 

incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually 

assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases. 

The Trust as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the  Trust’s 

net investment in the leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a 

constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial 

direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 

leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.15 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes where the 

government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the 

end of the arrangement as service concession arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of 

IFRIC 12. The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of property, plant and equipment together 

with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract are recorded as operating expenses.

11

Paper 11



Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation 

techniques where necessary:

a)      Payment for the fair value of services received;

b)      Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and

c)       Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

Services received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within 

‘operating expenses’.

PFI Asset

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are 

measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are 

measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the Trust’s approach for each relevant 

class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI liability

A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the 

same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in 

accordance with IAS 17. 

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease 

liability for the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the 

annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance 

lease. In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead 

treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect 

of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income.

Lifecycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised 

where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided 

by the operator and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year 

of the contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle 

component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is 

recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the 

difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the 

amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance 

is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the shorter of the remaining 

contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the Trust to the operator for use in the scheme

Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and 

equipment in the Trust’s Statement of Financial Position.
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other assets contributed by the Trust to the operator

Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the Trust to the operator before the asset is 

brought into use, which are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as 

prepayments during the construction phase of the contract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available 

to the Trust, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the finance lease liability and is set 

against the carrying value of the liability.

1.16 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using FIFO and current prices.  This is 

considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.  

1.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not 

more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of 

acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in 

value.  
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when theTrust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be 

made of the amount of the obligation.  The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 

expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks 

and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its 

carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2 % in real 

terms 1.8% for employee early departure obligations).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be 

received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the 

restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by 

starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.  The measurement of a 

restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those 

amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of 

the entity.

1.19 Clinical negligence costs

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual 

contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to 

expenditure.  Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal 

liability remains with the Trust’.  The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on 

behalf of the trust is disclosed at note 35. 

1.20 Non-clinical risk pooling

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.  Both 

are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority 

and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising.  The annual membership contributions, 

and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when 

they become due.

1.21 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not 

expected to be realised within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets.  They are valued at 

open market value. As the NHS body makes emissions, a provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer 

from deferred income.  The provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The asset, provision and 

deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

1.22 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 

the control of the Trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a 

payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 

sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

Trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.23 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and 

input tax on purchases is not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category 

or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is 

recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.24 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the 

accounts since the trust has no beneficial interest in them.  Details of third party assets are given in Note 34 

to the accounts.

1.25 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend 

Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust.  At any time the Secretary of State can 

issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust.  PDC is recorded at the value received.  

As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity financial 

instrument.

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as 

public dividend capital dividend.  The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 

3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities (except for donated assets and cash 

balances with the Government Banking Service).  The average carrying amount of assets is calculated as a 

simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.

1.26 Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds 

for the health service or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They 

are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments.  They are 

divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals 

basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had NHS Trusts not 

been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.27 Subsidiaries

Material entities over which the Trust, has the power to exercise control so as to obtain economic or other 

benefits are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. Their income and expenses; gains and losses; 

assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial statement 

lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not 

aligned with the Trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is not co-terminus.

Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair 

value less costs to sell’
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Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.28 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2013-14. 

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2013-14, 

were they applied in that year :

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements  - subject to consultation

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - subject to consultation

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation  - subject to consultation

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements  - subject to consultation

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements  - subject to consultation

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  - subject to consultation

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation

IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement - subject to consultation
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2.

The Trust does not operate a pooled budget.

3.

The Trust does not report its financial statements in segments to the decision making body ie Trust Board.

The Trust operates in only one segment, that of provision of acute healthcare services.

No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of the Trust's income.

Pooled Budget

The Trust's main customers are Clincal Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS England which are all considered to 

be under common control. 

The Trust's total income from CCGs and NHS England during the 3 months to June 2014 was £62,429,000 (2013/14 

£306,575,000).

Operating segments
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4.    Income generation activities

5.   Revenue from patient care activities 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

NHS Trusts 872 3,206 

NHS England 340 35,544 

Clinical Commissioning Groups 64,319 261,470 

Primary Care Trusts 0 0 

Strategic Health Authorities 0 0 

NHS Foundation Trusts 628 3,196 

Department of Health 0 0 

NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co) 124 479 

Non-NHS: 

      Local Authorities 431 1,842 

      Private patients 43 115 

      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 84 522 

      Injury costs recovery 360 1,588 

      Other 143 390 

Total Revenue from patient care activities 67,344 308,352 

6.  Other operating revenue 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0

Patient transport services 0 0

Education, training and research 2,467 11,111

Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure - NHS 0 0

Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure -non- NHS 0 0

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions - NHS Charity 75 417

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0
Non-patient care services to other bodies 0 0

Income generation 1,599 6,532

Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0

Rental revenue from operating leases 0 0

Other revenue 4,166 13,228

Total Other Operating Revenue 8,307 31,288

Total operating revenue 75,651 339,640

7.  Revenue 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000 £000

From rendering of services 75,651 339,640

From sale of goods 0 0

The Trust has not undertaken any income generating activities whose costs exceed £1m or are otherwise 

material.
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8.  Operating expenses 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Services from other NHS Trusts 1,096 3,982

Services from CCGs/NHS England 0 3

Services from other NHS bodies 262 2,246

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts** 2,298 6,552

Services from Primary Care Trusts 0 0

Total Services from NHS bodies* 3,656 12,783

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 0 0
Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors 14 57

Supplies and services - clinical 12,857 51,069

Supplies and services - general 2,039 8,062

Consultancy services 2,045 5,009
Establishment 999 4,086

Transport 164 797

Premises 6,155 20,616

Hospitality 23 60

Insurance 83 278

Legal Fees 52 514

Impairments and Reversals of Receivables 308 694

Inventories write down 0 0

Depreciation 2,677 10,089

Amortisation 0 0

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 5,910 911

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 0 0

Impairments and reversals of financial assets 0 0

Impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale 0 0

Impairments and reversals of investment properties 0 0

Audit fees 70 138

Other auditor's remuneration 0 0

Clinical negligence 1,851 8,109

Research and development (excluding staff costs) 0 0

Education and Training 142 662

Change in Discount Rate 0 258

Other 3,293 11,724

Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 42,338 135,916

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits excluding Board members 51,936 209,135

Board members 787 937

Total Employee Benefits 52,723 210,072

Total Operating Expenses 95,061 345,988

*Services from NHS bodies does not include expenditure which falls into a category below

** Service from NHS Foundation Trusts includes costs in 2013/14 relating to the acquisition by the Royal Free London 

Foundation Trust
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9 Operating Leases

2014-15 (Q1)

9.1 Trust as lessee Land Buildings Other Total 2013-14

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 13 55

Contingent rents 0 0

Sub-lease payments 0 0
Total 13 55

Payable:

No later than one year 0 0 31 31 35
Between one and five years 0 0 20 20 30
After five years 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 51 51 65

Total future sublease payments expected to be received: 0 0

The Trust has operating leases for leased cars.
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10 Employee benefits and staff numbers

10.1 Employee benefits

2014-15

Total

Permanently 

employed Other

£000s £000s £000s

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure

Salaries and wages 44,879 37,043 7,836 

Social security costs 3,412 3,172 240 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 4,431 4,298 133 

Other pension costs 1 0 1 

Termination benefits 0 0 0 

Total employee benefits 52,723 44,513 8,210 

Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 52,723 44,513 8,210 

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure 2013-14 Total

Permanently 

employed Other

£000s £000s £000s

Salaries and wages 177,461 150,491 26,970 

Social security costs 14,187 13,244 943 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 18,421 17,897 524 

Other pension costs 3 1 2 

Termination benefits 0 0 0 

TOTAL - including capitalised costs 210,072 181,633 28,439 

Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 210,072 181,633 28,439 

10.2 Staff Numbers
2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number

Average Staff Numbers

Medical and dental 669 606 63 695 

Ambulance staff 0 0 0 0 

Administration and estates 949 779 170 973 

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 407 322 85 445 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 1,432 1,254 178 1,472 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0 0 0 0 

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 684 600 84 683 

Social Care Staff 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 4,141 3,561 580 4,268 

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0 

10.3  Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

Number Number

Total Days Lost 6,823 27,293

Total Staff Years 47,128 188,510

Average working Days Lost 0.14 0.14

2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 0 5 

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 115 
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10.4 Exit Packages agreed in 2014-15 (Q1)

Exit package cost band (including any special 

payment element)

*Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

*Cost of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

Cost of other 

departures 

agreed

Total number 

of exit 

packages by 

cost band Total cost of 

exit packages

Number £s Number £s Number £s

Less than £10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£10,000-£25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£25,001-£50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£50,001-£100,000 1 74,520 0 0 1 74,520

£100,001 - £150,000 1 115,410 0 0 1 115,410

£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

>£200,000 2 484,279 0 0 2 484,279
Total number of exit packages 4 674,209 0 0 4 674,209

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme.  Exit costs in this note are accounted 

for in full in the year of departure.  Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the NHS pensions 

scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year.  Note: The expense associated with these departures may have been 

recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
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10.5 Pension costs 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  Details of the benefits payable under 

these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  The scheme is an unfunded, 

defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary 

of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their 

share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution 

scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for 

the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would 

be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations 

shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This 

utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data 

for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The 

valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2014, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2013, updated to 31 March 2014 

with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 

19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual 

NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS 

Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into 

account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 

2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal 

actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended by HM Treasury on value for money grounds while 

consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions, and while future scheme terms are developed as part of the 

reforms to public service pension provision due in 2015. 

The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the 

consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer 

representatives as deemed appropriate. 

The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 and will be used to inform the 

contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.

c) Scheme provisions 

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is 

not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits 

can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the 

last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of 

membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon 

total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, 

up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on 

changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer 

Price Index (CPI) has been used and replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI).

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of 

fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in 

service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 

amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 

approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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11 Better Payment Practice Code

11.1 Measure of compliance 2014-15 (Q1) 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14 2013-14

Number £000s Number £000s

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 19,056 27,709 90,043 147,695

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 18,284 25,737 87,122 138,112
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 95.95% 92.88% 96.76% 93.51%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 650 4,289 3,214 29,104

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 474 3,738 2,749 26,880
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 72.92% 87.15% 85.53% 92.36%

11.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

0 0

0 0

Total 0 0

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, 

whichever is later.

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation
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12  Investment Revenue 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Rental revenue

PFI finance lease revenue (planned) 0 0

PFI finance lease revenue (contingent) 0 0

Other finance lease revenue 0 0

Subtotal 0 0

Interest revenue

LIFT: equity dividends receivable 0 0

LIFT: loan interest receivable 0 0

Bank interest 7 38

Other loans and receivables 0 0
Impaired financial assets 0 0

Other financial assets 0 0

Subtotal 7 38

Total investment revenue 7 38

13  Other Gains and Losses 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (PPE) 2 (72)

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (intangibles) 0 0

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Financial Assets other then held for sale 0 0

Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale 0 0

Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange 0 0

Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through the SoCI 0 0

Change in fair value of financial liabilities carried at fair value through the SoCI 0 0

Change in fair value of investment property 0 0

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale 0 0

Total 2 (72)

14  Finance Costs 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Interest

   Interest on loans and overdrafts 0 0

   Interest on obligations under finance leases 21 107

Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

    - main finance cost 788 3,227

    - contingent finance cost 0 0

Interest on obligations under LIFT contracts:

    - main finance cost 0 0

    - contingent finance cost 0 0

Interest on late payment of commercial debt 0 0

Total interest expense 809 3,334

Other finance costs 0 0

Provisions - unwinding of discount 19 89

Total  828 3,423
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15.1 Property, plant and equipment

2014-15 (Q1)

Land Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2014 73,494 187,657 2,415 366 39,927 0 17,091 468 321,418

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - 

PCTs & SHAs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - 

Other Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions of Assets Under Construction 731 731

Additions Purchased 0 0 0 0 142 0 0 0 142

Additions Donated 0 0 0 0 75 0 0 0 75

Additions  Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Leased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (5) 0 0 0 (5)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 8,125 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,125

Impairments/negative indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under 

Absorption Accounting (73,494) (195,782) (2,415) (1,097) (40,139) 0 (17,091) (468) (330,486)

At 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation

At 1 April 2014 0 19,835 2,025 0 30,188 0 12,562 41 64,651

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (5) 0 0 0 (5)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 15,571 85 0 0 0 0 0 15,656

Impairments 0 5,851 59 0 0 0 0 0 5,910

Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged During the Year 0 1,389 51 0 711 0 500 26 2,677

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under 

Absorption Accounting 0 (42,646) (2,220) (30,894) 0 (13,062) (67) (88,889)

At 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Book Value at 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Asset financing:

Owned - Purchased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Owned - Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Owned - Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Land Buildings Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2014 26,138 85,305 85 0 1,373 0 780 1 113,682

Transfers under Absorption Accounting (26,138) (85,305) (85) 0 (1,373) 0 (780) (1) (113,682)

At 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions to Assets Under Construction in  Q1 2014/15

£000's

Land 0

Buildings excl Dwellings 133

Dwellings 584

Plant & Machinery 14

Balance as at YTD 731
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15.2 Property, plant and equipment prior-year

2013-14

Land Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 

construction & 

payments on 

account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2013 73,574 148,456 2,330 7,726 39,154 0 16,606 28 287,874

Additions - Assets Under Construction 0 0

Additions - purchased 0 14,851 0 1,094 0 485 422 16,852

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 400 0 0 18 418

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Leased

Reclassifications 0 7,254 0 (7,360) 0 0 0 0 (106)

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 (721) 0 0 0 (721)

Revaluation & indexation gains 0 17,288 85 0 0 0 0 0 17,373

Impairments (80) (192) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (272)

Reversals of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under 

absorption accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2014 73,494 187,657 2,415 366 39,927 0 17,091 468 321,418

Depreciation

At 1 April 2013 0 14,487 1,851 0 27,570 0 10,364 28 54,300

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (649) 0 0 0 (649)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of Impairments 0 911 0 0 0 0 0 0 911

Charged During the Year 0 4,437 174 0 3,267 0 2,198 13 10,089

Transfer to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under 

absorption accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2014 0 19,835 2,025 0 30,188 0 12,562 41 64,651

Net book value at 31 March 2014 73,494 167,822 390 366 9,739 0 4,529 427 256,767

Asset financing:

Owned - Purchased 73,494 108,566 390 366 8,447 0 4,529 410 196,202

Owned - Donated 0 35 0 0 439 0 0 17 491

Owned - Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 853 0 0 0 853

On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 59,221 0 0 0 0 0 0 59,221

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2014 73,494 167,822 390 366 9,739 0 4,529 427 256,767
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15.3 (cont). Property, plant and equipment

Building components:

Main structure                             1-100 years

Internal Finishes                             1-80 years

Lifts                                                   1-22 years

Communications                       1-33 years

Engineering installations           1-21 years

Software Licences                       1-5 years

Plant & Machinery                   1-15 years

Information Technology  1-15 years

Furniture and Fittings                 1-10 years

Buildings and dwellings have been depreciated on a component basis.

The Trust's land and buildings were revalued again through a full revaluation as at 30th June 2014 by Montagu Evans, Chartered Surveyors.  The valuation 

report was signed by Mr Gary Howes BSc MRICS, who is a partner of Montagu Evans and a member of the Royal Instituation of Chartered Surveyors. The 

valuation  was carried out on a Modern  Equivalent asset (MEA) basis. The MEA basis requires the valuer to review the building in use and value them on the 

basis of what it would cost to build a new structure capable of providing identical services.

This resulted in a net decrease to the Trust's property portfolio due to price changes, change in usage and revised remaining lives since the last valuation.

Assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the following estimated useful economic lives:

Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals Charitable Funds donated capital eqipment to the value of £0.1m between April - June 2014.
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16  Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2014-15 (Q1) 2014-15 (Q1)

Total

£000s

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Over-specification of assets 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

Changes in market price 5,910

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 5,910

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI 5,910

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to SoCI

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Over-specification of assets 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

Changes in market price 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0

Total Impairments of Intangibles charged to SoCI 0

Financial Assets charged to SoCI

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0

Total Impairments of Financial Assets charged to SoCI 0

Non-current assets held for sale - impairments and reversals charged to SoCI.

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

Changes in market price 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0

Total impairments of non-current assets held for sale charged to SoCI 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME 5,910

Overall Total Impairments 5,910

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above

PPE  - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL 0

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL 0
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17  Commitments

17.1 Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 30 June not otherwise included in these financial statements:

30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

Property, plant and equipment 5,161 2,485

Intangible assets 0 0

Total 5,161 2,485

17.2 Other financial commitments 

30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

Not later than one year 0 0

Later than one year and not later than five year 0 0

Later than five years 0 0

Total 0 0

18 Intra-Government and other balances Current 

receivables

Non-current 

receivables

Current 

payables

Non-current 

payables

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balances with other Central Government Bodies 0 0 0 0

Balances with Local Authorities 0 0 0 0

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 0 0 0 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 0 0 0 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 0 0 0 0
At 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0

prior period:
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 17,972 320 4,982 0

Balances with Local Authorities 1,361 0 0 0

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 14 0 0 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 3,681 0 6,622 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 3,768 6,955 26,541 0
At 31 March 2014 26,796 7,275 38,145 0

The trust has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other service concession 
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19 Inventories Drugs Consumables

Work in 

Progress Energy Loan Equipment Other Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 1,432 1,925 0 110 0 0 3,467

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - PCTs & SHAs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - Other Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions 5,962 17 0 0 0 0 5,979

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (6,003) 0 0 (17) 0 0 (6,020)

Write-down of inventories (including losses) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of write-down previously taken to SOCI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to) Foundation Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption 

Accounting (1,391) (1,942) 0 (93) 0 0 (3,426)

Balance at 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

20.1  Trade and other receivables

30 June 2014 31 March 2014 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS receivables - revenue 0 20,795 0 320

NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS receivables - revenue 0 4,114 0 1,360

Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 2,320 0 5,595

Provision for the impairment of receivables 0 (1,305) 0 0

VAT 0 872 0 0
Current/non-current part of PFI and other PPP arrangements 

prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Interest receivables 0 0 0 0

Finance lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Other receivables 0 0 0 0

Total 0 26,796 0 7,275

Total current and non current 0 34,071

Included in NHS receivables are prepaid pension contributions: 0

20.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

By up to three months 0 1,772

By three to six months 0 14

By more than six months 0 3

Total 0 1,789

20.3  Provision for impairment of receivables 2014-15 (Q1) 2013-14

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 (1,305) (1,135)

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - PCTs & SHAs 0 0

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - Other Bodies 0 0

Amount written off during the year 83 524

Amount recovered during the year 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired (308) (694)

Transfer to NHS Foundation Trust 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 1,530 0

Balance at 30 June 2014 0 (1,305)

Receivables are impaired based on type and age of debt.

Current Non-current

The great majority of trade is with Clincial Commissioning Groups and NHS England .  As these bodies are funded by Government to buy 

NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.
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21 Cash and Cash Equivalents 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

Opening balance 2,239 6,925

Net change in year (2,239) (4,686)

Closing balance 0 2,239

Made up of

Cash with Government Banking Service 0 2,184

Commercial banks 0 46

Cash in hand 0 9

Current investments 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 0 2,239

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft - Commercial banks 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 0 2,239

Patients' money held by the Trust not included above 1 1

Trust
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30 June 

2014

31 March 

2014

30 June 

2014

31 March 

2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS payables - revenue 0 9,522 0 0

NHS payables - capital 0 0 0 0

NHS accruals and deferred income 0 2,082 0 0

Non-NHS payables - revenue 0 471 0 0

Non-NHS payables - capital 0 56 0 0

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 0 19,340 0 0

Social security costs 0 2,036

VAT 0 0 0 0

Tax 0 2,207

Payments received on account 0 1,170 0 0

Other 0 1,261 0 0

Total 0 38,145 0 0

Total payables (current and non-current) 0 38,145

Included above:

to Buy Out the Liability for Early Retirements Over 5 Years 0 0

number of Cases Involved (number) 0 0

outstanding Pension Contributions at the year end 0 1,156

23 Borrowings
30 June 

2014

31 March 

2014

30 June 

2014

31 March 

2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft - commercial banks 0 0

Loans from Department of Health 0 0 0 0

Loans from other entities 0 0 0 0

PFI liabilities:

     Main liability 0 5,333 0 32,243

     Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0 0 0

LIFT liabilities:

     Main liability 0 0 0 0

     Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0 0 0

Finance lease liabilities 0 300 0 593

Other (describe) 0 1,021 0 114

Total 0 6,654 0 32,950

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 0 39,604

Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:

30 June 2014

DH Other Total

£000s £000s £000s

0-1 Years 0 0 0

1 - 2 Years 0 0 0

2 - 5 Years 0 0 0

Over 5 Years 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0

Current Non-current

22 Trade and other payables Current Non-current

Trust

33

Paper 11



Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

24  Deferred revenue
30 June 2014 31 March 2014 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance at 1 April 2014 2,082 2,201 0 0

Deferred revenue addition 0 2,082 0 0

Transfer of deferred revenue (2,082) (2,201) 0 0

Current deferred Income at 30 June 2014 0 2,082 0 0

Total deferred income (current and non-current) 0 2,082

25 Finance lease obligations as lessee

Amounts payable under finance leases (Buildings)
30 June 2014 31 March 2014 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Within one year 0 0 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0

After five years 0 0 0 0

Less future finance charges        0 0 0 0

Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease 

payments 0 0 0 0

Included in:

  Current borrowings 0 0

  Non-current borrowings 0 0

0 0

Amounts payable under finance leases (Land)
30 June 2014 31 March 2014 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Within one year 0 0 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0

After five years 0 0 0 0

Less future finance charges        0 0 0 0

Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease 

payments 0 0 0 0

Included in:

  Current borrowings 0 0

  Non-current borrowings 0 0

Total 0 0

Amounts payable under finance leases (Other)
30 June 2014 31 March 2014 30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Within one year 0 300 0 300

Between one and five years 0 593 0 593

After five years 0 0 0 0

Less future finance charges        0 0 0 0

Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease 

payments 0 893 0 893

Included in:

  Current borrowings 0 300

  Non-current borrowings 0 593

0 893

30 June 2014 31 March 2014

Finance leases as lessee £000s £000s

Future Sublease Payments Expected to be received 0 0

Contingent Rents Recognised as an Expense 0 0

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum 

Current

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum 

Non-current

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum 
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26   Provisions Comprising:

Total

Early 

Departure 

Costs

Legal Claims Restructuring
Continuing 

Care

Equal Pay 

(incl. 

Agenda for 

Change

Other Redundancy

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 6,719 4,199 126 0 0 0 395 1,999

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - PCTs & SHAs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers under Modified Absorption Accounting - Other Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Arising During the Year 26 26 0 0 0 0 0 0

Utilised During the Year (90) (90) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversed Unused (1,570) 0 (28) 0 0 0 0 (1,542)

Unwinding of Discount 19 19 0 0 0 0 0 0

Change in Discount Rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trusts (for Trusts becoming FTs 

only) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption 

Accounting (5,104) (4,154) (98) 0 0 0 (395) (457)

Balance at 30 June 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:

No Later than One Year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Later than One Year and not later than Five Years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Later than Five Years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:

As at 30 June 2014 58,373

As at 31 March 2014 76,835
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The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts

30 June 2014 2013-14

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI £000s £000s

Total charge to operating expenses in year - OFF SOFP PFI 0 0

Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 4,141 14,971

Total 4,141 14,971

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI

No Later than One Year 18,204 18,204

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 72,816 72,816

Later than Five Years 323,121 327,672

Total 414,141 418,692

The estimated annual payments in future years are expected to be materially different from those which the Trust 

is committed to make materially different from those which the Trust is committed to make during the next year.  

The likely financial effect of this is:

Estimated Capital Value of Project - off SOFP PFI 0 0

Value of Deferred Assets - off SOFP PFI 0 0

Value of Reversionary Interest - off SOFP PFI 0 0

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 30 June 2014 2013-14

£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 5,333 5,333

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 21,331 21,331

Later than Five Years 41,427 46,760

Subtotal 68,091 73,424

Less: Interest Element (30,515) (35,848)

Total 37,576 37,576

Present Value Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 30 June 2014 2013-14

Analysed by when PFI payments are due £000s £000s

No Later than One Year 5,333 5,333

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 21,331 21,331

Later than Five Years 10,912 10,912

Total 37,576 37,576

Number of on SOFP PFI Contracts

Total Number of on PFI contracts 1

Number of on PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 0

Present Value Imputed "finance lease" obligations for off SOFP PFI contracts due 30 June 2014 2013-14

Analysed by when PFI payments are due £000s £000s

No Later than One Year 0 0

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 0 0

Later than Five Years 0 0

Total 0 0

Number of on SOFP PFI Contracts

Total Number of off PFI contracts 0 0

Number of off PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 0 0

28  Impact of IFRS treatment - current year 30 June 2014 2013-14

£000s £000s

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for budget reconciliation purposes

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI / LIFT)

Depreciation charges 302 1,041

Interest Expense 0 0

Impairment charge - AME 0 0

Impairment charge - DEL 0 0

Other Expenditure 0 0

Revenue Receivable from subleasing 0 0

Impact on PDC dividend payable 0 0

Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 302 1,041

Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of any sublease revenue) (302) (1,041)

Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) 0 0

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12

Capital expenditure 2013-14 0 0

UK GAAP capital expenditure 2013-14 (Reversionary Interest) 0 0

27  PFI and LIFT - additional information
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29 Financial Instruments

29.1 Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

29.2 Financial Assets At ‘fair 

value 

through 

profit and 

loss’

Loans and 

receivables

Available 

for sale

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables - NHS 0 0 0 0

Receivables - non-NHS 0 (2,439) 0 (2,439)

Cash at bank and in hand 0 809 0 809

Other financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total at 30 June 2014 0 (1,630) 0 (1,630)

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables - NHS 0 21,115 0 21,115

Receivables - non-NHS 0 11,493 0 11,493

Cash at bank and in hand 0 2,239 0 2,239

Other financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2014 0 34,847 0 34,847

29.3  Financial Liabilities At ‘fair 

value 

through 

profit and 

loss’

Other Total 

£000s £000s £000s

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

NHS payables 0 9,493 9,493

Non-NHS payables 0 (48,770) (48,770)

Other borrowings 0 0 0

PFI & finance lease obligations 0 39,277 39,277

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 30 June 2014 0 0 0

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

NHS payables 0 9,522 9,522

Non-NHS payables 0 28,505 28,505

Other borrowings 0 0 0

PFI & finance lease obligations 0 38,469 38,469

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2014 0 76,496 76,496

30  Events after the end of the reporting period

The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care Trusts, which are financed from resources voted annually by 

Parliament .  The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit.  The Trust is not, therefore, 

exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 

changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Trust has 

with commissioners and the way those commissioners are financed, the NHS Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by 

business entities.  Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply.  The NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and 

financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS 

Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Trust’s 

standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors.  Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust’s internal 

auditors.

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling 

based.  The Trust has no overseas operations.  The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by the strategic health authority.  The 

borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for 

the life of the loan.  The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the Trust’s revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk.  

The maximum exposures as at 30 June 2014 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

 Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals was acquired by the Royal Free London NHS 

Foundation Trust on 1st July 2014. 

Trust
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30  Events after the end of the reporting period

30.1 Acquisition

SoFP pre 

Dissolution

SoFP post 

Dissolution

£000s £000s

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 241,597 0

Trade and other receivables 7,630 0

Total non-current assets 249,227 0

Current assets:

Inventories 3,426 0

Trade and other receivables 29,890 0

Cash and cash equivalents 809 0

Total current assets 34,125 0

Non-current assets held for sale 0 0

Total current assets 30,138 0

Total assets 279,365 0

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (52,326) 0

Provisions (1,310) 0

Borrowings (6,392) 0

Total current liabilities (60,028) 0

Net current assets/(liabilities) (25,903) 0

Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities 223,324 0

Non-current liabilities

Provisions (3,794) 0

Borrowings (32,885) 0

Total non-current liabilities (36,679) 0

Total Assets Employed: 186,645 0

FINANCED BY:

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

Public Dividend Capital 146,637 0

Retained earnings (63,700) 0

Revaluation reserve 103,708 0

Total Taxpayers' Equity: 186,645 0

30.1 Planning permission

Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust was acquired by merger on the 1st July 2014 by the 

Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust (RFL). 

The accounts have been prepared to reflect this. The Trust's assets, liabilities and reserves 

detailed below have been assigned to RFL.

Planning permission to redevelop the Chase Farm site was granted by Enfield Council in March 

2015.The redevelopment will result in the upgrade of  the existing hospital, building of additional 

homes, including affordable housing and key worker accommodation, and a new primary school. 

The planning permission had no impact on the Estates valuation as this was granted after the 

valuation date.
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31  Related party transactions

Income Expenditure Payables Receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000

Barnet CCG 24,704 0 0 0

Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health NHS Trust 918 203 0 0

Brent CCG 746 0 0 0

Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust 341 459 0 0

East And North Hertfordshire CCG 4,684 0 0 0

Enfield CCG 15,286 0 0 0

Haringey CCG 1,712 0 0 0

Harrow CCG 1,047 0 0 0

Health Education England 2,226 0 0 0

Herts Valleys CCG 7,820 0 0 0

NHS Business Services Authority 0 2,041 0 0

NHS England 6,713 47 0 0

NHS Litigation Authority 0 1,851 0 0

NHS Property Services 0 249 0 0

NHS Trust Development Authority 1,200 0 0 0

Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust 831 1,264 0 0

West Essex CCG 50 0 0 0

Income Expenditure Payables Receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000

Barnet London Borough Council 258 0 0 252

Enfield London Borough Council 45 0 0 98

Harrow London Borough Council 43 0 0 149

32 Losses and special payments

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses 76 1
Special payments 10,932 16
Total losses and special payments 11,008 17

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses 189,289 61
Special payments 76,842 64
Total losses and special payments 266,131 125

Details of cases individually over £250,000

The total number of losses cases in 2013-14 and their total value was as follows:

During the year none of the Department of Health Ministers, trust board members or members of the key management staff, or 

parties related to any of them, has undertaken any material transactions with Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust.

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local 

government bodies. These entities are listed below:

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, which has the Trust Board as its 

corporate Trustees.

The total number of losses cases in 2014-15 (Q1) and their total value was as follows:

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the year Barnet & Chase Farm NHS Trust has had a significant 

number of material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent 

Department.  These entities are listed below:

The Trust also received a share of the profits from BMI Healthcare for the Kings Oak Hospital which is situated on the Chase Farm 

site. The profit share for 2014/15 will be received in January 2015 for £412,000 which is less than anticipated. A reduction of 

£249,000 has been included in other operating revenue to account for the revised 2013/14 position and for the period April - June 

2014.
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33.   Financial performance targets

The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 (Q1)

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Turnover 252,054 252,942 274,753 302,196 332,919 348,864 351,005 358,508 339,640 75,651

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (8,994) (11,398) 2,611 155 (9,564) 3,154 1,725 (1,343) (16,365) (208,614)

Adjustment for:

Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:

Pre FDL(97)24 Agreements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2006/07 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2005/06) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2007/08 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2008/09 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2007/08) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Adjustments for Impairments 0 0 0 0 14,578 0 488 1,976 911 5,910

Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated/government grants assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 6 (382) (75)

Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - Adjustment for Dual Accounting under IFRIC12* 0 0 0 0 55 0 0 0 0 0

Adsorption Accounting Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 186,645

Other agreed adjustments 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Break-even in-year position (7,294) (11,398) 2,611 155 5,069 3,154 2,221 639 (15,836) (16,134)

Break-even cumulative position (10,111) (21,509) (18,898) (18,743) (13,674) (10,520) (8,299) (7,660) (23,496) (39,630)

*

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 (Q1)

% % % % % % % % % %

Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover -2.89 -4.51 0.95 0.05 1.52 0.90 0.63 0.18 -4.66 -21.33

Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover -4.01 -8.50 -6.88 -6.20 -4.11 -3.02 -2.36 -2.14 -6.92 -52.39

33.1  Breakeven performance

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, NHS Trust’s financial performance measurement needs 

to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure.  Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from 

the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting 

purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance.  Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the 

removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

40

Paper 11



Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust - 3 Month Accounts to 30th June 2014

33.2  Capital cost absorption rate

33.3  External financing

The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

30 June 2014 2013-14

£000s £000s

External financing limit (EFL) 5,191 38,778

Cash flow financing 5,172 26,831

Unwinding of Discount Adjustment 19 89

Finance leases taken out in the year 0 0

Other capital receipts 0 0

External financing requirement 5,191 26,920

Under/(Over) Spend against EFL 0 11,858

33.4  Capital resource limit

The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

30 June 2014 2013-14

£000s £000s

Gross capital expenditure 941 17,218

Less: book value of assets disposed of 0 0

Less: capital grants 0 0

Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets (75) 0

Charge against the capital resource limit 866 17,218

Capital resource limit 941 25,239

(Over)/underspend against the capital resource limit 75 8,021

The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average relevant 

net assets and therefore the actual capital cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.
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30 June 2014 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

Third party assets held by the Trust 1 1

34  Third party assets

The Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the NHS Trust on behalf of patients or other parties.  This 

has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

42

Paper 11



Paper 11 

 iii 

Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust  
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (April 2014 to June 2014) 
 
  

1. Scope of responsibility 
 

On the 1st July 2014 Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust (BCF) was 
acquired by the Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust (RFL). As 
Accountable Officer and chief executive of the RFL Board I have taken a 
number of steps to understand the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control between 1st April 2014 to 30th June 2014. During the handover to RFL 
the then interim chief executive officer of BCF has provided me with 

assurances that processes were in place to ensure good working 
arrangements with partner organisations and the Trust Development 
Authority which included:  
 

Trust Development Authority chief executive meetings; 

Meetings with the CCGs;  

Trust chief executive meetings;  

Regular monitoring meetings with the Trust Development Authority; 

Meetings with colleagues in local government. 

 
2. Governance Framework  

The BCF Trust Board was the governing body for the Trust and made all 
important decisions about the hospitals and their services.  The Board was 
made up of the Chairman, five non executive directors, and five executive 
directors, including the interim chief executive. Other directors sat on the 
Board but did not have voting rights.  
 
The BCF trust executive committee (TEC) took on the role of the senior 
decision making group in the Trust below the trust Board. The Quality 
Improvement Board reported to the TEC and focused on operational quality 
and safety issues.  The Quality and Safety Committee was the board sub 
committee, chaired by a non-executive director providing the board with 
assurance on quality and safety issues. 

 
Building on previous board development work, the board focused on 
strengthening the role of the sub committees in detailed scrutiny and 
assurance to the Board. The Board reviewed and refreshed its ‘Board 
Pledges’ which set down the way in which the Board worked.  These 
emphasised the importance of the Board working as a unitary board ensuring 
that both non executive and executive directors contributed constructively, in 
line with best practice.  
 
The Board continued to hear the ‘patient’s’ voice’ at the beginning of each 
Board meeting, where a complaint and compliment were read out to the 
Board.  Members were then asked to reflect on the issues raised as they 
discuss the other matters on the agenda.   
The Trust Board met in public twice during the quarter and members of the 
public and staff were welcome to attend.  Papers were posted on the Trust’s 
website (www.bcf.nhs.uk) prior to the meeting.  
 
Attendance at Board and Committee meetings is given below 

http://www.bcf.nhs.uk/
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 Attendance at meetings (actual/possible) 

 Trust 
Board 

Audit 
Committee 
 

Quality and 
Safety 
Committee 

Charity 
Committee 

Finance 
Committee 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Baroness 
Wall of 
New Barnet 
 

2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 2/2 2/2 

Fiona 
Bulmer 
 

2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A 2/2 

Raj Chana 
 

2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/2 

Tim Evans 
 

2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A 2/2 

David 
Flinter 
 

1/1 N/A N/A 0/0 0/2 1/2 

David Holt 2/2 2/2 N/A 1/1 N/A 1/2 

Ian Mitchell  2/2 N/A 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A 

Andy 
Newman 
 

2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 2/2 2/2 

Tony Ollis 
 

2/2 2/2 N/A 1/1 2/2 N/A 

Tim 
Peachey 

2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/2 1/2 

Terina 
Riches 
 

2/2 N/A 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A 

Will Smart 2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Fiona 
Smith 

2/2 N/A 1/2 1/1 2/2 N/A 

 
The Board had five committees dealing with specialised areas plus the trust 
executive committee.   
 
During the period the Board continued to encourage detailed discussions to 
take place at the committee meetings with those committees then providing 
assurance to the Board that rigorous scrutiny had taken place of the matters 
under discussion.  This was to ensure that the Board maintained its strategic 
and forward looking role, but also to give more time for patient focused 
discussions.   
 

 

 The audit committee provided the trust board with assurance that the 
trust had identified and was managing its risks and controls across the 
whole range of its activities.  The committee also monitored the work of 
the internal audit and counter fraud services.   It met 2 times during the 
period and was chaired by David Holt, non executive director for most of 
the period.  David Holt is a qualified accountant and was formerly Finance 
Director at Land Securities - the largest commercial property company in 
the UK and a member of the FTSE 100.  There were two further non 
executive directors on the Committee (Fiona Bulmer and Tim Evans), with 
the internal and external auditors, local counter fraud specialist, director of 
finance and interim chief executive in attendance.  Other directors 
attended as necessary by invitation. 

 
The Committee received regular updates from internal and external audit 
and the counter fraud specialist. 
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 The finance committee’s overall role was to allow scrutiny in greater 
depth of key of financial strategy, policy and performance issues than 
would be possible in Board meetings. It met twice during the period and 
was chaired by Andy Newman, non executive director.  The Committee 
had two other non executive director members, and the interim chief 
executive, director of finance and interim chief operating officer were also 
members. Other directors attended as necessary.  The committee 
discussed the trust’s financial and operating plan, monitored financial 
performance during the quarter and also conducted a series of ‘deep 
dives’ into specific issues, such as the control of pay costs, estates and 
procurement. 

 

 The quality and safety committee provided assurance to the trust board 
that issues relating to governance, risk and safety within the Trust were 
appropriately managed, monitored and reported, and that the organisation 
had a continuous cycle of learning from incidents and critical events.  The 
Committee met every twice during the period and was chaired by Fiona 
Bulmer, non executive director, and had two other non executive director 
members.  The interim chief executive, chief operating officer, director of 
nursing and medical director normally attended meetings, along with other 
directors depending on the matters being discussed.  The quality and 
safety committee received a clinical presentation at each meeting and 
also took a close interest in quality and safety issues relating to the 
implementation of the Barnet Enfield and Haringey clinical strategy.  

 

 The charity committee oversaw the short and long-term investment and 
spending strategies for Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals charitable 
funds, in accordance with legislation.  The committee met once during the 
quarter and was chaired by the Trust chairman, with the non executive 
directors together with the five executive directors forming the rest of the 
membership. 

 

 The remuneration committee decided on pay and terms and conditions 
for directors and senior managers.  The Committee met twice during the 
quarter, and was chaired by the Board Chairman and also comprised non 
executive directors, with the Interim Chief Executive and Director of OD 
and HR in attendance, although they were not present for discussion of 
their own terms and conditions of service. 

 

 The trust executive committee TEC)  was the senior decision making 
body of the trust, reporting to the trust board.  it comprised the executive 
directors and three  senior clinical directors.  It had executive 
responsibility delegated by the trust board and was responsible to the 
trust board for the operational management of the trust and the delivery of 
objectives set by the trust board. The tec reported to each meeting of the 
trust board on the key decisions and discussions that had taken place. 

 
The Department of Health’s Code of Conduct, applied to all Board members, 
which requires them to declare interests to the NHS board, of which they are 
members, which are relevant and material.  Interests were declared on 
appointment and there was a requirement at the beginning of each Board 
meeting to declare any changes in interests or any that were relevant to the 
business on the agenda.   
The Trust’s compliance with the discharge of statutory functions was covered 
by the internal and external audit programme and the trust also received 
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bulletins from NHS England, internal and external audit which were reviewed 
to ensure that necessary action was taken.  All reports to the Trust Board had 
a section referring to legal requirements relevant to the particular report. 

 
 
3. Risk Assessment  

Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust had a clear and communicated 
risk management strategy in place, which was endorsed by the board. The 
Trust Executive Committee was responsible for reviewing and reporting to the 
Board all significant risks.  The Trust had a structure through which risks were 
identified and managed.  Each directorate had a lead for risk that coordinates 
the directorate’s risk register. 
 
The main sub-committees providing assurance to the Board were the audit 
committee, finance committee and quality and safety committee whose 
membership and remit have already been covered:  
 
 
The risk leads attended the monthly risk committee where the management 
and process associated with risk were scrutinised.  The risk committee chair 
(director of nursing) then reported to the quality and safety committee, a sub-
committee of the board. 
 
The trust board received bi-monthly reports from the quality and safety 
committee, thus closing the loop from the directorates to the board. 

 
The director of Nursing was the executive director with lead responsibility for 
clinical risk, the director of estates and facilities for health and safety 
management, the director of IM&T for information risk and the director of 
finance for financial risk. 

 
As part of the embedding of the risk management strategy, focussed and 
cascaded training was delivered to managers, clinical governance and risk 
facilitators and staff across the trust both at induction to the trust, and also as 
part of their on-going development. The level of training was dependent on 
their level of delegated responsibility. 

 
The director of nursing managed the main clinical and organisational risk 
management functions and the director of estates and facilities managed 
health and safety risk management functions. There was a range of policies 
in place to describe the roles and responsibilities of staff in identifying and 
managing clinical and non-clinical risk and these policies set out clear lines of 
responsibility and accountability. All relevant policies were provided to RFL as 
part of the due diligence exercise prior to the acquisition.  Each directorate 
had a risk lead and clinical governance and risk facilitator as outlined above. 
Utilising the comprehensive risk management software, reports of moderate 
and serious risks were monitored at an individual level and trend data 
produced for all levels of risk. Clinical governance and risk facilitators 
provided and communicated these at directorate meetings.    

 
The Trust continued reporting to the national reporting and learning system as 
required by the National Patient Safety Agency and was part of the London 
Risk Forum. The Trust had a complaints, litigation, incidents and PALs group 
at which all Trust-wide trends were discussed and escalated to the risk 
committee.  As well as sharing incidents with other organisations via this 
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process, it also responded to the patient safety alerts through the Safety Alert 
Broadcast System and ensured that good practice identified through these 
alerts was implemented.  

 
The use of comprehensive risk management software to handle complaints, 
litigation, adverse incidents, and contacts with the PALS service and child 
protection incidents enabled the trust to analyse risks across the risk 
identification mechanisms. Comprehensive reports were created by the 
directorates, which reported them to the risk committee and via the quality 
and safety committee to the trust board.  Risks were graded for severity and 
investigated, and action plans were developed to reduce the risk of 
recurrence. The learning from these incidents was disseminated widely and 
was used to inform trust priorities.  
 
Risks identified during April to June 2014 and going forward include 

 

 Acquisition of the trust by Royal Free London Foundation Trust- the risk of 
potential impact on delivery of service and quality targets and uncertainty 
to workforce had been included in the board assurance framework. To 
manage the potential risks a joint project board was established and met  
every 2-3 weeks, a BCF project manager was  in place and there were 
regular staff briefings by CEO 
 

 
There were a total of 22 Information Governance related incidents reported 
during April – June 2014 (2013/14 93 IG related incidents). Of these 22 
incidents 1 was declared as a serious Information Governance incident where 
either staff or patient records had been handled inappropriately. This 1 
incident related to the loss of patient data on handover sheets which was 
found in a public place. Action has been taken via both e-learning and face-
to-face training with clinicians to emphasise that handover sheets should not 
be take off-site and securely destroyed in the confidential waste bins 
provided. 

 
 

4. The risk and control framework  
 

The Trust had a risk management strategy in place, which set out the key 
responsibilities and accountabilities for managing risk within the organisation. 
 
In addition to the trust governance structure, clinical governance and risk 
facilitators ensured that local risks were dealt with in a timely manner. These 
individuals were responsible for the initial analysis of the risks and its severity 
grading and ensuring the appropriate level of investigation was carried out. 
They were also the key points of dissemination of risks, changes in practice 
and best practice within their local areas, ensuring both that lessons were 
shared with other areas and that changes in practice were monitored and fed 
back to staff. 
 
Risk was assessed by the board and at all levels throughout the organisation. 
This top down and bottom up approach ensured that both strategic and 
operational risks were addressed within the trust. The board via the 
assurance framework received assurances on the effectiveness of risk 
control. All directorates had a local risk register. Reporting of current and 
changing risk which affected the corporate objectives were incorporated into 
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the corporate risk register where appropriate (e.g. significant risk impact) and 
the core management reporting committees of the organisation. Local risks 
were monitored through the directorate management structure, whereas 
strategic risks were monitored via the quality and safety committee and trust 
board.   
 
The findings of risk assessments, information from complaints, litigation, 
adverse incidents, audit, internal management reviews and reports from 
external bodies populated the risk registers. 

The directorate risk registers were reviewed by the risk committee.  The 
corporate risk register (containing all risks impacting on the corporate 
objectives was reviewed  at the monthly risk committee and risks incorporated 
into the board assurance framework where appropriate and was presented 
three times per year to the trust board via the Quality  and Safety Committee.  

 
Each year the Board also agreed its key objectives, and risks were assessed 
against these. the board was also informed of the workings of the assurance 
framework, and any changes to that process. During April to June 2014 the 
Board obtained assurance via: 
 

 Approval of key objectives and assessment of associated risks; 
 

 Update on compliance with the risk management strategy and subsequent 
reporting through the various committees; 

 

 Other sources of assurance such as that provided by internal audit, the 
Audit Commission and the CQC. 

 
The trust had an established board assurance framework, which set out the 
principal risks to the delivery of the core objectives. The board assurance 
framework identified whether adequate controls and assurances were in 
place and whether action plans were necessary to mitigate the risk. The 
executive director with the delegated responsibility and accountability for 
managing and monitoring each individual risk was clearly identified. The 
board assurance framework included risks to the delivery of activity, clinical 
risks, financial risks, risk to reputation and risks related to the estate and 
infrastructure.  
 
Internal audit’s plan included the delivery of an independent report to the audit 
committee and board on the adequacy of the assurance framework and 
associated processes that underpin it.  The audit committee’s terms of 
reference included responsibility to review the effectiveness of the Trust’s risk 
management framework.  The audit committee meetings were minuted and a 
report from the committee was considered by the Trust Board. 
 
The risk management strategy and corporate induction both made clear that 
risk management was the responsibility of all staff.  The trust learnt from good 
practice through clinical supervision and reflective practice, individual and 
peer reviews, performance management, continuing professional 
development programmes, clinical audit and application of evidence-based 
practice. 

 
The risk management strategy was circulated to a wide range of external 
stakeholders and the board assurance framework was submitted to the Trust 
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Development Authority.  All level 1 risks were reported to a number of other 
external bodies such as the National Patient Safety Agency via the national 
reporting and learning system. 

 
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension 
Scheme, control measures were in place to ensure all employer obligations 
contained within the Scheme regulations were complied with. This included 
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments 
in to the Scheme were in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that 
member Pension Scheme records were accurately updated in accordance 
with the timescales detailed in the regulations. 
 
Control measures were in place to ensure that all the organisation’s 
obligations under equality, diversity and human rights legislation were 
complied with.  
 

 The Trust  had undertaken a climate change risk assessment and  developed 
 an Adaptation Plan, to support its emergency preparedness and civil 
 contingency requirements, as based on the UK Climate Projections 2009 
 (UKCP09), to ensure that this organisation’s obligations under the Climate 
 Change Act were met.  

 

The Trust had established a robust system for managing information 
governance, which was carried out through the information governance 
committee; the committee was Chaired by the Director of IM&T, who was also 
the Trust appointed SIRO (senior information risk owner). Membership 
included the Caldicott Guardian to oversee the process, as well as 
representatives from  the corporate and clinical directorates of the Trust.  The 
Committee reported to the quality and safety committee (sub-committee of 
the Board). 
 
The Committee established a programme of work to ensure the trust met its 
statutory and non-statutory responsibilities which included completing the 
information governance self assessment tool, which was independently 
audited for additional assurance; audit reports were scrutinised and monitored 
by the audit committee. The committee also had a role, led by the Caldicott 
Guardian, to raise awareness and undertake training for trust staff in how they 
handled patient sensitive information. Critical incidents involving 
confidentiality were received and acted upon by the group.  
 
Finally the Caldicott Guardian had a role in involving patients in the process of 
handling their personal information to ensure their confidence in the Trusts 
ability to be secure while enabling information flows to facilitate their 
treatment journey through the organisation.  
 
 
The Trust had a counter fraud corruption strategy which set out the approach 
to fraud and fraud deterrents.  The Trust contracted for a fraud service which 
provided proactive (i.e. prevention) and reaction (i.e. detection) services of a 
comprehensive nature.  This arrangement was overseen by the audit 
committee which reported to the board.    The Trust adopted the NHS 
Standards of Business Conduct as part of its SFIs and SOs and they formed 
a part of each employee contract.  This was communicated to all staff at 
induction where there was a dedicated formal session. As part of the fraud 
strategy there was a communications work stream which ensured that there 
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was widely publicised access for staff to notify the Trust of fraud.  This was 
achieved through posters, screensavers, messages on payslips etc. 
 
 

  
5. Review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control  
 

As accountable officer and chief executive of the RFL Board I have taken a 
number of steps to understand the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control from 1st April 2014 to 30th June 2014. The interim chief executive of 
BCF for this period has provided me with assurance that processes were in 
place to ensure good working arrangements with partner organisations and 
the Trust Development Authority My review was informed in a number of 
ways and I have received the following assurances: 
 
The Head of Internal Audit provided me with an opinion on the overall 
arrangements for gaining assurance through the assurance framework and 
on the controls reviewed as part of the internal audit work.  The overall level 
of the Head of Internal Audit Opinion was significant assurance. However, 
some weaknesses were identified that put the achievement of particular 
objectives at risk. The key issues were:- 
 
 
Data Quality  
This audit received a red (no assurance) opinion with issues identified in 
respect of the governance arrangements surrounding the quality of data 
reported to the Board and the processes in place to collate and validate such 
data. The work focused upon three performance indicators –  
Clostridium Difficile;  
Mixed Sex Accommodation; and  
Cancer targets  
 
 
Bank & Agency Usage  
This audit received a red (no assurance) opinion as there was no consistent 
process either documented or followed with regards to requesting, 
authorising, booking and monitoring bank and agency workers including 
spend across the Trust.  
 
All other internal audit work resulted in positive opinions; these were within 
internal audit’s review of the Trust’s Key Financial Controls (substantial 
assurance), Induction and Mandatory Training (reasonable assurance) and in 
the area of Locum Usage and Flexible Working (some assurance).  
 

Directors provided the interim chief executive with assurance within the 
organisation.  They had responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the system of internal control and this was facilitated via the executive 
monthly performance management and risk meetings.  The assurance 
framework provided me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 
managed the risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives had 
been reviewed.  My review was also informed by: 
 

 The work of the external auditors in reviewing the system of internal 
control 
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 The work undertaken by internal auditors and clinical audit in 
recommending improvement to control systems and testing 
compliance with controls 

 Regular performance reviews of care quality commission standards, 
and other performance measures 

 Patient and staff surveys 
 

The Board had delegated responsibility for the development of the assurance 
framework to the quality and safety committee. The board, the quality and 
safety committee and the audit committee had advised the interim chief 
executive on the implications of the result of this review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control.  A plan to address weaknesses and ensure 
continuous improvement of the system is in place and formed part of the 
handover to RFL and is being addressed within the enlarged RFL. 

 
The audit committee provided the board with an independent and objective 
view of arrangements for internal financial control within the trust, ensuring 
the internal audit service complied with mandatory auditing standards 
including the review of all fundamental financial systems. 
 
Executive directors had managed and reviewed their principal risks through 
the business planning process, the performance management framework and 
their contribution to development of the assurance framework.   
 
The Trust Board reviewed the risk register and assurance framework. 

 
6.        Significant Issues  
 

For the period April to June 2014 the Trust delivered a deficit of £16.1m 
(excluding impairment). The Trust had presented a budget which forecasted a 
deficit of £32.5m (after delivery of £14.5m cost improvement) were the Trust 
to remain a stand-alone organisation in 2014/15.  However, from the 1st July 
2014, the Trust was acquired by the Royal Free London NHS Foundation 
Trust. 
 
The Trust did not meet its key performance targets relating to C. difficile, all 
Cancer 62 Days from GP Referral, Two Week Waits from GP referral to First 
Outpatient Appointment for Symptomatic Breast Patients, Cancelled 
Operations not booked within 28 days and a Maximum of Six Weeks Wait for 
a Diagnostic Test.  

 
In addition the Trust suspended national performance reporting against the 
three 18 week’s indicators during September 2013 due to concerns in relation 
to the accuracy of the locally derived data. The reason for the suspension, as 
well as the trusts recovery plan, was fully disclosed to the TDA and NHSE 
(London).  
 
As a result of the acquisition of the Trust into the Royal Free London NHS 
Foundation Trust additional work has been undertaken in response to the 
need to further enhance the governance and operational controls operating 
across the Trust.  These controls are designed to address both issues 
identified during the acquisition due diligence process and other matters 
identified during the early months of combined operation of the new Trust.  
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Further details of these can be found in the Governance Statement for the 
Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust 
 
Excepting for the issues highlighted above my review confirms that Barnet 
and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust had a generally sound system of 
internal control that supported the achievement of its policies, aims and 
objectives. 

 
 
 
 

28th April 2015                                                               Chief Executive Officer 
                                                             (on behalf of the Board) 
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Three-month report for Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust (April-June 2014) 

1. Introduction 

The publication of a three-month equivalent of an annual report for Barnet and Chase Farm 

Hospitals NHS Trust (BCF) reflects the fact that the trust was dissolved on 1 July 2014 as part of the 

acquisition of Barnet Hospital and Chase Farm Hospital by the Royal Free London NHS Foundation 

Trust (RFL) in accordance with the recommendation of the Trust Development Authority (TDA) and 

the decision by the Secretary of State.  

This report therefore covers the period from 1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014.  

Following the government’s decision that all NHS trusts should achieve foundation trust status by 

2014, a review was undertaken by the trust’s board, which in July 2012 confirmed that BCF could not 

achieve foundation status as a standalone organisation in this time period. In September 2012 the 

trust board examined the business case put forward by the RFL and formally accepted the trust as its 

preferred partner.  

In May 2014 the TDA approved the recommendation to the Secretary of State that the dissolution of 

BCF should be enacted on 1 July 2014 and that the services, staff and assets of BCF should be 

transferred to the RFL, with the requisite assurances in place. 

There have been a number of notable achievements in the 16 years since the merger of Barnet 

Hospital and Chase Farm Hospital. In May 2002 Prince Charles visited both hospitals to commend 

staff and comfort patients following the tragic Potters Bar rail crash. The following year his sister, the 

Princess Royal, visited the then new Barnet Hospital. 

In the years that followed Howard Ware, consultant orthopaedic surgeon at Chase Farm Hospital, 

became the first surgeon in Europe to carry out a “two--incision” total hip replacement. By 2010 the 

£1.8 million breast screening service digital investment programme had been implemented and the 

following year the acute stroke unit and transient ischaemic attack unit became the first in London 

to be accredited with the highest standards set by the London cardiac and stroke networks.  

Over the year preceding the acquisition clinicians and managers from both trusts worked hard to 

plan how best to run services as a single organisation. Throughout this period staff at BCF also 

succeeded in fulfilling its objectives: 

 We will provide safe, accessible and modern clinical care. 

 We will respect the privacy and dignity of our patients and ensure the best possible patient 

experience. 

 We will work with GPs, commissioners, partners and other stakeholders to deliver more 

integrated care in primary and community settings reflecting the diverse needs of our 

community. 

 We will deliver excellent operational performance and patient outcomes. 

 Staff will be engaged in the success of the organisation and have an equal opportunity to 

contribute to it. 

 We will continue to deliver financial performance in accordance with our long-term financial 

plan. 
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Due to the scale of the transformation, the impending transaction dominated activity in the trust’s 

final three months. However the trust scored a number of achievements that highlighted its 

commitment to improving patient care. 

In April 2014 the trust won an award for best use of digital and social media to promote its staff flu 

vaccine campaign at the NHS Employers’ flu fighter awards. 

The trust continued its participation in an initiative led by University College London Partnership that 

aimed to eliminate avoidable hospital-acquired pressure ulcers by 2014. 

Working with Enfield Council and the Nightingale Hospice, the trust organised the fourth annual 

15km sponsored night hike in June 2014. After four years the event had raised more than £80,000 

for the Nightingale Hospice and BCF. 

Despite a period of massive organisational change the trust continued to exhibit a tireless 

commitment to providing excellent patient care. I would like to take this opportunity pay tribute to 

the former trust’s staff and directors who remained focused on ensuring patients’ needs were met 

and services were delivered throughout this challenging period. 

Priorities for improvement  

Ahead of the acquisition BCF and the RFL worked to combine the quality priorities of the two 

organisations for 2014/15. The needs of patients in all BCF catchment areas were taken into account 

in the writing of these priorities. 

 Priority one: world class patient information to reflect our world class care 

 Priority two: reducing cancellations 

 Priority three: reducing out-patient department waiting times 

 Priority four: in-patient diabetes care 

 Priority five: to continue our patient safety programme 

2. Operational report 

2.1. Profile of the trust 

2.1.1 Sites and services 

As a large acute trust we provided a range of clinical services, covering urgent and 

emergency care and planned care.  

Most of our services were provided at Barnet Hospital and Chase Farm Hospital.  We also 

held clinics in community hospitals run by other trusts in Edgware, Finchley, Potters Bar and 

Cheshunt. 

2.1.2 Population served 

The trust had a catchment area of 500,000 patients across London boroughs of Barnet and 

Enfield, as well as parts of southern Hertfordshire. The population it served is diverse 

socially, economically and ethnically. Enfield is one of the most deprived outer London 

boroughs and has a relatively large proportion of both children and older people living in the 
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borough. Barnet is a relatively affluent borough with pockets of deprivation and an older 

population that is higher than the London average. 

2.2 Management structure 

The trust executive committee was the senior decision-making body of the trust, reporting 

to the trust board. It comprised the executive directors and three senior clinical directors 

and had executive responsibility delegated by the trust board.  It was responsible for the 

operational management of the trust and the delivery of objectives set by the trust board. 

The trust’s operating model was split into eight clinical directorates, each led by a clinical 

director working in partnership with an associate director of operations. These clinical 

directorates were grouped into of three divisions: emergency care, planned care and 

women’s and children’s. 

2.3 Staff 

The trust employed around 4,400 staff and the vast majority transferred to the RFL following 

the acquisition. In May 2014 the report received the result of BCF’s staff survey 2013, which 

was undertaken between October and December 2014. 

The results of the survey were, overall, worse than in previous years and below the national 

average. However, it is recognised that this is highly likely due to the huge organisational 

change and uncertainty experienced by trust staff as well as more NHS trusts improving in a 

number of areas where BCF had been achieving better than average or average scores.  

The trust’s worst rankings related to bullying and harassment from patients, relatives or the 

public, physical violence from staff, equal opportunities for career progression, job 

satisfaction and effective team working. 

The results of the survey were also reviewed by the RFL in order to inform the staff 

improvement plan that would come into effect from 1 July 2014. 

Until then the trust pledged to continue to learn from staff feedback and focus resources on 

relevant actions during the lead up to the potential transfer of services.  

 

2.4 Performance and risk 

The three month governance statement which follows briefly sets out the trust’s 

performance against key indicators and a summary of financial performance. It also 

describes the trust’s governance arrangements and the approach to risk control; it identifies 

both new and high risks for the period of this report and highlights significant issues for the 

trust.  

2.5 Directors and board members 

The BCF trust board was the governing body for the trust and made all important decisions 

about the hospitals and their services. The board comprised the chairman, five non-
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executive directors and five executive directors, including the chief executive. Other 

directors sat on the board but did not have voting rights.  

During this period the board maintained its strategic and forward-looking role. It continued 

to encourage detailed discussions to take place at committee meetings, with those 

committees then providing assurance to the board that rigorous scrutiny had taken place on 

the matters under discussion. 

 

 



Salaries and Allowances April - June 2014

Salary Exit Packages

Expense 

payments 

(taxable) total

Performance pay 

and bonuses

Long term 

performance pay 

and bonuses

All pension-

related benefits Total Salary Exit Packages

Expense 

payments 

(taxable) total

Performance 

pay and 

bonuses

Long term 

performance 

pay and 

bonuses

All pension-

related 

benefits Total

Name and Title (bands of £5,000)  (bands of £5,000)  Nearest £100
(bands of 

£5,000)  
(bands of £5,000)  (bands of £2,500)  (bands of £5,000)  

(bands of 

£5,000)  

(bands of 

£5,000)  
Nearest £100

(bands of 

£5,000)  

(bands of 

£5,000)  

(bands of 

£2,500)  

(bands of 

£5,000)  

£000 £000 £00 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 £00 £000 £000 £000

Baroness Wall of Barnet
Chairman

Dr Tim Peachey
Chief Executive

Fiona Smith
Chief Operating Officer

Anthony Ollis
Director of Finance

Ian Mitchell
Medical Director

Terina Riches
Director of Nursing

Mary Joseet
Director of Performance, Planning & Partnership
(Ended May 2013)

Andy Newman
Non Executive Director

David Flinter
Non Executive Director

David Holt
Non Executive Director

Fiona Bulmer
Non Executive Director

Tim Evans
Non Executive Director

2013-14
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 5-10 5-10

(15-17.5)

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisations workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Barnet & Chase Farm Hospitals Trust in the financial year was £95-£100 (2013/14 was £200k-£205k)
This was 5 times (2013/14 5 times) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £42k (2013/14 £40k). The calculation was based on the full time equivalent staff of the Trust as at 30th June 2014 on an annualised basis.

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance -related pay, benefits-in-kind as well as severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.
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42.5-45

40-42.5
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 5-10 5-10
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45-50
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0 0 0

0-5 0-5

0-5 0-5

250-255

70-75

230-235

0-5 0-5
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Pension Benefits June 2014

Name and Title

Real increase 

in pension at 

age 60

Real increase 

in pension 

lump sum at 

age 60

Total accrued 

pension at age 

60 at 30 June 

2014

Total accrued 

lump sum at 

age 60 at 30 

June 2014

Cash 

Equivalent 

Transfer Value 

30 June 2014

Cash 

Equivalent 

Transfer Value 

31 March 2014

Real Increase 

in Cash 

Equivalent 

Transfer Value

Employers 

Contribution 

to Stakeholder 

Pension

(Bands of 

£2,500)          

£000

(Bands of 

£2,500)          

£000

(Bands of 

£5,000)        

£000

(Bands of 

£5,000)        

£000 £000 £000 £000

To nearest 

£100

Dr Tim Peachey

Chief Executive

Anthony Ollis

Director of Finance

Ian Mitchell

Medical Director

Fiona Smith

Chief Operating Officer

Terina Riches

Director of Nursing

1,621 1,613 (2)

954 103

0-2.5

70-75

55-60

65-70

220-225

165-170

200-205

5,600

15-17.5 50-55 155-160 1,064

(0-2.5)

4,200

0 10-15 0 164 156 7 4,900

40-42.5 257693954

5,9001,3001,351 42

5,300

0-2.5

5-7.5

(0-2.5)

0-2.5

12.5-15
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Royal Free Hospital, 
Pond Street, 

London, 
NW3 2QG 

 
Tel: 020 375 2000 

 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Grant Thornton House 
Melton Street 
Euston Square 
London 
NW1 2EP 
 
29th April 2015 
 
Dear Sirs 

 

Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust 

Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2014 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Barnet 
and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust for the period ended 30 June 2014 for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the accounting policies directed by the Secretary of State 
with the consent of the Treasury as relevant to the National Health Service in England. 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
Financial Statements 
i We acknowledge, as Trust Board members our responsibilities under the National Health Services 

Act 2006 for preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view and for making accurate 
representation to you. 

ii We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

iii Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 
value, are reasonable. The valuation of assets in the accounts is materially correct, in particular we 
are satisfied that the Computer Aided Design (CAD) drawings used in the valuation of Barnet 
Hospital and the Space Audit (including floor areas) of Chase Farm Hospital dated November 2013 
undertaken by AHP Ltd, have been properly calculated by appropriately qualified professionals. 

iv Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual 
for Accounts. 

v All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Manual for Accounts requires adjustment or disclosure have been 
adjusted or disclosed. 
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vi All agreed misstatements have been processed in the financial statements except where they are not 
material to the users' understanding of the accounts. We have not adjusted the PFI liability despite 
differences in output between our model and the DoH PFI model as we consider the differences to 
be immaterial to the results of the Trust and its financial position at the year-end.  The financial 
statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

vii In calculating the amount of income to be recognized in the accounts from the NHS organisations 
we have applied judgement, where appropriate, to reflect the appropriate amount of income 
expected to be received by the Trust in accordance with the Accounting Standards and Manual for 
Accounts. 

viii We acknowledge our responsibility to participate in the Department of Health's agreement of 
balances exercise and have followed the requisite guidance and directions to do so.  We are satisfied 
that the balances calculated for the Trust ensure the financial statements and consolidation 
schedules are free from material misstatement, including the impact of any disagreements. 

ix There is no current or pending litigation or claims against the Trust which we consider to be 
material in relation to the financial statements.  

Information Provided 

x We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 
and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Trust from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

xi All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 

xii We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may 
be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

xiii We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of 
and that affects the Trust and involves: 

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xiv We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the Trust’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators 
or others. 

xv We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with 
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 
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xvi We have disclosed to you the entity of the Trust’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Annual Report 

xvii The disclosures within the Annual Report fairly reflect our understanding if the Trust’s financial and 
operating performance over the period covered by the financial statements.  

Annual Governance Statement 

xviii The Trust has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.  There has been no non-compliance 
with requirements of the Care Quality Commission or other regulatory authorities that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

xix We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Trust’s risk 
assurance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks that are not 
disclosed within the AGS.   

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Trust’s Board at its meeting on 29th April 
2015 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board 
 
Name…………………………… 
 
Position…………………………. 
 
Date……………………………. 
 
 
Name…………………………… 
 
Position…………………………. 
 
Date……………………………. 
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

 

Executive summary   
 
The Strategy and Investment Committee (S&I) met on 23 April 2015. The key issues 
discussed were as follows: 

- there was an update on the pathology joint venture; 
- the Board Assurance Framework was discussed; and 
- the strategy & investment committee noted that following the board’s away day in 

February a plan had been developed in order to take forward the relevant and agreed 
actions. 

 
 

Action required  
To note. 
 

 

Trust governing objectives  Board assurance risk number(s) 
3 Excellent financial performance – to 

be in the top 10% of relevant peers 
on financial performance 

 

 

CQC outcomes supported by this paper  
26 Financial position 

 

 

Risks attached to this project / initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 
 
 

Equality impact assessment  
 

 

Public Patient and 
Carer involvement 

 

 
Report From Dominic Dodd (Chairman)  
Author(s) John Ashcroft (Head of planning)  
Date 24/4/15 
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FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE REPORT  

 
 

Executive summary   
 
The finance and performance committee met on 20 April 2015.    

 
The board is asked to note the following: 
 

 The committee reviewed the finance performance report for March 2015.  It was noted 
that a draft position had been presented as the trust’s final annual accounts were still in 
preparation, and specifically did not include any impact on impairments or fixed asset 
revaluation. 

 The committee noted the resource and accounting system (‘’FREDA’’) had gone live with 
missing catalogue items which had caused some difficulties; this problem had since been 
rectified.  The committee discussed the lessons learned from the roll out of the system. 

 The committee received the regular procurement update and was pleased to note the 
addition of a summary of the main projects on the trust’s benefit plan in relation to the 
trust’s PPS price procurement target for 2015/16 which formed part of the trust’s QIPP 
target.   

 The committee reviewed the QIPP current position for FY 15, and was pleased to note 
that the full year effect of the 2014/15 savings programme was projected to be above 
target by £0.3m.  It also reviewed the QIPP planning update for 2015/16 and the chair 
requested it would be useful to see more detail on the corporate savings. 

 The committee reviewed the Monitor Risk Assessment Framework, focusing its discussion 
on performance in relation to A&E, C. difficile, Cancer 62 days from GP referral and 
symptomatic breast two week wait. 

 The committee received the draft full operational plan 2015-2016 and members were 
asked to provide any further comments to the director of planning. 

 The committee discussed the Monitor annual self-certification in advance of consideration 
by the trust board at its meeting on 29 April 2015.  
 

The following statements are recommended for submission to Monitor. 
 

For Finance, that: 
The board anticipates that the trust will continue to maintain a financial risk rating of at 
least 3 over the next 12 months. 
 
The board confirms that there are no matters arising in the quarter requiring an exception 
report to Monitor (per the Risk Assessment Framework, page 22, diagram 6) which have 
not already been reported. 
 
For Governance that: 
The board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure: on-going compliance 
with all existing targets (after the application of thresholds) as set out in Appendix A of the 
Risk Assessment Framework; and, recognising risks to the 62 Day Cancer target in Q1 of 
2015/16, a commitment to comply with all known targets going forwards, other than those 
that are subject of a governance adjustment per Monitor’s decision of 30 May 2014. 
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Action required  
The board is asked to note feedback from the committee. 

 

Equality impact assessment  
No adverse impact 

 
 

Report From Dean Finch, Non-Executive Director and Chair of Finance and Performance 
Committee 

 

Author(s) Veronica Jackson, committee secretary   
Date 24 April 2015 
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Clinical performance commiittee report to trust board – April 2015 

 

 

 

 

CLINICAL PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE REPORT TO TRUST BOARD  

  
 

Executive summary  

The clinical performance committee met on 13 April 2015.   

 

Clinical audit performance – Look Back and Look Forward 
The committee received a paper setting out directorate plans to improve clinical care in 
2015/16 (‘Look Forward’) and actions completed in 2014/15 (‘Look Back’), which were driven 
by their national and local audit activity.  The material (excluding the Look Back) from this 
report would be included in the relevant section of the trust’s Quality Account 2015/16.   
 
The committee was pleased to note the progressive improvement seen in the national audits.    
It was also pleased to see the detailed content, noting that there was now a move to request 
more detailed commentary from the directorates.  The associate medical director for clinical 
performance reported that some divisions had found pulling together the information easier 
than others, and some sites were ahead of others in terms of shared learning.   
 
Noting that the aim of the associate medical director for clinical performance was to ensure 
that the audits were used as a tool for measuring performance, the committee considered 
that greater awareness of the purpose of the clinical audits from the trust’s viewpoint should 
be raised at the clinical director’s forum.    Furthermore, there appeared to be a lack of 
connection between how local audits fed into the context of the national audits, and 
confusion over who was responsible for leading on and collating the data.  The committee 
agreed that direction was needed on clarifying with the service lines whose role it was to lead 
on the audits and quality improvement, and how local priorities were at play in order to to 
shift the focus from national to local ownership.  
  
National Vascular Registry 
The committee received a report from the vascular team which was in the process of 
reporting to the national vascular registry (NVR).  Following a presentation to the committee 
in October, the team had been invited back to update the committee on the issues around 
the submissions of data to the NVR.   
 
The committee congratulated the team on the success of the aorta surgery register achieved 
to date, but the vascular department considered that further work was needed and sought 
the committee’s help, particularly around prioritisation of data entry within the service line, 
leadership, and clarity around the responsibilities of clinical directors in relation to the NVR.   
 
The committee concluded that this was an important issue that required its attention.  As the 
vascular team had sought the committee’s help, they were asked to attend the October 
meeting with a plan on how to improve prioritisation within the department further, and outline 

Report to 
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Clinical performance commiittee report to trust board – April 2015 

how they would like the committee to support this work.      
 
Work being undertaken in relation to stroke service at Barnet Hospital  
The committee received a presentation from the neuroscience coordinator on the national 
sentinel stroke national audit programme to which both the acute stoke units based at the 
Royal Free Hospital and Barnet Hospital contributed to.  The service at the Royal Free had 
scored very highly. 
 
She highlighted the bi-annual quality review by the London strategic clinical network had led 
to a review of various areas of scrutiny in relation to Barnet Hospital.  The committee was 
pleased to note the recommendations and outcomes arising from this work, including an 
increase in the nursing establishment to increase stroke capacity across all shifts, an 
overhaul of discharge summaries, and the implementation of a stroke-specific survey.   
 
The committee discussed the issue of patients presenting at Barnet Hospital with acute 
stroke who should have been referred to the nearest hyper acute stroke unit (HASU) but 
were in fact presenting to A&E and subsequently the acute stoke unit at Barnet Hospital 
instead.  The stroke team were working with external partners to ensure patients were 
referred to the appropriate unit in the first instance, and staff on the Barnet site were now 
more robust in ensuring that the HASU accepted patients.  The neuroscience coordinator 
confirmed that there was no issue with the delivery of care provided at the Royal Free 
Hospital’s and Barnet Hospital’s acute stroke units; patients would be managed as well as if 
they were in the HASU.  Furthermore, there were a number of consultants within the units 
that had experience of working in HASU.    
 
The chair stressed the importance of ensuring a good collective relationship between the two 
hospital sites, and shared learning.  It was noted that the stroke service was one of the last 
services to merge following the acquisition and as such there was still work to do.     
 
Review of high level performance metrics – patient mortality 
The committee received the report and was pleased to note that it contained data relating to 
Barnet Hospital.   
 
It was noted that there was a problem with the data provided by the Royal Free Hospital 
following a change in the commissioning data set.  The data has since been resubmitted as 
part of the usual monthly submissions and this refresh had now filtered into the Dr Foster 
analysis.  This has resulted in a demonstrable reduction in the Royal Free Hospital site 
relative risk of mortality for November and December.  However, data for quarter 2 
suggested that some of the improvements had yet to flow into the analysis.   
 
The chief information officer assured the committee that there was no issue in relation to the 
trust’s data entry or coding.  The inaccuracy detailed above was a local issue related to the 
format of the data output required by Dr Foster.  He reported that due to a lag in Dr Foster 
reporting its data, there had been a delay with this problem having been flagged with the 
reporting team.   
 
The chair concluded that due to the lack of Dr Foster alerts highlighting negative (higher) 
mortality risk, the above was not considered to be an issue that required the committee’s 
further attention at the moment. 
 
 

Action required/recommendation 

The committee is asked to note the report. 
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Clinical performance commiittee report to trust board – April 2015 

Trust strategic priorities and business planning objectives 

supported by this paper  

Board assurance risk 

number(s) 

1. Excellent outcomes – to be in the top 10% of our peers on 

outcomes 

X 

2. Excellent user experience – to be in the top 10% of relevant 

peers on patient, GP and staff experience 

X 

4. Excellent compliance with our external duties – to meet our 

external obligations effectively and efficiently 

X 

 

CQC outcomes supported by this paper  

1 Respecting and involving people who use services 

2 Consent to care and treatment 

3 Fees 

4 Care and welfare of people who use services 

5 Meeting nutritional needs 

6 Cooperating with other providers 

7 Safeguarding people who use services from abuse 

8 Cleanliness and infection control 

9 Management of medicines 

10 Safety and suitability of premises 

11 Safety, availability and suitability of equipment 

12 Requirements relating to workers 

13 Staffing 

14 Supporting staff 

15 Statement of purpose 

16 Assessing and monitoring the quality of service provision 

17 Complaints 

18 Notification of death of service user 

19 Notification of death or unauthorised absence of service user who is detained or liable to be detained under the Mental 

Health Act 1983 

20 Notification of other incidents 

21 Records 

23 Requirement where the service provider is a body other than a partnership 

25 Registered person: training 

26 Financial position 

28 Notifications – notice of changes 
 

 

Risks attached to this project/initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 

As outlined in the report. 
 

Equality analysis  

 No identified negative impact on equality and diversity 
 

Report from Prof Anthony Schapira, non-executive director and chair and clinical 

performance committee   

Author(s) Veronica Jackson, committee secretary  

Date 21 April 2015 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 26 MARCH 2015 AND FINAL 

CONFIRMED MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 22 JANUARY 

2015. 

 
 

Executive summary   

The chair of the committee wishes to draw the board’s attention to the following: 

 
Sign off of the legacy Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust 3-month accounts 
to 30 June 2014 
The committee had hoped to sign off the accounts at its March meeting but this was not 
possible as further assurance was still being sought in relation to the estate valuations.   
 
Internal Audit 
The internal auditors reflected positively on the trust’s status 9 months post-acquisition.  
They considered that there had been a safe transition to the new organisation, with 
integration issues having been managed in an ordered way, with the business as usual 
period now being entered.  The committee was pleased to note that the trust compared 
favourably with other merged NHS organisations at the same stage post-merger. 
The internal audit plan was still behind but would be completed in time for the approval of the 
annual accounts.  The Head of Internal Audit opinion is likely to be “significant assurance” 
but noting a number of areas where reviews had resulted in an amber/red rating. 
 
Internal audit safeguarding children review 
The committee received a report on internal audit’s review of the trust’s arrangements for 
safeguarding children, with a rating of ‘significant assurance with minor improvement 
potential.’ Noting that a unified child safeguarding policy was due to be finalised by April 
2015, the committee suggested that a review of compliance with the policy (which would 
cover all three hospitals) be included as part of this year’s audit programme.  It also 
requested that non-compliant cases found in the sample audited be reported in the next 
safeguarding report to the trust board.   
 
Internal audit Information Governance Toolkit review 
The committee received a report with an amber/red rating of ‘partial assurance with 
improvements required.’   
 

The trust was working hard to achieve the level 2 with the 95% completion rate for the 
information governance training requirement of the Toolkit by 31 March 2015.  Failure to 
reach the level 2 standard could potentially have financial implications for the trust  
The committee requested that the board be notified should the trust fail to achieve the 
standard and declare level 2 compliance. 
 
Internal Audit Review – Temporary Staffing 
The committee recommended that the completion date for a number of high priority 
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recommendations relating to controls around expenditure on temporary staffing be brought 
forward. 
 
General themes arising from the internal audit reviews   
In concluding the discussion on the eight internal audit reviews presented, the committee 
noted two themes which had arisen across a number of reviews, namely documentation and 
Mandatory and Statutory (MaST) training.  It was agreed that the chair highlight these issues 
with the board.   
 
External audit plan 2015-16 changed to incorporate new risks 
The committee received a progress report from PwC.  It was noted that the external audit 
plan 2015-16 (approved by the committee in November 2015) had been amended to reflect 
several changes to PwC’s risk assessment of the trust; these mainly related to the 
acquisition. 
 

The committee approved the changes as part of the revised external audit plan. 
 
The committee also approved several accounting policies. 
 
Local counter fraud service  
The committee approved Baker Tilly’s Local Counter Fraud Specialist workplan 2015/16.  As 
part of this year’s plan, Baker Tilly would undertake a fraud and bribery risk assessment 
across the trust which would enable a greater understanding of the specific risks that the 
organisation faced. 
 
The committee noted the decrease in the number of staff undertaking fraud training (a 
decrease of 9% since the last reporting period). 
 
Whistleblowing – update on new incident  
The director of nursing was invited to the meeting to update members on a recent 
whistleblowing case which had already been reported to the trust board.  The committee 
requested that the director of nursing agree the appropriate governance for this new incident 
with the medical director. 
 
Tender Waivers 
The committee requested further information on a contract where only one tender had been 
submitted. 
 
CQC Processes 
The committee discussed those areas where it would like to receive assurance during 
2015/16 and requested that a report on the processes in place for ensuring compliance with 
CQC standards be brought to the September meeting. 
 
 

Action required 
 
The board is asked to note the issues highlighted above. 
 
 

Trust strategic priorities and business planning objectives supported by this paper 

1. Excellent outcomes – to be in the top 10% of our peers on outcomes 

2. Excellent user experience – to be in the top 10% of relevant peers on patient, GP and 

staff experience 

3. Excellent financial performance – to be in the top 10% of relevant peers on financial 
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performance 

4. Excellent compliance with our external duties – to meet our external obligations 

effectively and efficiently 

5. A strong organisation for the future – to strengthen the organisation for the future 
 

CQC outcomes supported by this paper  
All CQC outcomes  

 

Risks attached to this project/initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 
N/A 
 

Equality analysis  
No identified negative impact on equality and diversity 
 

 

Report from 

 

Deborah Oakley, non-executive director and chair of audit committee 

 

Author(s) Deborah Oakley 

Veronica Jackson, committee secretary 

 

Date 24 April 2015 

 



 

 

 

           

Minutes of the Audit Committee 
22 January 2015 

 

  ACTION 

114/15 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies were received from Janet Dawson, PwC.  

115/15 MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 27 NOVEMBER 2014  

 The minutes were agreed as a true record of the meeting.  

 ACTION LOG AND MATTERS ARISING  

116/15 Review open actions log (for noting)  

 The committee reviewed the action log, noting that outstanding actions were either on the 
current agenda or were for follow up at future meetings.  

 
 

117/15 Notice of discussion of items marked ‘for information’ (by exception)  

  The committee wished to discuss item 10.1 tender waivers.   

 QUALITY OF CARE   

118/15 Datix systems – processes and assurance report   

 The committee welcomed Hester Wain, the trust’s deputy director for patient safety and 
risk to the meeting who provided a processes and assurance report on the trust’s 
electronic incident reporting system, Datix.  This was requested in the context of the 
‘’learning from incidents’’ risk on the Board Assurance Framework, where previously 
issues around the timeliness in completing investigations and implementing 
recommendations, and confidence in the internal reporting system had been highlighted. 
 
The committee noted that the total number of reported incidents across all the trust’s 
hospital sites had increased significantly, with a particular step change in the data 
reported from October 2014.  There were now 1,600 incidents per month being reported 
and the committee questioned whether there was sufficient resource to deal with this level 
of reporting.  It also noted that 1,230 legacy incidents remained open. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Present: 
Ms Deborah Oakley, non-executive director (committee chair) 
Mr Stephen Ainger, non-executive director  
Ms Jenny Owen, non-executive director  
In attendance: 
Ms Caroline Clarke, deputy chief executive and chief financial officer 
Mr Paul Kimber, assistant director of finance – financial control 
Mr Mike Dinan, director of financial operations  
Mr Louis Dockree, local counter fraud specialist - managing consultant, Baker Tilly 
Mr David Foley, local counter fraud specialist – consultant, Baker Tilly 
Mr Neil Thomas, head of internal audit - partner, KPMG 
Mr Gary Macleod, internal audit – manager, KPMG 
Mr Charles Martin, engagement leader -  PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Ms Lubna Dharssi, head of financial services  
Ms Hester Wain, deputy director of patient safety and risk (item 118/15 only) 
Mr Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton (item 120/15 to only) 
Mr Marcus Ward, Grant Thornton (item 120/15 to only) 
Mr K Fleming, director of planning (item 129/15 only) 
Mr D Grantham, director of workforce and organisational development (item 134/15 only)  
Ms A Macdonald, acting trust secretary 
Ms V Jackson, committee secretary (minutes) 
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The committee requested the following: 
 confirmation that the incident data reported was accurate, and asked that the 

volumes, including the number of incidents reported previously across the three 
sites, be validated; and  

 formal confirmation from the medical director that the legacy cases had been 
reviewed thoroughly and that no incident of serious harm had been missed.   

 
A new quality governance structure was currently under consultation; the aim was to have 
the agreed staff in post by 1 March.  The new structure would define more clearly the split 
between ‘’risk and safety’’ and ‘’compliance and audit’’.  It was agreed that a report on the 
wider governance processes below board committee level would be brought to a future 
meeting. 
   
The discussion also highlighted a related issue; Mr Smart, the trust’s director for 
information management and technology (IM&T) would be asked to confirm whether 
disaster recovery was in place for IM&T projects such as Datix. 
 
For the longer term the committee wished to see the full benefits of the electronic system 
realised with data from all sources tri-angulated, and a more robust feedback process to 
individual staff.  The ultimate goal being a reduction in harm to patients. 
 
Future quality of care agenda items would be agreed at the March meeting when the audit 
committee’s annual rolling work programme would be reviewed.  
 

 
HW 
 
SPo 
 
 
SPo 
 
 
WS 
 
 
 
 
VJ 
 

 LEGACY – BARNET AND CHASE FARM HOSPITALS NHS TRUST (BCF)  

119/15 Update on the process and assurances for sign off of 3-month accounts   

 The committee received a verbal update on the trust’s responsibilities for the closedown 
accounts for the legacy Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust (BCF).  The trust 
was awaiting a letter from the Department of Health (DOH) as to whether it was required 
to prepare an annual report.  However, confirmation was given that the committee would 
be in a position to review, and the board to sign off, the annual accounts in March 2015 as 
planned.    

 
 

120/15 Grant Thornton update report on audit at BCF   

 The report was nearing completion; to date Grant Thornton had not identified any 
significant issues and they were on course to sign the external audit opinion as planned 
by March.  It was confirmed that there had been no change in accounting treatments and 
as such there would be a set of audited accounts ready for sign off by March.  However, 
colleagues were still awaiting DOH to release the year end templates – this was 
confirmed as being a reporting/presentational issue only. 

In response to a question, it was noted that the amber recommendation in relation to 
journals would be immaterial. 

Ms Dharssi reported that the July financial position had changed as a result of the final 
estates revaluation and movements in the income provisions; there was now i) a £5m 
impairment; ii) a release of income provisions amounting to £4m; and iii) an increase to 
other income provisions of approximately £2m.   

It was agreed that the workshop for audit committee members, key finance staff and 
Montagu Evans would be scheduled for the last week of February. [Post meeting note: 
This has been scheduled for 26 February 2015, 1000 – 1200, finance conference room, 
lower ground floor, RFH] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VJ 

 INTERNAL AUDIT   

121/15 Progress report and technical update  

 The committee was concerned at significant slippage by KPMG in the completion of the 
internal audit plan.  The head of internal audit reported that this was due to a number of 
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factors, but a plan was in place to remedy the situation.  He was personally tracking the 
progress of four reports that were due to be finalised within the next two weeks, and 
weekly progress updates would be provided to finance colleagues, with areas of concern / 
issues escalated to the audit committee chair where necessary.  The internal auditors 
offered to meet separately with the audit committee members in advance of the next 
meeting to review the outstanding reports. [Post meeting note: This has been scheduled 
to take place at the end of the legacy BCF accounts meeting on 26 February 2015, 1130 
– 1200]  

It was noted that the lack of progress would not impact on the trust’s external auditor’s 
ability to place reliance on work due to be completed by KPMG. 

 
 

122/15 Follow up of recommendations    

 The committee noted the outstanding high priority recommendation in relation to the 
quality of data input for cancelled operations.  The delay had been considered in the 
context of the data quality priorities and other pressures, namely the RTT exercise, which 
faced the data quality team.  Noting that an audit was undertaken by the external auditors 
of the data quality within the quality accounts, a decision would need to be taken on how 
progress on this would be reported in the quality account 2014/15.  Ms Clarke offered to 
speak with Kate Slemeck, the chief operating officer and Tony Ewart, head of 
performance to agree a way forward.      
 
In response to a comment from Ms Owen on the outstanding 16 medium rated 
recommendations, the chair reminded the committee that it had been agreed that only 
information on those recommendations which were more than six months overdue would 
automatically be provided to the committee. 
 

 
 
 
 
CC 
 
 
 

123/15 Reviews – server operations management     

 The trust’s internal auditors had completed a review of the trust’s server operations 
management which had identified a number of operational and strategic issues as points 
for development, specifically six red-rated recommendations.  The main issue was around 
server resilience.  It was noted that, as this had been a management-requested review, 
no overall assurance rating had been given at this stage with the intention being to review 
progress on implementing the recommendations prior to issuing the head of internal audit 
opinion.  Management had specifically requested this review to look at areas of good 
practice and highlight areas for improvement.   

The committee requested that the director of IM&T provide a progress update on this 
issue at the next meeting in March.  The committee questioned whether this risk was 
captured on the risk register.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
WS 

 EXTERNAL AUDIT   

124/15 PwC progress report   

 Mr Martin brought the committee’s attention to Monitor’s updated version of the audit code 
which was published in December 2014 and which replaced the previous version dated 
March 2011.  PwC would work with the committee to understand the implications of 
enhanced audit reporting on the trust’s annual report, and provided an illustrative 
enhanced audit report which highlighted the likely format of the report and the level of 
detail PwC would be expected to include.  He confirmed that the audit fee agreed as part 
of the external audit plan would not change in light of this recent development.  
 

 
 

125/15 Audit committee’s responses to PwC’s questions on fraud     

 The report, which was for information only as it had already been agreed outside of the 
meeting, outlined the audit committee’s responses to the four questions on fraud which 
PwC had requested in their external audit plan 2014/15. 

 

126/15 Final RFL NHS FT 2014/15 annual accounts timetable and plan   
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 The committee noted the key dates for the financial accounts submissions.  As per item 
120/15, the workshop for audit committee members, key finance staff and Montagu Evans 
to review the legacy BCF accounts would be scheduled for the last week of 
February. [Post meeting note: This has been scheduled for 26 February 2015, 1000 – 
1200] 

 

127/15 Accounting policies 2014-15  

 The committee approved the changes made to the trust’s accounting policies.  The 
changes had been made in line with developments in the year and the release of 
Monitor’s Annual Reporting Manual.  

 

 COUNTERFRAUD  

128/15 Progress report, including follow up of recommendations  

 The committee noted that the trust’s local counter fraud service

    

 

 
  

 
Mr Dockree would confirm HMRC’s process for identifying fraudulent use of national 
insurance numbers, although it was noted that from the trust’s perspective this appeared 
to be a data quality issue rather than a fraud issue.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LD 

 GOVERNANCE  

129/15 Board assurance framework (BAF)  

 The committee reviewed the quarter three BAF,  
 

 
 

 
  

 

It was noted that the clinical performance committee (CPC) had reviewed the BAF at its 
meeting earlier that week and having noticed that there was no risk for which the CPC 
should be the lead committee, concluded that this was correct.    

Both internal and external audit considered that the trust’s risks were in a similar vein to 
those seen at other trusts, particularly in relation to financial risks, but noted the added 
complexity associated with the integration.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KF 

130/15 Confirmed minutes of the patient safety committee in December 2014  

 The minutes were noted.   

 FINANCIAL  
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131/15 Tender waivers: pharmacy, supplies and projects  

 The committee noted the following: 

 
Mr Smart, director of IM&T would be asked to clarify patient Wi-Fi and costs, in particular 
whether it was free for the user. 

 
 
 
 
WS 

132//15 Losses and special payments   

 The committee thanked Mr Kimber for the additional detail on overseas debt recovery 
which related to the RFH.  Benchmarking data to show the rate of recovery nationally was 
being sought, and future reports would also show data for Barnet and Chase Farm 
hospitals. 

 
 
PK 

133/15 Minor revisions to the SFIs – points of clarification   

 The committee approved the minor revisions made to the SFIs.  

 WHISTLEBLOWING   

134/15 Incidents of whistleblowing, including incidents log   

 The committee noted the whistleblowing action log which summarised all incidents which 
were currently active or would be reported from now on.   In addition, there was now a 
combined central log for recording incidents of whistleblowing to which Ms Macdonald, 
acting trust secretary and David Grantham’s PA had access. 

  

 
 

 
 

   

Ms Owen noted that the progress report on had been 
passed to the patient and staff experience committee for follow up, however this did not 
appear to be on the agenda for the meeting on 19 January.  Mr Grantham would draft a 
report for tabling at the committee. 

It was noted that the whistleblowing proforma submitted to the Public Accounts 
Committee had provided the information that was available to HR at that time and as such 
was considered to be correct.  The committee felt that it would be best practice to send a 
revised proforma to the PAC explaining the situation and providing the correct information.

Mr Grantham would attend future committees to talk to this item.  Prof Steve Powis, the 
medical director would accompany him in the event there was a particular clinical case to 
raise.         

 
 
 
KF / AM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DG 
 
 
DG 

135/15 ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

 There was no item of other business.      

136/15 REFLECTIONS, IMPROVEMENTS FOR NEXT TIME  

 There was no comment.  

137/15 BOARD REPORTING  
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 The committee agreed for the chair to feedback the key issues discussed to the board at 
its meeting on 29 January 2015: 

 Datix systems processes and assurance report. 
 Update on the sign off of the legacy BCF 3-month accounts 
 Internal audit reviews 
 Internal audit review on server operations management 
 Counter fraud referrals in the reported period 
 Board assurance framework 

 

138/15 PRIVATE MEETING BETWEEN AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND AUDITORS AND 
COUNTER FRAUD OFFICERS 

 

 The audit committee members and the external providers chose not to hold a brief 
meeting on this occasion. 

 

 
Date of next meeting 
The committee would next meet on Thursday 26 March 2015, 1000 – 1230 in the boardroom, chief 
executive’s office, 2nd floor, Royal Free Hospital, Pond Street, London, NW3 2QG. 
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Monitor self-certifications: Certification G6 and Certification on AHSCs and governance 

and training of governors and Corporate Governance Statement. 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

As part of the 2015/16 annual planning round the board is required submit to Monitor two self-

certifications in addition to those incorporated in the annual plan. These are: 

 Certification G6 - Declarations required by General condition 6 of the NHS provider 

licence – for submission by 29 May 

 Certification on AHSCs and governance and training of governors/Corporate 

Governance Statement – for submission by 30 June. 

 

These self-certifications comprise of four statements regarding governance of the trust which 

the board are asked to consider. 

 

 

Action required 

The board is asked to: 

 note the requirements of the self-certifications; and 

 confirm that it considers the board should sign: 

 the declarations required by General condition 6 of the NHS provider licence 

 the certification on AHSCs and governance (including Joint Ventures) 

 the certification on training of governors 

 the Corporate Governance Statement. 

 

Trust strategic priorities and business planning objectives 

supported by this paper  

Board assurance risk 

number(s) 

1. Excellent outcomes  

2. Excellent user experience   

3. Excellent financial performance  

4. Excellent compliance with our external duties   

5. A strong organisation for the future  

 

Risks attached to this project/initiative and how these will be managed (assurance) 

See the report. 

 

Report to 

 

Date of meeting Attachment number 

Trust Board  29 April 2015 Paper 16 
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Equality analysis  

No identified negative impact on equality and diversity  

 

Report from Kim Fleming  

Author(s) Tom Snowdon  

Date 22 April 2015 
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Monitor self-certifications 

 

1. Introduction 

 

As part of the 2015/16 annual planning round the board is required submit to Monitor two self-

certifications in addition to those incorporated in the annual plan. These are: 

 Certification G6 - Declarations required by General condition 6 of the NHS provider licence – for 

submission by 29 May 

 Certification on AHSCs and governance and training of governors/Corporate Governance 

Statement – for submission by 30 June. 

 

These self-certifications comprise four statements regarding governance of the trust, as outlined below 

 

2. Detail of statements requiring confirmation 

 

2.1 Certification G6 - Declarations required by General condition 6 of the NHS provider licence  

Certification G6 (appendix 1) requests that the board confirm that, in the financial year recently 

ended, we had suitable systems and processes in place in order to comply with the conditions of our 

licence, any requirements imposed on us under NHS Acts and that we have had regard to the NHS 

constitution, and that we will continue to do.  

 

The conditions of the licence (appendix 2) were reviewed by the trust executive on 14 April. 

Responsible executives can provide assurance of compliance with these licence conditions. 

 

2.2 Certification on AHSCs and governance 

The certification on AHSCs and governance (appendix 3) asks the board to confirm that suitable 

governance is in place surrounding Joint Ventures and Academic Health Science Centres (AHSCs)  

 

2.3 Certification on training of governors 

The certification of training of governors (appendix 3) asks the board to confirm it is satisfied that in 

the FY15 we provided the necessary training to our Governors to ensure they are equipped with the 

skills and knowledge they need to undertake their role. 

 

2.4 Corporate Governance Statement 

The Corporate Governance Statement (appendix 4) was reviewed and agreed at the January board, 

six months after the acquisition. The board are asked to reflect on whether the statement requires 

further review at this time, or is suitable for submission in its current form. 

 

3. Next steps 

 

The board is asked to: 

 note the requirements of the self-certifications; and 

 confirm that it considers the board should sign: 

 the declarations required by General condition 6 of the NHS provider licence (appendix 1&2) 

 the certification on AHSCs and governance including Joint Ventures (appendix 3) 

 the certification on training of governors (appendix 3) 

 the Corporate Governance Statement. (appendix 4) 



Worksheet "Certification G6"

1 & 2 General condition 6 - Systems for compliance with license conditions

1 Confirmed

2 Confirmed

Signed on behalf of the board of directors, and having regard to the views of the governors

Signature Signature

Name Dominic Dodd Name David Sloman

Capacity Chairman Capacity Chief Executive

Date Date

A

B

Declarations required by General condition 6 of the NHS provider licence

Further explanatory information should be provided below where the Board has been unable to confirm declarations 1 or 2 

above.

The board are required to respond "Confirmed" or "Not confirmed" to the following statements (please select 'not confirmed' if confirming 

another option).  Explanatory information should be provided where required. 

Following a review for the purpose of paragraph 2(b) of licence condition G6, the Directors of the Licensee 

are satisfied, as the case may be that, in the Financial Year most recently ended, the Licensee took all such 

precautions as were necessary in order to comply with the conditions of the licence, any requirements 

imposed on it under the NHS Acts and have had regard to the NHS Constitution.

AND

The board declares that the Licensee continues to meet the criteria for holding a licence.

Appendix 1 Paper 16
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Monitor licence conditions, responsible board committees and executive leads 
 
 

 Conditions Description Responsible board 
committee 

Executive lead 

 General licence conditions:    

G1 
 
 
G2 
 
G3 
 
G4 
 
 
 
 
G5 
 
G6 
 
 
 
G7 
 
 
G8 
 
 
 
G9 

Provision of information 
 
 
Publication of information 
 
Payment of fees to monitor 
 
Fit and Proper persons 
 
 
 
 
Monitor guidance 
 
Systems for compliance with 
licence conditions and related 
obligations 
 
Registration with the care 
quality commission 
 
Patient eligibility and selection 
criteria 
 
 
Application of section 5 
(continuity of services) 

To provide Monitor with any information they require 
for licencing functions 
 
To publish such information as Monitor may require 
 
To pay Monitor such fees as it requires 
 
To prevent licensees from allowing unfit persons to  
become or continue as governors or directors 
 
 
 
To have regard to any guidance that Monitor issues 
 
To take all reasonable precautions against the risk of 
failure to comply with the licence and other important 
requirements 
 
To be registered with the CQC and to notify Monitor if 
their registration is cancelled 
 
To require licence holders to set transparent eligibility 
and selection criteria for patients and to apply these in a 
transparent manner 
 
Sets out the conditions under which a service will be 
designated as a commissioner requested services 

Trust executive 
 
 
Trust executive 

 
Finance & performance 
 
Trust board (remuneration 
committee)/ council of 
governors(nominations 
committee) 
 
Trust executive 
 
Patient safety 
 
 
 
Patient safety 
 
 
Trust executive 
 
 
 
Finance & performance 

KF 
 
 
KF 
 
CC 
 
DD/DSl 
 
 
 
 
KF 
 
DSa/SP 
 
 
 
DSa 
 
 
KF 
 
 
 
KF 
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 Conditions Description Responsible board 
committee 

Executive lead 

 Pricing conditions:    

P1 
 
 
 
P2 
 
 
P3 
 
 
P4 
 
 
 
P5 

Recording of information 
 
 
 
Provision of information 
 
 
Assurance report on 
submissions to Monitor 
 
Compliance with the national 
tariff 
 
 
Constructive engagement 
concerning local tariff 
modifications 

To oblige licensees to record information, particularly 
about their costs, in line with guidance published by 
Monitor 
 
Such information can be required to be submitted to 
Monitor 
 
To submit an assurance report on such information 
confirming it to be accurate, if required by Monitor 
 
To charge for NHS health care services in line with the 
National Tariff 
 
 
To engage constructively with commissioners, and to try 
to reach agreement locally on price modification, before 
applying to Monitor for a modification 

Finance and performance 
 
 
 
Finance and performance 
 
 
Audit committee 
 
 
Finance and performance 
 
 
 
Finance and performance 
 

CC 
 
 
 
CC 
 
 
CC 
 
 
KF 
 
 
 
KF 

 Choice & competition 
conditions: 

   

C1 
 
 
 
 
C2 

Patient choice 
 
 
 
 
Competition oversight 
 

Protects the patients’ rights to choose between 
providers by obliging providers to make information 
available and act in a fair way where patients have a 
choice of provider 
 
Prevents providers from entering into or maintaining 
agreements that have the object or effect of preventing, 
restricting, or distorting competition to the extent that 
it is against health care users 
 
 

Trust executive 
 
 
 
 
Trust executive 

KS 
 
 
 
 
CC 



Appendix 2   Paper 16 

 

 Conditions Description Responsible board 
committee 

Executive lead 

 Integrated care condition:    

IC1 Integrated care The licensee shall not do anything that could reasonably 
be regarded as detrimental to enabling integrated care 
 

Trust executive KD 

 Continuity of service 
conditions: 

   

CoS1 
 
 
 
 
 
CoS2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CoS3 
 
 
 
CoS4 
 
 
CoS5 
 
 
 
 

Continuing provision of 
commissioner requested 
services 
 
 
 
Restriction on the disposal of 
assets 
 
 
 
 
 
Standards of corporate 
governance and financial 
management 
 
Undertaking from the ultimate 
controller 
 
Risk pool levy 
 
 
 
 

Prevents licensees from ceasing to provide 
commissioner requested services or from changing the 
way in which they provide Commissioner Requested 
Services, without the agreement of relevant 
commissioners 
 
Ensures that licensees keep an up-to-date register of 
relevant assets used in the provision of commissioner 
requested services.  It also creates a requirement for 
licensees to obtain Monitor’s consent before disposing 
of these assets when Monitor is concerned about the 
ability of the licensee to carry on a going concern 
 
Requires licensees to have due regard to adequate 
standards of corporate governance and financial 
management. 
 
Not relevant to Royal Free London 
 
 
Obliges licensees to contribute, if required, towards the 
funding of the ‘risk pool’, an insurance mechanism to 
pay for vital services if a provider fails 
 
 

Trust executive 
 
 
 
 
 
Strategy & investment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance & performance 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
Finance & performance 
 
 
 
 

KS 
 
 
 
 
 
CC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC 
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 Conditions Description Responsible board 
committee 

Executive lead 

CoS6 
 
 
 
CoS7 

Co-operation in the event of 
financial stress 
 
 
Availability of resources 

Applies when a licensee fails a test of sound finances, 
and obliges the licensee to co-operate with Monitor in 
these circumstances  
 
Requires licensees to act in a way that secures access to 
the resources needed to operate commissioner 
requested services. 
 

Finance & performance 
 
 
 
Trust executive 
 

CC 
 
 
 
CC 

 Foundation trust licence 
conditions: 

   

FT1 
 
 
 
FT2 
 
 
FT3 
 
 
FT4 

Information to update the 
register of NHS foundation 
trusts 
 
Payment to Monitor in respect 
of registration and related costs 
 
Provision of information to 
advisory panel 
 
NHS foundation trust 
governance arrangements 

Ensure that NHS foundation trusts provide required 
documentation to Monitor  
 
 
To require licensees to pay fees should this be 
introduced (following consultation)  
 
To require licensees to provide information requested 
by the advisory panel to governors 
 
Will enable Monitor to continue oversight of 
governance of the NHS trusts.   

Trust executive 
 
 
 
Finance & performance  
 
 
Trust executive  
 
 
Audit committee 

KF 
 
 
 
CC 
 
 
KF 
 
 
CC 

 
 
 
April 2015 



Worksheet "Other declarations"

Certification on AHSCs and governance and training of governors

5 Certification on AHSCs and governance Response

Confirmed

6 Training of Governors

Confirmed

Signed on behalf of the Board of directors, and having regard to the views of the governors

Signature Signature

Name Name

Capacity [job title here] Capacity [job title here]

Date Date

The Board is satisfied it has or continues to:

• ensure that the partnership will not inhibit the trust from remaining at all times compliant with the 

conditions of its licence;

• have appropriate governance structures in place to maintain the decision making autonomy of the 

trust;

• conduct an appropriate level of due diligence relating to the partners when required;

• consider implications of the partnership on the trust’s financial risk rating having taken full account of 

any contingent liabilities arising and reasonable downside sensitivities;

• consider implications of the partnership on the trust’s governance processes;

• conduct appropriate inquiry about the nature of services provided by the partnership, especially 

clinical, research and education services, and consider reputational risk;

• comply with any consultation requirements;

• have in place the organisational and management capacity to deliver the benefits of the partnership;

• involve senior clinicians at appropriate levels in the decision-making process and receive assurance 

from them that there are no material concerns in relation to the partnership, including consideration of 

any re-configuration of clinical, research or education services;

• address any relevant legal and regulatory issues (including any relevant to staff, intellectual property 

and compliance of the partners with their own regulatory and legal framework);

• ensure appropriate commercial risks are reviewed;

• maintain the register of interests and no residual material conflicts identified; and

• engage the governors of the trust in the development of plans and give them an opportunity to 

express a view on these plans.

The Board is satisfied that during the financial year most recently ended the Trust has provided the 

necessary training to its Governors, as required in s151(5) of the Health and Social Care Act, to ensure 

they are equipped with the skills and knowledge they need to undertake their role.

The Board are required to respond "Confirmed" or "Not confirmed" to the following statements.  Explanatory information should be provided where required.

For NHS foundation trusts:

• that are part of a major Joint Venture or Academic Health Science Centre (AHSC); or

• whose Boards are considering entering into either a major Joint Venture or an AHSC.
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A

B

C

Where boards are unable to self-certify, they should make an alternative declaration by amending the self-certification as necessary, and including any significant prospective 

risks and concerns the foundation trust has in respect of delivering quality services and effective quality governance

The Board are unable make one of more of the confirmations on the preceding page and accordingly declare:
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 1 

 
 
 

Board corporate governance statement 
Post acquisition review January 2015 

 
 

Statement  Evidence for plans in place by 31 December 2014  Risks and mitigations 

1 
 

The Board is satisfied that the Royal 
Free London NHS Foundation Trust 
applies those principles, systems and 
standards of good corporate 
governance which reasonably would be 
regarded as appropriate for a supplier 
of health care services to the NHS 

RF’s corporate governance assessed by Monitor early 2012 as 
part of FT application. 
Strengthened board committee arrangements introduced in 
early 2014 in response to Francis report and CQC changes.  
Additional integration committee established to oversee 
organisational integration met from February 2014 onwards. 
Monitor risk assessment and external accountants’ review in 
early 2014 both help to review assurance.   
 

Mitigation 
Regular external governance review to 
be undertaken at least once every three 
years (per Risk assessment framework).   

2 
 

The Board has regard to such guidance 
on good corporate governance as may 
be issued by Monitor from time to time 

Trust secretary reviews all Monitor publications. 
Director of planning ensures Monitor’s planning and reporting 
requirements are followed.  

Mitigation 
Regular external governance review to 
be undertaken at least once every three 
years (per Risk assessment framework).   

3 The Board is satisfied that the Royal 
Free London NHS Foundation Trust 
implements: 

  

3a 
 
 

effective board and committee 
structures; 

Monitor assessment as part of FT application Q1 2012. 
Strengthened board committee arrangements introduced in 
early 2014 in response to Francis report and CQC changes.  
Additional integration committee established to oversee 
organisational integration met from February 2014 onwards. 
Monitor risk assessment and external accountants’ review in 
early 2014 both help to review assurance.   
Board governance kept under continual review, for example 
frequency of strategy and investment committee changed. 
Reflections and improvements standing agenda item for 
board committees. 

Risk 
Board and committees lose their 
effectiveness.  
Mitigation 
Regular external governance review to 
be undertaken at least once every three 
years (per Risk assessment framework). 
Governor representation on 
appropriate committees.   
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 2 

Statement  Evidence for plans in place by 31 December 2014  Risks and mitigations 

Board discussed at January meeting whether any changes 
were required to the board governance structure and agreed 
that the changes already made should be allowed to further 
embed.  It was agreed to return to this later in the year. 
 
 Annual review of committee effectiveness. 

 

3b 
 
 

clear responsibilities for its Board, for 
committees reporting to the Board and 
for staff reporting to the Board and 
those committees; and 

Constitution has been modified to suit the organisation’s 
larger area of operations. 
Terms of reference and membership of all board committees 
are reviewed at least annually by the board. 
 

Risks 
Focus of committees is not on 
contemporary problems. 
Scope of committees overlap or leave 
gaps. 
Mitigations 
Board assurance framework 
fundamentally reviewed annually. 
Annual review of terms of reference. 
All committee terms of reference 
reviewed together. 

3c 
 

clear reporting lines and 
accountabilities throughout its 
organisation. 

Executive scheme of delegation. 
Revised operating model to manage larger area of operations. 
Reinforcement of culture of clinically led organisation. 
Integration plan summarises how the structure has been 
implemented.    

Risk 
Staff are not clear about their position 
in the combined organisation 
Mitigation 
All structures in place; current 
structures shown on the intranet.  

4 
 

The Board is satisfied that the Royal 
Free London NHS Foundation Trust 
effectively implements systems and/or 
processes 

  

4a 
 

to ensure compliance with the Licence 
holder’s duty to operate efficiently, 
economically and effectively; 

Board committee structure and processes, especially monthly 
finance and performance committee and weekly trust 
executive committee. 
Quarterly and annual board statements. 
 

Mitigation 
Regular external governance review to 
be undertaken at least once every three 
years (per Risk assessment framework) 
as part of Internal Audit process.   

4b 
 

for timely and effective scrutiny and 
oversight by the Board of the Licence 

Board committee structures and processes. 
Constitution. 

Mitigation 
Regular external governance review to 
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Statement  Evidence for plans in place by 31 December 2014  Risks and mitigations 

 holder’s operations; be undertaken at least once every three 
years (per Risk assessment framework). 

4c 
 
 

to ensure compliance with health care 
standards binding on the Licence holder 
including but not restricted to 
standards specified by the Secretary of 
State, the Care Quality Commission, the 
NHS Commissioning Board and 
statutory regulators of health care 
professions; 

Finance and performance committee. 
Patient safety committee. 
Plan to be agreed to reachieve at trust level national 18 week, 
and accident and emergency four hour, wait standards;  and 
Clostridium difficile targets for our patients. 

Example risk 
18 week, and accident and emergency 
four hour, wait standards are not 
reachieved within the periods to be 
stated. 
Mitigation 
Development with partners of a 
realistic, agreed plan based on 
ascertained facts and identified capacity 
with appropriate monitoring. 

4d 
 
 

for effective financial decision-making, 
management and control (including but 
not restricted to appropriate systems 
and/or processes to ensure the Licence 
holder’s ability to continue as a going 
concern);  

Finance and performance committee. 
External auditors. 
Internal auditors. 
Monitor quarterly review. 
Monitor continuity of service risk rating. 
External accountants’ review of financial reporting and 
working capital. 

Risks 
Systems and processes weaken or are 
not sufficient for the larger organisation 
in a period of change.  
Loss of organisational memory from the 
former BCF trust. 
Mitigations 
2014/5 reforecast exercise undertaken 
Comprehensive revised budget holder 
training 
Additional resources to QIPP 
programme 
Integration plan focused on systems 
and synergies 
Regular review of medium term 
financial plan  
 

4e 
 
 

to obtain and disseminate accurate, 
comprehensive, timely and up to date 
information for Board and Committee 
decision making;  

All board committees. 
Chief executive’s scheme of delegation. 
Monthly performance report. 
Monthly finance report. 
Monthly QIPP report. 

Risks 
Data quality in information about the 
former BCF trust’s services is not 
reliable. 
Mitigations 
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Statement  Evidence for plans in place by 31 December 2014  Risks and mitigations 

Financial, activity and workforce 
information is being integrated with 
Royal Free’s processes and standards, 
and the executive is addressing data 
quality weaknesses (for example in 
RTT).   
Data Quality regular topic at Audit 
Committee, and Internal Audit reviews 
planned during next quarter 
 

4f 
 
 

to identify and manage (including but 
not restricted to manage through 
forward plans) material risks to 
compliance with the Conditions of its 
Licence; 

Each condition of the Licence is allocated to executives and 
committees. 
Due diligence. 
Section 4 of Board Assurance Framework. 
Integrated corporate risk register. 

Risk 
Strategic or operational; risks in the 
former BCF trust are overlooked. 
Mitigation 
BCF’s strategic and operational risks 
have been reviewed and, where 
relevant, incorporated into integrated 
risk management.   

4g 
 

to generate and monitor delivery of 
business plans (including any changes 
to such plans) and to receive internal 
and where appropriate external 
assurance on such plans and their 
delivery; and 

Annual planning process, including council of governor 
involvement. 
Monitor involvement with “material” and “significant” 
business cases. 
Appropriate governance of business case process, including 
non executive involvement in major projects. 
Involvement of lead commissioners with new Chase Farm 
Hospital business plan, and submission of that plan to DH, HM 
Treasury and Monitor.  
Monthly performance report. 
Monthly finance report. 
Monthly QIPP report. 

Risk 
Delivery of plans varies from agreed 
assumptions. 
Mitigation 
Capital management group considers 
options, and proposes actions to 
finance and performance committee 
where appropriate. 
For significant variances to plans and 
assumptions, the board considers 
whether a strategic risk should be 
added to the board assurance 
framework.  

4h 
 
 

to ensure compliance with all 
applicable legal requirements. 

Understanding by the board, as supported by the board 
secretary, of the trust’s legal obligations. 
Use of legal advisers when required. 

Risk 
Failure to consult lawyers in 
appropriate instances. 
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Mitigation 
Full time in-house lawyer employed to 
provide informal and accessible advice, 
including on the appropriate use of 
legal firms. 
Retention of legal firms specialising in 
NHS and related subjects.   
 
 
 

5 The Board is satisfied:   

5a 
 

that there is sufficient capability at 
Board level to provide effective 
organisational leadership on the quality 
of care provided; 

Remuneration committee. 
Nominations commitee 
360° board appraisal. 
Board development programme. 
Focus on quality and safety in governing objectives and 
committee terms of reference. 
Three board members are clinically qualified and registered, 
and board meetings are attended by four (formerly three) 
other senior consultants. 
Majority of non executive directors have experience of 
mergers and acquisitions.  

Mitigation 
Board members’ experience audit. 
 

5b 
 

that the Board’s planning and decision 
making processes take timely and 
appropriate account of quality of care 
considerations; 

Focus on quality and safety in governing objectives.  
Three board committees with quality related terms of 
reference: patient safety, clinical performance, patient and 
staff experience 
Three board members are clinically qualified and registered, 
and board meetings are attended by four (formerly three) 
other senior consultants. 

Risk 
Board spends most attention on 
technical integration or finance to the 
detriment of quality. 
Mitigations 
Quality governance plan. 
Medical director and nurse director 
roles. 
Public board meeting attendance by 
clinical staff responsible for infection 
control and safeguarding. 

5c the collection of accurate, Monthly performance report. Risks 
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Statement  Evidence for plans in place by 31 December 2014  Risks and mitigations 

 
 

comprehensive, timely and up to date 
information on quality of care; 

Hot spots and ward dashboard. 
CQC intelligent monitoring reports. 
CQC essential standards self assessment.  
Data quality strategy, and waiting list action group. 

Data quality in information about the 
former BCF trust’s services is not 
reliable.  
Mitigations 
Financial, activity and workforce 
information is being integrated with 
Royal Free’s processes and standards, 
and the executive is addressing data 
quality weaknesses (for example in 
RTT).   
Data Quality regular topic at Audit 
Committee, and Internal Audit reviews 
planned during next quarter 
 

5d 
 
 

that the Board receives and takes into 
account accurate, comprehensive, 
timely and up to date information on 
quality of care; 

Monthly performance report. 
CQC intelligent monitoring reports. 
CQC essential standards self assessment. 
 
 
 

Risks 
Data quality in information about the 
former BCF trust’s services is not 
reliable. 
Mitigations 
Financial, activity and workforce 
information is being integrated with 
Royal Free’s processes and standards, 
and the executive is addressing data 
quality weaknesses (for example in 
RTT).   
Data Quality regular topic at Audit 
Committee, and Internal Audit reviews 
planned during next quarter 
 

5e 
 

that the Royal Free London NHS 
Foundation Trust including its Board 
actively engages on quality of care with 
patients, staff and other relevant 
stakeholders and takes into account as 

CQC intelligent monitoring reports. 
CQC essential standards self assessment. 
 “Go see” visits extended to BCF sites. 

Risk 
Quality messages from outside are not 
sought or taken seriously. 
Mitigations 
Patient safety and compliance 
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Statement  Evidence for plans in place by 31 December 2014  Risks and mitigations 

appropriate views and information 
from these sources; and 

committee and clinical performance 
committees’ agendas.  

5f 
 

that there is clear accountability for 
quality of care throughout the Royal 
Free London NHS Foundation Trust 
including but not restricted to systems 
and/or processes for escalating and 
resolving quality issues including 
escalating them to the Board where 
appropriate. 

Executive leadership for quality is clear: medical director for 
safety and clinical performance and nurse director for patient 
experience. 
Committees are structured accordingly: patient safety and 
compliance, and patient and staff experience. 
Terms of reference of board committees include rules on 
escalation. 
Quality governance plan for the expanded organisation. 
Monthly performance report. 

Risk 
Confusion about accountability. 
Mitigation 
Quality governance plan. 

6 
 

The Board of the Royal Free London 
NHS Foundation Trust effectively 
implements systems to ensure that it 
has in place personnel on the Board, 
reporting to the Board and within the 
rest of the Licence holder’s organisation 
who are sufficient in number and 
appropriately qualified to ensure 
compliance with the Conditions of this 
Licence. 

360° board appraisal. 
Board development programme. 
Nominations committee of the council of governors. 
Remuneration committee. 

Risk 
Insufficient resource at leadership level. 
Mitigations 
Addition of integration committee; 
extension of clinically led organisation 
across the combined organisation;  
creation of a fourth clinical division 
upon acquisition;  hospital director 
posts. 

 
References 
Risk assessment framework, Monitor, 1 April 2014 
Royal Free Licence (number 100091, version 2.0, dated 1 April 2013) 
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